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l.‘'_; t‘. :;1Z:s are here e:c=_a:'=eseed to i‘:=.I~‘:;:.;sc:,

‘the IT:.;.\-Z_ .’.;=c31.1vi::‘t. ; for his 1~:;L1o".1y iz1’:.;'.=: :1;

;3‘:.'7;,:‘.:.:;-.. a.-’;~:Z ‘-.2‘-.'_:’<. sxtor-e of 1!'.1:o'.':lcd_';-2 '.:2:.'<:':. I

‘11c.*.m 3" i 1 ::.“:.-‘Le explore ear; ‘co

II 4.‘.-":"..“.‘.: 2.'.':?..€:: I-'L:?_ll:Zv3 Canrgbell tor ;e:-.'.‘_:, .:i:.:; .

to :2-_,c 2‘.c..‘:* anal G» Cx‘o:n:>‘‘»oi1;1''—‘5~‘.o= 55;‘

the L.;.-- of Zai; cog:-y‘ of "John D1;:;:*s Notes."

'1 :31 1.-- .‘.:.'’;c. I. ;.:'*;.h. to Colonel H232’-y Sparks, c.'_

, ;L*1‘i;:'_.':::.‘?;=: £‘:i:?.; oi‘ ‘she late Joh.-°_"‘1C;unrz, fr)? 1: .. . _

I - supplc::3n't.ary a'_n._*'"oz*:na’oiozx and to John Bur-:1“3 —I~J ‘

F.'Ji1}'1i’1 of G-in.5ir;:Zhlo1ru, so.-..- L‘a.11il3" c'.;~";:.iL'“»

Lastly, I extcni my heartfelt. t’r.m{.=g°. to my r;.;.:.~.r
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_§;g E F A C E . ‘

- . The lives of some men are so transmogrificé

after death as to represent them rather as tigi:

mothers believcfl them to be instead of the EC ;.1 I

’ that they really were. The opposite seems is 2.

' the fate of John Dunn, whose good has been in:;-;;"

‘ with his bones; for those historians who have

mentioned him have not done so in the most f;v&u-j 1.

light. The reason for this is, perhaps, becgiso

i _‘ their reference to him has been the briefest, ani

1 just as a photograph, of say, the Victoria Falls;

‘ can never adequately reveal the awe-inspiring OE:.;.

it represents, so a succint phrase se1dom’if ever.

shows forth fihe man.

To date, the following extracts sum up what :_

‘ thought of John Dunn." Dr_Uye regards his as "24;

ronegaie John Dunn who has become a Zuluichief, ;a,

who (sic) was in all but nane a Zulu ”; ' furzhcs,

‘ be are "thee polygamous Anglonzulu" who, "it is “Z 2,-

certain ....inspired Cetywayo.... if the di?l°E;u_3

* Cetywayo had stood ingneed of inspiration...to 2a.,

against Umbandine. " Professor de Kiewiet teii;

us that “he was that renegade Englishman and gtza

runnew who lived, in the euphemistic words of ?al w_g

a Eorzonalike node of life, with the habits of a ;;l;#

‘ and yet able to take his plece in an officers’ :-.;¢"g

Hr. Gibsona who was appointed a magistrate in

Zululand in 1889, six years before Dunn's dc;th,:;.io

of "John Dunn, of subsequent notoriety" ;, "who ;.1

’ ingratiated hiE3e1f....with Cetywayo. " .. .

l.Uys p.220. ‘

2.ibid p.2C9.The passage itself proves thai Dunn

did not inspire Cetywayo. ~

3.ée Kiewiet p. 247.‘ .

~ e.Gioson p;1os.

' ' b?Ib%d p°1f¥' ‘ /Professor...;

,
%“f:



Preface - 2 -

Professor Walker coupled his name with t;;: '

i of"thc traitor Hamu" and briefly refers to h;; .

A “the gunaruiner who deserted Cstywayo in his 1: u

of n:cfl. " Bishop Colenso of Natal remarfi H,

_ "'tZv13:‘c. he (Cet;y‘x~.'a§,*o) had ob'l'.e.ined . . ...i‘ireo.r;.:

chiefly by the lucrative agency of Mr. John 3:3”

V who was up till the (Zulu) war began, Cstshrcy;-.

chief adviser although receiving £330 per aL::;x.

. "Immigration Agent " of the Natal Government". n

.

. The final touch to this portrait is added by the

; Bishep's daughter, Miss Harriet Colenso, who,

reiterating her father, says, "He was for many

4 years Toaga §migsation.Ageht to the Natal Govcr‘ -

while know? to be supplying the Natives with 3;m

' whclcsale‘—§ The"notorious“ is an epithet ghkj

might suit him. It is rather odd that I‘h:v; ; 1

been able to procure a copy of "Dunn's Book" i;

‘ Eatal. It is called "Cetshwayo and the Three

Generals“ or something of that sort,5 but was

> edited, an: no doubi; carefully, by Mister Ride: '

Haggard.“
I

‘ who then was this "notorious" person who ;..

been so denigrated ? It is the object of this

essay to show John Dunn as he really was; a hU:;J

being wi’-:.h hmnsn fsiligs; ‘a wise chief among;

' both cunning oni stupid ones; a benaficent fa ;.r

to his tribe; and one, who although badly tr: 3 L

. k by the Imperial Government, served that Goverx;oM

bofih faithfully and well. At the same time we 1 _-

to show his glace in the South African cosmoso

l.?Ie.lke:‘. pusss. '
2.Di5est.page 433 in notis.No authority is cit::.

3.Miss Colenso fails to supply source of in§o:.ih

4.”by hundreds" was originally intenaed for”uh;f

5.lts ca1led"John Dunn,Cetwayo and the Thrcc C

6.It was editefi,tut by D.C.F.MOODIE.The exzrso

by Kiss Colenso, is from the Colensc paper: .

possession of fliss killie Campbe11,DurbaA ;:u ,

i simply referrefl to as Vol 11, p.cccc::iv.

‘
/CI-L-\.F'.' ,1: ..
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DAYS.

In 1824 Robert Hewton Dunn married, in Engiezi,

“ a beautiful and highly cultured Engliohwoman, Ann

: Harold. She was descended, on her mother's side,

; from an old titled family. 'The Dunns were apparently

V respectable middle class people. Robert and Ann had

T six children. John, one of the younger ones, was

born in England in 1834.-. linen he was mo years old

: he came with his parents to Natal 1. No reason has

: been advanced for this move.

; 'These were hard times; the Diaspora zso innocentL'

E begun in Cammander Van Riebeck's day had pushed fer

' afield; so that there were Boer encampments in the

' present Free State, Transvaal and Natal, while a he::-_; ‘

% of lnglishmen was trying to make a.living at Port'N;t:;,

(Dwban)

? It was to this straggling port that the Dunn F;;l1y

‘ came. At the same time the contemporaneous Lifeanne J

I had come to a standstill, and the Bantu hemmed in on all

H sides were seeking an opportunity to irrupt the whiz: .

; oncirclcment. Infiperticular, in Zululand, Dinaaan UL?

h king of the Zu1us.; Two years after the Dunns arrival

E in Natal this barbarian butchered Retief , who with

E others had come to ‘claim the land‘ that they had eirnzi

” y by returning to Dingean cattle stolen by Sikonyela.o

‘ After the massacre "company after company dashed weeia

I ward, plumes tossing, shields.brandished3 assegeis

_; flashing to fall upon the sgattered and unsuspecting

; Boer eneampments in Natal”;

1. F. Dunn,Gingin;hlovu:Nata1 Mercury 19/ll/l€3é.

_ 2. Walker p.203 and p.40.

‘ 3. Agar wfiamilton p.3, p.111.

4. He had assassinated King Chaka in October 1829.

5. Walker E.A., "Great Trek" Chap. V-Wackeurian Cu, -3

6. walker "The Gret Trek” p;165.

. /Neta1....
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Iztal". Weenen was the first to fall.

1 After the fieenon massacre and the annihilation of the

E “fetal Army", Dingaan‘s impi sacked Port Metal, and John

with his parents, and small sisters Louisa, Agnes and

. Sarah Kory, narrowly escaped with their lives by taking

~ refuge on the brig “Comet” which was luckily at anchor in

. the bay.; ‘

The Dunne sailed in the "Comet" for the Cape and

:cmsined there until the trouble in Natal was over, when

; they returned and settled at Sea View. Their house was

E the only one there for many years; it was later owned 2

by the Heethcote family, but has disappeared long since ,

3 together with the elephants which at that time used to

g core to the flats "where the racecourse now is, and wander

f ‘ :11 about, often within a few yards of father's (Robert

; Dunn) house at Sea View near Clairmont......and, where the ‘

E elephants then trumpeted. other rushing monsters called

“ locomotives now shriek" ? Like the old fashioned

i ladies of Cranford, John Dunn had no sympathy for the

C Iniustrial Revolution. It was in this early paradise

3 that John, as a boy, hunted big game, often going out at

t night with”Dr° Taylor of Durban and the officers of the

L 27th Regiment then stationed at Durban" 4. ‘But Captain

Charlton Smith of the 27th Foot (the nmisxiiiings)

E on his arrival in natal had nore to do than shoot elephants,

\

I and in the battle that ensued between his men snd.the Boers

E for possession of Natal, John’s fagher remained neutral

1 and suffered much by his pecifism . He was possibly

E one of the thirtyweevon souls aboard the “Mazeppa" which ‘

% soiled, through an oversight of the Boers, to get help

, irom Delagoa Bay should Dick King‘s mission prove abortive;

' l. Hsckeurtan p.228. :

2. Natal xercury 19/ll/1934. V ~

‘ 3. Dunn's notes. Pege~3n- V

; /2. Ibidyzu.

_: 5. ibid p.lOO=lOl. Vida Mackeurtan, Cha9.l2. ‘

f
/It so....‘
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1 It so chanced that King was successful, while

‘ 1

3 the Xazeppa failed . Natal passed into British 5;".

1 331 the Boers trekked north to found the South Afric;

‘ Republic under 'i','r;e1‘r President, Andrics ?-retcrius.

when Joho was fouetecn he lost his father, who

_ not his death euflfienly on the 4th September, 132?,

2

* while elephanfi hunting . It is the fashion of

v historians fie lay great stress upon events in puberty

3

i on affecting later life . John, it will be seen,

§ 03:2 from what is iermed "a good family“ on his

\‘\
« ‘

[ mother's side; got a quaint pacificism from his father

V
to men;

} uh: yrofcrred to about elephanta/ and above all, the-e

h,

E . . .
5 Kim the loneliness in.tne Boy's lzfe - for a yeungcflc;

‘ to shoot elephants with ‘Dr Taylor and officers of 2L;

‘ 2?th Foot” clearly indicates the luck of companionshi;

§ ' of boys of his own age, and with it a certain prccocizy.

; Now that his father was gone he was deprived of 4

; strong hand so necessary, we are told, to growing boys.

“ Hrs Dunn followed her husband to the grave four yczrc

" 1‘.

v later am: John seems to have been utterly alone - no

F mention being made of hie sisters or brothers, if he hz;

? 5 ' .

3 any, a and at seventeen he was ready to face the morll.

: His adventurous caress from seventeen onwards he has .

i field us himself in his book "John unn, Cetywayo an:

6

the Three Generals ” ’ - .
i

/at firet.......

1. xackourtan. p. 277. et seq.

2. Me was tvamplcd to death (Sparks) Robert Dunn died

, in his Sznfl your. flis tombstone is in the hosfi St.

~ Cemetery, Durban.

- 3. Cf A.F.Follnrd "Thomas Cranmer" paasim and J.E.Hool:,

"Queen Elizabeth" p.16 and 40. Both rogcrfl the

Harian oersecution asparily blamcabln to tae fact tL,:

- Vary Tuflor at the time or her mother‘s disgrace uzz

adolescent and was swept by her emotion into a

passionate resistance to the new order of things.

é. She lice buried next to her husband in the ~est P.;

Ccmotcrygfurbon. the died 23th June 1351

5. He was nossiblv the youngest boy and his oléer 51.- 2

were married or hafl returned to England.

6. The Generals were flhelmsford,Crealock and ccleelsy.

- 19
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kt first he tool: to a wandering existence as he I: ..

;=;l'.'4::ys been fond of his gun and a solitary life. 11 l_.;'.;

' was en3'aged,e.s was also his wagon,to go to the Tra.-"..‘.~‘-:.‘«_

‘ a gentleman who was the proprietor of 3. Durban ';a;_:_,:~g

1 On. his return he was refused payment and learned that ‘:;;_.'

~ Rosanna zlutch law he could not claim the money as he was

_ of age. As this was all that civilisation could do

en orphan he wiped the dust of civilisation from off 'n:L:

" feet and sought the haunts of large game in uncivilisc-ed

V’, Zululand, and thus spent the next year shooting with

varied success, until, in 1854, he met Captain ‘.-‘lalmsley

: who took him under his wing. Walmsley persuaded him to

return to Natal and, eventually; to takeloffice under him

N at the border between Zululand and Natal , where alaltsley

! been ap:_:-ointed2Border Guard. Like a famous conte:.;:,-:-

9 ary, John F.o=::lands, he found the man who had befriended

him more of a father than a znastgr.

‘R By this time the indolent Panda king of me .'/.u;';;,.

cs-so about in this wise. Panda was nauseeted with

, the bloodshed of his brother Dingaan and apparently let

" it be 12.10‘-IJEE, for he soon fell under suspicion, and to avoid

‘ the agar;-sequences, fled into Natal. He was joined in his

1

f’li_r3ht by many of" the Zulu people. From the south of the

Tongaat River where he halted with all his, followers ,‘ne

sent rness-sg.;es -to the Boer leaders askirg for protection..

After an interview between Panda and a deputation” from

Boers, it was agreed that he should assist the farmers in

‘ ovortmowing Dingsan and be recognised as "Prince of the

E.n.:ig;z=ant Zulus". ‘ '

1 /Thus......

9 1. Gibson. Page 103 -=»10<l.

1} 2. Better known as Sir Henry Morton Stanley, who had

‘ c~.esv:.r.;d, the name of the man who had befriended h:i:_:.

7 of Ilationall. Biography)
3. Iiaclseurten p.25’-1»: Gibson p. 102. . '-
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' Thus it came about that in January, 18-10, .1”;

‘ v.=a.:-: hemzed in by Boer and Native forcesi, and was

compelled to seek refuge in the Amaewazi coun‘:.ry, 12-a_—"~"r.'.';

oi“ the ifongola River, on the crest. of the Leboznbo

mountains, where their? King, Sobuza, had him ‘bormzreé-'.

to c1e:—.~'.-.n. On the 14th February , 1840, at the c::;:;:

I‘ on the Black Umfolosi, Andrieslm-etoriue, in the name

’ of the "l7olks1'aad of the South African-Society" jclaimed

‘ as the Republic of>Natalia, all the land-from the

:_A Uzuzmvubu to the Black Umfolosi and from the Drakensberg

to the Sea: at the same time formally installed Panda,

the vessel and “g':ea’c. ally" of the farmers; as king of

‘C the Zulus. The Republic of Natalia’ was short-lived.

4 ':!i’t.‘a the Bzlitish conquest of ‘that territoiy in 123-£3,

S~ Her §§e1.jes;’c.y’s Commissioner, Colonel Cloete, visited

Emnda. The result of his visit was a treaty with

‘L Panda declaring the Zulu boundary to be the Txgela and

also the ccesion of St..Luci:-1 Bay to Great Britain to

" - prexrent Boer outlet to the sea. The documents _‘.‘.o

-' which Panda effixed the royal mark {were dated the 5":.’.\.

1 October, 1843. Panda remained under British p!'o‘i'.ec'€.i01’1

I 'tm’r.il 1872, when he died, - so stout that he could not

I wallzz. I

Besides his obesity, .Pe.m-1-3. was much married and

“ arm the father of ‘r;v«Jen'by~fou:' ehildrené. His favourite

was possibly Umbulazi, but his eldesteborn was Cetufi.-aye,

"the Slandered One, "5 Panda's weakness as a ruler was

L so much ;€el"c. by the people ’t.ha1'.'their' hopes early

‘turned to his sons. :Parties began gracxually to;’'‘*L;_~_3

.
/associa”r.e......

‘ 1. The Eoers did little of the fighting.

~ Walker p.218. Hackeurten p.258.

2. Year Book of Union of South Africa, No 4. p. 951-.

‘ E.I::.ckeu:cte.n p.p 253-259.P.ussel1 p.p 175->176.

3., Efelclzzeurtm ._D. 289.

4.. Gibson, 33.818 ~=319, Genealogical table.

5. For the implication of this vide Gibson p.102:
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asscciato themselves either with Umbulazi or Cetjr:;c.

The Iziggoza regarded the former as their leader whi;c

V the famous Usutu party acknowlcd3edCetywayo. By ti;

. tifie ?anda had reigned sixteen years the Zulu autism

was thus dividcfi against itself, and he had na power

; to control the two parties into which it was formed. —

P Sir George Grey, the High Commissioner at that time.

F
.2

‘ urged Panda to divide his lands among all his sons ,

Y: bu‘:

f fie; both Theophilus Shepstone, the Secretary of Native
.

V 4 o

? affairs in natal , and m.w.Pretorius, who had succecdafl

H his fa%he9,_An£rics Fretorius, as fircsident of the tenth

3 African Republic, advised against this, the former
P

E because he hoped thereby to further his achemes for

u 4 ‘

E acquiring an undivided Zululand , and the latter beC.;“v

1 there was more hope of getting a road to St. Lucia Eay

. ‘ 5

v frsm cne chief than many. ‘Thus by November 1856 matters

; reached a crisis; _both the twentyéseven year old

x Cetywayo and Umbulazi were prepared for war.

~ The story of Cotywayo's defeat of his brotner at the

} battle of Ndondakusuka on the 2nd December along the

6

_ "L;-sake of the siszollen Tugela River has often been tola.

Umbulazi sought the aid of the British Government in

; vain, but Captain flalm2ley,the Border Agent, to when

?
7

? the chief applied personally for hélp, allowed young

I Dunn to volunteer with any of the Native fiolice who ;JuLl

I go with him to aid Umbulazi. '

;
/ Dunn ‘

T 1. Gibson, p.1£3 ~103.

2 3. Uya n 64/65. walker 0.723.
. . 9 ' . . : .

L 3. Enepstonc arrived in Jatal in 1845.The iollowing yr v

i he began to carry our Cloete's Native location ;cL;;g;

; flithuut a pclice force he shepherded 8O,»VQ Natiuz.

3 into 8 Reserves of some 1,163,COO acres in N&t3l,LJ_Cu

i Brookes regards as one of the most brilliant 3icc;a c:

E aiministrative work recorded in South African fi3c*.ry.

; In 1853 Shepatonc became Secretary of Native é£%3«“ 9

7: which c~,i'i‘icc'.- he hem until 1876 when he sat. on ‘La
\ . 3

j ~ annex tne Transvaal. ;

’ 4. walker p 323. walker hene anfedatsend gives furthzr

‘ ‘ paint to Uys‘s contention that Shepstone sought a

‘ 'sa£ety valvo' for Natal vide Uys p.52,54 & 30 ani

especially 9°86; also $.64. .

5. talker 9. 323.

6. Gibson p.lG2—lO5; Russell 239-212; Dunn's Notes 5.4-3

7.Gibson p. 103.
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Dunn tells us he "raised a small force and trek -

up quarters with Umbulazi's force of 7,090, but the

result was a foregone conclusion. Cetywayo had 2Q,LCC

. Usutu,& in spite of the fact that Dunn's_fusi1lede :2:

presence on horseback caused a feeling of uneasiness

. among the Usutu, — a horse at that time being an object

9 .

of terror fio many of them - Umbulazi and five brothevs_

3 .

were killed. . The effect of this battle was to place

Cctywayo virtually in possession of the kingdom and he

devoted the remaining years of ?anda°s'harmlese'

‘ life to getting rid of any who might pretend to the

; kingship. j

E An immediate consequence of this battle of

Q
.

é °Ndondakusuka" was the sweeping off of all the Natal

; traders’ cattle, numbering a thousand, by Cetywayo.

3 The metal Government later sent 2%. H.F.Fynn to claim

;
I

g them, bufi he failed to do so. Dunn felt that he couli

5 get back this herd and set off to accomplish this self-

? imposed ‘task. He first met Panda. The old in:

L received him kindly and thanked him for his assistance

? to his favourite son and told him to see Cetywayo as the

. 4

1 cattle were ready to be returned .‘ A little later Dunn

‘ made his first acquaintance with Cetywayo, and, strange

D

I; to relate? uxey became great friends . It came about

,¢ .

E in this way; Cetywayo had organised a big hunt when a

g _ Lions _ __

5 pride of/was disturbed, and as they were crossing & r1ege

5 about 830 yards éistant, Dunn, an excellent shottist,

i .

5 managed to bag three of them. 'Cetywayo in exultation,

I 6 . .

5 embraced him .

"
/This: o 0 u u

Irv, ' /

g ‘ la Dunn. p. 4.

. 2. Dunn pa 5.

; So Eantentashiya» Undumba, Tshenkweni, Somxawana, D:gul-

j esinge - Gibson ?.3l9. r

V 4° ibid. 12.9 ._

" 55 Gioson says he ingretiated himself with uyaayo.

‘ Gibson p .121. ‘

6° I am indebted to C31.Sparks, Sydenham,for this story

which he affirms Dlnn told him himself.
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This incident possibly was instrumental in Dunn‘5

‘ being able to restore the Traders‘ cattle but Dunn himsoli

; says that Cetywayo mistook him for a Government official,

E although there was no attempt on Dunn's part to deceive

? him. He now had to bring the cattle from the Kangwini

% kraal across the Tugela into Natal, a feat he accomplished

; without mishap, and one of which "Buffalo Bill" might have

i been proud.‘ After much red tape_and palaver he received

£250 for his labour from the Traders . 1 V

g Cetywayo hadsasked Janton 2before his departure if he

f would not return. The offer seemed tempting enough and as

% soon as the protracted affair with the traders‘ cattle

g was completed, he no doubt bought such kaffir truck as his

% A money would buy and set off for Zululand, and so, by

g trading with kaffir truck and buying cattle and then selling

r them in.Nntal he got together a fortune. His cattle

E dealings were also responsible for his great friendship

9 with two famous Durban men - Sam Beningfield, the auctioneer,

2 and later , fisrry Spjrks (now Colonel) who started the firm

g of sparks and Young,‘ Colonel Sparks has only the warmest

5 recollections of Dunn.

' Dunn settled about 80 miles from Cetywayo's kraal in

j the Ungoyc Forest, a hunter's paradisa.5 Here he built a

E house and married the first of his fortyueight wives. She

: was a coloured woman, Catherine Fearson, and had her own

1 house; the others were Natives and ‘paid for"under the

: lobola system. Each lived in a separate hut, and, if we

may believe an intimate friend, they were all faithful.6

For years to come world~famous hunters visited this thick-

set, strongly built, heavily beandednuux, who spoke slowly

% _ and deliberately, and shot extremely well ?

3 I . I ~ _ /Shortly .....

? l. Dunn's Nbtes p.lOu12 ' ‘

v 2. Dunn"s Native name. ' '

- 3. Dunn°s Hates p.12.

&. Natal mercury l9.1l.l934.Col.Sparks is yet with us.

:3. Dunn's Not~:-s. Her, .

R 3. So says Col.Sparks who knew her.a=é=%%e father was whit:

‘ while her mother was Native.

'7. ‘Jide Dunn c:-»a.p.2.11 for some fine hunting tales-Godée, .

f“l5b3ggg3.i Vissher.S.A.History in pictures. P.7O Jun: :
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‘ Shortly after he was settled he “got mixed up with

the politics of the country" , for Cetywayo asked

to be 'hisOadviser and occasionally used him in this

capacity Hof which more hereafter. This coming into

‘ contact with Cctmayo and the tendering of advice brou;;Z‘.’;

‘’ with it a certain reward, for verily the labourer is

worthy of his hire. Dunn cherished a scheme of getting

: i ‘a further grant of land on the ifugela which was totally

"uninhabited. This was a belt of country lying between

the Tugela and the Amatikulu Rivers ‘and as reward for‘

services rendered he succeeded in. obtaining the land.

Upon the feet becoming known a number of Natal Natives,

who had been attached to him when he had resided in

2, Natal, got permission from the Natal Government to

go across the border to reside with him. Cetywayo

also gave his consent to some Zulus and this was

' "the commencement of my starting an independent tribe

‘ ac‘::no=.=:ledgiag me as their chief and head " 3. Any

' Native-5 2-.v'no left their headman or chief in Zululand

and vient to reside in Dunn's districtrlere looked upon

as having left the Zulu“ country and the "king's service,

and they were not subject to the king's callto

3 unless under Dunn, and they were as free from allegi~

emce to their former master as Xzrulus who had crossed

into Natal, but they were not allowed to take their

V cattle with them as these were considered to be A

forfeited to the .kin§_,.r. ‘ _

f Dun.n"e land became a haven in a barbarian land;

‘ for we are told that Dunn had to prevent many of his

. people from bsim: taken away by Cetywayo's henchmen and

E’ killed, - life was held very cheap in Zululand in those

days, - and "if Cetywayo has in some future day to give

‘. an account of all the lives he has taken incold ‘blood,

L be will have a heavy score to settle " 4
/Dr:-.n. 2'-zas. ..

1. Possibly not with any consequence Iintil 1872.

V ' (See next chapter) §. Dunn's Notes pp.l2—l3.

3. ibid pass. 4. " " P-29-
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Dunn was thus established in Zululand. His object

1 now was to try to get all the sparsely populated

: district from the Tugela to beyond the Uhgoye under his

3 ‘ control. So far he possessed both ends, each with its

t own"capita1" ; the village in the Ungoye distriet was

f known as Thwayo N‘duku; in the Tugela area it was

; ‘Eangete. -Gradually he was to get the middle district,

3 first, by getting his people to settle there, and then

E to get a title from the king ahd Zulu nation to a strip

3 ~ along the coast and part of the Tugela. V

g These were the happiest days of Dunn's life. A

g Having left civilizationzhe established himself simply

E upon the model of King Solomom, the Wise.

'% ' _ ~' _ /CHAPTER II.

3 1. ibid.

5 2. How civilized Natal was we glean from Eeckeurtan

% pp 260~26l. This should be remembered when

. flgafing Dunn. Lew, ‘B4'w€4e"‘}'n. flu. Laud. a/_ru',,}orz:.,.l'

5
- .

h

3

E _ p . . . -

v - ‘ -
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3

‘ _‘j<‘-.ur:-»1ou_nner "

L
_ .

' zmat was the high politics of which Dunn had

spoken,‘ and in which later on we find him inter-esteld ? it

was none other that} that famous trilogy, ‘land, labour and

security‘ lall over again. . Southern Africa is ‘no three

' acres axx-:1) a cow country‘, nor‘ is it levellor even well

wr.+.c-r-ct}. H." The emigrant Boers were, par excellence, I

pastoralisto, and because of the nature of fine country they

‘_ needed; or felt. they needed, large tracts of land. .

"ell meaning people use the v:o:*& transhumance to ex;-lain E-J1

economic phenorcenonpeculiar to pastoral people in mountain-

ous countriczs, n::—.me].y, that cattle must feed in the highlands

in smrmzr z=.n:1 in the lowlamls in w2'.nt_er_, and, just as the

Irczrwegiaxx 1’-e.z'::c1° has his aaeter, or highland farm in smear.

a home in the 1owlé.nc1s during winter, so , we find

' ‘the Boer with a farm in the Eighveld and one in we low.

3 the Boors left the nepuoiic of Natalia aftc-1' the I

annexation by British, they trekked north to a lemd

‘i:1~z1ns‘huL1-2.nce obtained. . Itlis also iznpoz-tent to note

Pesides land they sought security Jahen they slrriveol

: r~.cr‘t,1~f tholy found the land was sparsely populated with

; Efativcs ‘, who vsould. su.;::;_;ly..4. just the labour required.

J; I‘: is doubtful whether Athcy realised that the Lifaqesze, 7

E 5-. mo\.'e:1em'; akin to thoi: "own, had token place, or that ihe

l:a:1c'1A to which they had taken a likilm had begn temporarily ‘

; . vac-'.a+..e-:1 owing to the cleprcda’c.'ioz$sof Dingaan . ‘

. ; . /Suffice...”

E l. The Great, 'I\:e1~:. <

2. 1<;no-ales. l’1c«3nomic Elewclopment of the 0varscas'I=kz‘:piz*e

1, ‘.'olr.me ll1.;3ozzth Africzz.

3. In the Utrecht District.

‘ 4.. iimiltcn p.~’:l. 1Fys'p. 66. ' .

5. §r?';’:.ter-ezley "2:0r‘e Annals of I€a’:.a1“ p.235.
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puzzxce it 13, that fihey souattedS‘gg their econgfijcg1 .

, ufircndod, in the pveacnt Utrcchi district,on land
4’:

kclcnwinv to Panda, mnfl from wham they got a concession.

Slowly the Zulua returned to their old haunts, and

Qéfictywayo, the virtual ruler of the country felt that he

needed this land in which were but a handful of Boers. .;

civilised people like to anncx lanfl legally we can un&3?;tr.;

‘ the high politics which ensued. There can_be no doubt th;t

land, labour and security were the grime causes of the Zulu

war of 2379. ' = ' ~ :

we are nct.hcre concerned with the moral issue, - that, . 3.

‘ is not the historian's task; so,we are not going to quastian

_y the righfi of the more powerful, gun~cquipped, land-hungry

~ hanéful of nears to land which was "prncticallyauntnhabiteé"

E 4
5 but nsvcrtheless belonged to %he essegai~armed, but

‘. numerically superior Zulusg we are not even alarmed at the
5

. Beer fcrgcry of documents to substantiate a claim to part of

i this land, - the Forged Decretals have long shown the unerig

’ . inality of their method to concoct a legal weapon with which

9 to annex territory; nor are we ccnce?ned that Christians

should take aévantage of Bargarians; this was the nature of

fihinga; the more powerful fihrough dire economic exigency ‘

2 usually cuats the weaker and sometimes mere civilisefl tribe;

6
4 but we are interested in the facts of the case and we shall

i try to detail what happened dispessionately. ”

My 1848, %he Eatal Boers who had crossed over into Northcrn

E . _ , ‘
5 iululnnd were organising the little Republmc of- Utrecht._‘

fi /on 1255....

1. Besides the problem of transhumancc it shougd be

Y remembered that the Pongola Bush was the chlef spurce

of timber used for the indispensable waggns in tnc _

I pocr1y—wocdcd Transvaal hinterland. dc K1ewiet (p. 918}

9, walker. p. 97?.

" 3, ' we raaliue that the moral isaue is here expressed as a
J . (preterition.

‘ £0 U33 p. 66. ' - _

‘ 5; dc Kicwiet p. 919; p. 225; pa €?4._ _ A

~ 6. Of Rome and Gracce:- rhilolcqists 1n the centur1cs .0

came will no caubt help to interpret histcricag ”acts_

from the Zulu loan words that have entered Afr1k:c®: c

vice yqrsa. Cf} Jecperson-Growth & fltructure ci fine

Knglish language passim.
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1 Utrecht on land ceded them’ by Panda along the Blood

River with a hunting track to thelongola River

Iv

; ‘_ which significantly enough flows into Delagoa Bay; '

; ‘ when in 1855 the neighbouring Leydenburg Republic
. _ 1

f secured title and right from the Swazis to a wedge

L

.

5*‘ of 1and.t2u=us-t. betv-2een‘Zululs.nd and Swaziland far -
. 2 ,

down towards the Indian Ocean the Boers'were ¥%$ on

n the way towards gaining an outlet to the sea and the

r . . consequent realisation of their most cherished dreams-

: _an independent republic, impossible without a port.

fl ' - ‘

Q Cétywayo was too pre—occupied at this time to

g V devote much attention to the stupidity of the’

§ Swazis who were giving away land to the Boers .

i . His preoccupation consisted.of securing the succession

5 for himself; for he had not destroyed all pretenders ,

..: to the throne in 1856. Four years later,’ two half-

: brothers, Umtonga'and Umgidh1ana,‘sons of Panda and

§ Nomantshali, were felt to be in the way. when they

§ _ learned that their brother was sending an inpi after

i them, Fleancen like, they fled.i Unfortunately they

1:
. '

% chose as their place of refuge, the Republic of

a

5 ' Utrecht. Cetywayo, remembering what the Boers and

§ Panda had done to Bingaan got into touch with the V

Z Boers through Cornelius Van Rooyen and asked for the 7

E surrender of the refugees. .Pretorius was prepared

% to comply on condition that there should be no

V - z ‘ /bloodshed. . . . .

5 1. In 1946 the emigrant Boers occupied the

Q Lcydenburg District which was in possession

i of the Eapcdi (whose future ruler, Sekukuni,

1 was to give the Transvaal Boers so much trouble)

C and other weak tribes, The Boers decided to

E ~ purchase the land from hawazi II, who, they condidzcd

, had acquired it by conquest. mswazi II sold the

§ territory for one hundred breeding cattle. His rights

2 . to the territory were probably nebulous, but in 1865

K he signed a document purporting to cede the actual ‘

;: territory over which he ruled to the Leydenburg

v Republic (Year Book 1910-20,No 4.,pages 954~965;

‘ Uys p.120; Gibson pp.115-116.)

2. Vide walker Map facing p.240.
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bloodshed, an-:1 would ncknowledge Cotywayoas Panda's

heir; 2.11"} give .Fé«nd'n twenty-five” head of cattle, ‘

<3, pmvidod that they receivea in return an inérease of 3

. territory bounded on the east by a line from Ror1:e'e ' 5

‘ Drift on the Tug‘-ala to the Pongo1a':livar,'the eoo ‘ ‘

oeCLle<i- and perhaps not euphomistically, -Blood River

- tem'ito'.-‘y, also 1t;no‘:.'n an the "Disputed Territory“ 1. ‘ i j

. Before the final arrangzeménté sould be made Pretoriue E

" went out of office in September, 1860. ' if;

_ __ ‘Seven months later, Cetywaqro,9du1y assisted by

- ‘ two brothers, Usziwetu and Usitelzu," signed the document 1:

' of cesoion in April .1861, "at the farm called "\'iaaihoek",

' and Panda eventually ratified 1t.3 ' ' > " ‘ ' “

Panda, after-Umbulazi's defeat in 1855, had tried i

to safe-guardzkat least two other 'of.his sons, Sikota >

5 and Usulungu, my sen:1ing' thenfaecretly to Natal where

they were placed under the -protection of the Government '_

and hénce'Theophilus Shepstone its Secretary of Native L:

Affairs, whose policy it was to get cont.r01'of Zululand.

It =:.ra.'s ‘only natural that Cetynayo‘ should suapeat Natal,

_ by offering refuge to his bzjothers, ‘of favouring them

V ‘ to him. Shepstone,alive or not to the treaty of

'.*‘.'aa;'_hoek, and taking adventage of Pretoz-‘ius's absence .

. from office , went to Zululand and "amid great pompfand

A A 'c:':¢cu-znetance ac1mo'.':1edgedCety-wa,yo as Panda's heir, but «A

. astutely refused to surrender the refugees, thus .

' I ' netaining a handle with which to keep Cetywayo inlbrder. Y ‘

‘ This expedition of Shepstone's was "the thin-end B: the l

{sedge whereby he ‘hoped to gain control of Zululand, and

?, safeguard '1‘-Ia:tal'o trade" 5' ' . , g

E .‘ 1 ’ /Cetywa;/0......

E 'r§:ea1’m.p.151 £1“; Uys pp 60-63. p 65;Gibson\p 105; 4 ‘

3' L'.’x;l2»;e1° p.323. "six different maps of the Transvaal Q

I published between 1870 and lS77,a11 of them semi-official 5

3 showed no agreement whatever on either the western or the "

“.‘ ‘eastern Transvaal boundaries, varying sometimes as much ll

; 150 miles."de Kiewiet p 218) Vide ’.“.’alker Hiatoficél ;

H Atlas Liap 15.

k‘ ' 2. but see U;/e p 66; 3. '~’-*‘alI<er p 327; 4.?-’a1.Jcer p 323, .

j v Uy.-3 p 63-64, D 80:_ 5. Uye p.64. V



. <15) *

Cetzrwayo realised that although Shcpstone had

, acknowledged him as Panda's heir he had been baulked '

' in his desire to rid himself of all opposition, and,

V on being refused the refugees, petulantly massed his

V Lfipis ‘on the border. The Eatal Garrisonand volunteers

turned out, and Grey, although strongly deprecating ‘

_ Shepstone's action which stultified his scheme that

Panda should divide up his land among his many sons and

: thereby destroy the Zulu hower,l nevertheless sent up

‘reinforcements from the Cape; but the crisis pessed.2

E « when Pretorius was reelected President in May

g ’l86é, he lost no time in implementing the "treaty of ‘

. \*.Iaa:'_hoek", and thereby furthering his schema ofs >

‘5 securing for his Republic an outlet to the see. He

2:! appointed a Transvaal-'-Lzulu Commission to beacon off the

E line; at the same time, having a care that the zulus

really knew what they were about, he insisted that the

Q; Zulu Commission should lay the first stone of evezy

E beacon before he allowed his men to build it up. .

Unfortunately for the Boers the Zulu Princes

Ltzxtonga and Umgidhlana evaded the Boer ‘officials and

and made good their escape into Natal, thereby adding

immensely to Shepstoneis bargaining power and aiding

him to outwi.t the Bears for control ofyvzululand. ._

Pretorius, however, knew that the greater part of his

‘ contract had been fulfilled; he had acknowledged

Cetywayo as heir and cattle had been paid to Panda; i

E further the line had been laid down; surely Cetywayo

% ' could not go) back onlhis word; but the ?rince had a

E loophole and had been baulked of, his prey a second time

- .._ _/He ..._...._.V

$2 g¥3.k£1"‘6:.323. . . V W

'3‘ 3. Uys p 61.. ‘ ,» .

f 4. walker p 323; Uys p 62. '

fi
‘,
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T He refused to acknowledge the Treaty; father Panda ‘

returned the bull md cows and denied the ceseion;

and Cetywayo mobilised once more and demanded his

land back. The Utrecht farmers went into laager and

Kruger, now a rising power inlthe north gathered a

large commando at Wakkerstroom but. again war was

averted because of affairs in Baeutoland, where the 1

Boers had to concentrate their energies against :

Moshesh. In 1869 Lieutenan’c.aGovex-nor Keate of

Natal tried to settle the Blood River controversy

g . with the Zulus but his attempt proved abortive. 2

E The Pretoria Government had allotted a few fax-ms

g ‘ in the ‘Disputed territorérf but had not ventured to A

E do anything more definite when in 1872 Panda lay i

§ e.-dying; filial Umtonga leaving Natal, avoided }

_ Cetywayo's spies and gained the dying King's bedside, .

g received the paternal blessing and leftonce more 50.71

the Republic. when Shepstone41earned of the turn -

of events Panda was no more. "Q

It should be carefully noted that Dunn says '

‘ nothing about the Boers, and we zlhfer therefore that r

he had nothing whatsoever to do with them before ‘i it

1872, eleven years after the Treatyof Waaihoek.

‘ It was about this time that Dunn, 38 years old,

began to play an important role in Zulu affaiisa. »

% y This is conjecture based upon his book wherein he

makes no reference to the Treaty of Waaihoek. It is k

_ A assumed that this took place before Dunn became

Cetywayo (o adviser. ‘

~ New Cetywayo, like Charlemagne, could not write

and the needs of the time demanded an amanuensis;

here was Duhn'e work. ‘f ' '/Beingun:

§ 1. Theal IV p. 155. ‘ .

“ 2. Walker p. 343.

L 3. Yialker 1:7. 358.

L 4. Uys 79 '-80.

T
.
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Being a European he knew the ways of white men, and

at the same time the Black men did not doubt his ‘

integrity? but to hur1_epithets, as somehave done,at ‘

those who take the other side just because they are

‘ on-theiothler side seems to be burking enquiry; to have

called Dunn a gum-runner in all but ‘name a Zulu,

rsther means that es their adviser he was attempting l

to meet arms with ‘arms. 2, end being 'a Zulu in }.

' _ but nameAhe,- better than anyone else understood the ‘

Zulu viewpoint. Dunn wrote all Cetyway's oorres- g

pondence and no message was sent to the Natal

Government without Dunn being first consulted, and x L

when the Natal messenger returned Dunn wrote the A

letter. He always heard the verbal message and

read the answer from the>Governme'nt3. Shepstone E

‘ seems to have relied on and consulted him 4 }

. some time elapsed after §:r1da's death before ‘l

‘ ‘I Cetywayo took steps to assume/kingship. He designed &

‘ ‘first to send an expedition sgeinst the‘ Swazis whose ;

. over-lord he claimed to be, ‘but they in turn denied ‘

. this with good reason. 5There£’also lived in the \ i ‘

north Cot;/wayo's half—brother Uhamu(Ramu) and a very I‘

capable cousin, Usibebu, both his bitter enemies.

Dunn advised against the sxpeditionflnecanse of this J”

. northern discontent) and the fact that "all tribes i

outside Zululand were armed“. Cetyweyo thereupon I;

asked for guns and Dunn promised thathhe would try

‘ to get some if he would put off the expedition. _’v' i

-
' /'1‘his.... .

I 1. A year after Dunn had ‘deserted’ Cetywayo, for

instance, Cetywayo caused the most friendly and E 3

cordial letter to be addressed to him --quoted in E —;

full".Dunn’ p.1Lo7-1983 ,

2. Again we repeat that we are not concerned with the “

moral issue. - ‘

‘ 3. Notes p. 33. (DuNN.p33) ?

4. Uys 33.220. . E f

5. Year Book of the Union No 4. pp 963-64 gives the .

origin of the Ama Swazi and their relationship to n,

the Zulu.
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. decided the issue. and Dunn left for Durham,

_ ».:hero at the Royal Hotel he saw. Theophilus Shezzstone

" on this matter, telling him that lt was his object to

mm Cotywayo as s'r.z~or.\g1y as he could, because he believed

in so doing it woulci be the means of proventim another A

c'.f1'.?.:’.. =::":.‘ in .’::u3.ul.:;";;=5 as, if it were 1-znown that Cow’;-;a,\,'o ;

gs:-:3, usoulrl get. all the nation on his side. I

’ Shepstone, who did not think that Dunn was ‘far out‘ E

‘ advised him to see Lieutenant-Ggjrernor lfieate to state i

his v:ie'e:s to him, which he am. ms Excellency g-antea

Izunn 9. permit. to purchase 150 guns and ammunition in :

’ ’ opozz mas.-1~:et and on a subsequent occasion grantee him

another pemit to purchase 1-:=o more guns and necessary a,‘

azz:.=.1r1i‘c.io::. The people of Natal opposed the course

i he ‘pursued and he was requeested not to make any more i

&3.§>‘_')liCa'§‘.i0318 which he. refrained from doing, and "as the I

- Govermzent had acted. very liberally towards me, I

<ie'torz:ia-19:1 not to smuggle any guns or ammunition through

Natal, u a resolution I stuck to, although often i

2 ‘tcu;:_:~:,ed to brag}: it, as many influential people offered

ma etc gt low prices ". Cetyvsayo was greatly 1

delighted with the pov.d<=.z- said‘ he now really ‘

saw ‘that " I was his friend. was advising’ him for the

E ‘ best --2 ' I t Z

Because Dunn sold guns to the Natives he was not a

g:un.«-run:1c:' , - a jaerson engaged in illegal introduction 1

of fire urns into dependent counuyifor there was ‘lam A

mm-:raxzt' for what he did and Zululand was not a L

. d»apon~:1e:-1~;, country at this time. . /It mw...”

E 3.. Fe1~§5ic;§i0Il not obtained by cgr:‘e‘~ipon’-‘:5-2;: but
\

1.2;: ‘ii :;$2isé§§’.?m.p.mm. l

E Dunn, pp. 27-23. ‘
H 3. nefinition of gun-runner. oxford Dictionary. 3
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It may be argued that we have only Dunn's word <

- for this, but, happily, J.Y.Gibsun, vouches for the

truth of these statements which he published in his

1

book, "The Story of the Zulus". Unfortunately Gibson

does not quote his authority and it may be that he has

quoted from Dunn's book as he has done elsewhere in

his history. Are we then tosaccept the statements

2 ' 4

made by the Colensos, Walker, and de Kiewiet to the

effect that Dunn was a gun—runner. The evidence is

overwhelming but, in fairness to.Dunn, both the Colensos

and de Kiewiet do not cite any authority, and although‘ \

Walker cites three, two are secondary sources while it _

.
5

is doubtful if he made use of his single primary source . g

Surely Gibson, a Magistrate of Zylulsnd would not 2

‘ vindicate Dunn in a revised and extended edition of his i

work unless it were true 7 One who knew Dunn intimately

. y. 6
I;

denied that he was a gunarunner. _ Yet, how are we to 5

\ account for the fact that 7,700 fire arms were eurrenp A 4

. i 7 ‘
dered by November, 1880, after the Zulu war, unless we :

accept the fact that the Zulus were able to buy guns, i

and then the point is, was Dunn the sole responsible ‘

‘party 7 Gibson and Russell tell us that they were \ '3 K

. . ’ 8

'easily purchased through Delagoa Bay, but many were

‘ obviously brought across the Natal border, . 9 ,

Dunn says himself that he did not smuggle these guns 5

‘but he did give his own tribe guns_and it is possible

‘that these were confused with those possessed by K ‘ t

/Cetywayo. . ' I . ‘ _ . ' ' T

I V.
A - “/Again-scone‘: ‘i V >_ ‘A

:1. Gibson. page 121. M v ’ " ' ' E

2. Digest p.433 in notis; Colenso papers in Eossession.

, of miss Killie Campbell referred to as Vb .2.p. {

H . . ccccxcvv. .1 ., . -‘. L r

j’ 3. Walker. p.385. . ' - ‘ {

I 4. do I<.ie'-Niet 17.2/4.7. ' -

' 5. Vide walker p.385 in notis and then pp 391-393 in S

., notis where the reference is not specifically }

. mentioned.
‘in ,

6.-H Sparks. +0 "

7.34-D.B.M.O. Osborn tn=azd Colley 10/11/80.

8. I Gibson p.121; Russell pg 229.

9. I Dunn. page 95.

’ - . 3.;
‘
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31 Again we must not confuse a moral issue with

‘J i an illegal transaction. We must distinguish between the

rightness of selling guns to Natives and Dunn's right to

” sell such guns. Below we shall show that no less a

person than Theophilus Shepstone, the Secretary of Native

Affa:i.rs, in his official capacity,‘ gave Cetywayo guns.

It is quite obvious that this would nothave happened ~

‘had it been wrong to do so. Hence there isnot-a moral ‘

' case. against Dunn, while Dunntitells us that.he had _

E 'Government permission to sell guns,‘ hence there was no

illegal transaction. »_ -< ' ' ‘ ' < .-

§ If.a strict adherence be made to the definition of V

g ., '°Gun==run.ning", he was no gun-runner; for there to be “an 5

E offence the sale must he illicit, which itwas not, and

§ the country musttbe dependent, which itvwas not. a

Cetywayo now besought Somtseu (Shepstone) to support ‘

his assumption of the crown, and Dunn was sentfujlith a

deputation to Pietermaritzburg to ask Somtseu to be _ 1 L

present at his installation as king at Ama.hlabatini.2 I

Therzfthe rumour was bruited that Umbulazi had not been }

g , killed in 3.856, but had ‘fled to Natal,3 now claimed ''

E the throne. Cetywsyo would not go ‘to Amahlabatini I

E without Dunn as he feared that the Government wished

to make Umbulazi kinginstead of him. It should -be ~

rexnembered that bothsikota and Usulcunguiwerle still safe "

1:} in iistal, which fact might expleinlthe distorted rumour. I

Dunn's eldest son at this time was seriously ill and not

i expected to" live, so that he couldnot leave him, and

fl we are told that Cetywayo who'was ."by far the ablest of

Panda's manysons who proved to be a match for both (Natal:

3 and the Transvaal), (and had) fonmsny years successfully V

3 played the two European corinnunitiets‘ off against each

other" " " A’: -‘gi ‘ "1-' A
‘, V .-I/other.".....

1. Eezide p.23. a~rsA. , _ . ‘ " _ '

~ 2. Dunn op cit p.33. ‘ ‘

3. Vide p 14. supra. ' " '
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\ other''1 burst into tears cryirg, "if you can't

go, I will not; the wirits would not be with me if

you did not go." 2. Dunn's son recovered, however,

and Dunn returned to Cetvwayo when footh made a start.

. The muster was a grand sight. Dunn took up a

fiize ‘hrs:-3;-3x-;ith four greys, but Cetywayo ,fearing the

I ‘ ’ jeolcusics of his counsellors would not travel in it

_ . at first. .They got to their camping ground. on the

i ‘ Entcnjaneni early,_- the exact spot where a oecade .

2’ later Qetylwayo was to be re-established on his ’ .‘

% i _ I aaeturn from‘En.;:la.n.d' efter exile in the Cape as a

result of the Zulu of 1879. -'- ~on the north side‘ 1

‘I .of the Umfolosi at a Israel named Umhlambongwena,

3 » pool of the crocodile. ‘ About 10,000 Zulus,- armed

é only with sticks and shieldswere ranged about_the

lzrael. ~- _- - t

« 4 . Again there was rumour of war. Manythought

é that Uhsrsu and Usibebu were going to take Cetywayo «:

E {by force,:but,at the appointed time both Uhamu-and -

Us ibebu behaged themselves, ‘ and Masipula, Panda's.

e

<;‘nief.indune , proclaimed Cet._y7.vayo king. Everything

3 I was".nox_v res,dy_,for the Government nominee, Theophilus '3,

ehepstone, whose arrival was awaited with both ._ - .

3 misgivings andeagerness . 6 ' ' . . , 1- . i

Q . ‘ Eventually I-fir. Shepstone's escort rode over. I E

E _It included l.ewis Reynolds, a. friend ‘of Dunn's,‘ and

a. later sugar king; Mr. Bainss two officers, "

}: Major Clwke 7 and Capt. ‘Escombe. --Many-suspicious

Natives nodoubt crlaned their nooks-to see .Ut11‘oulazi,

E but as.soon.:-is the first tension Wes over,a day of

meeting was at last fixed upon for‘--the coronation. "

1. Uyo op cit p.60_.It ‘should. he noted _IJy:tis.l::ere very’

3 closely following Walker (vlalkerop cit p.358 I

§ 3: gfighgeogscitpfioigéraph of the trép in “Picture Post''(

i ’ - Vol 4.lIo 1. (July 8.l939).p 38. as well as one of

Dunn with zulua. bearing arms.“,(p.39)

3 4. Russell p.217. 5. Gibson "op cit p 124. A_

V: 6. Dunn Op cit pp.3Z3»42. 7. Later Sir Marshall

_ ’ ‘C1E1i‘3f8.’x3ht-'3 ficsident Commissioner 11113.:-1‘r*.?'a' _



' - (22) .

at a second meeting the subject of Amatonga

labour was broached by Shepstone. It was necessary

for Natal to be supplied with Tonga labour, and; in

particular, to appoint someone to see that the supply

1 4
.

was maintained. Cetywayo agreed that Amatonga

Natives on their way to and from Natal should be

allowed to travel through Zululand, and be authorised

Mr. John Dunn, his chief adviser, to arrange for resting

2

places to be provided for them . The Natal Govern-

‘ ment duly approved of him in this capacity at a .

salarypof £300 a year, an appointment he retained

, ‘ . , ' 3

H until the outbreak of the Zulu War in 1879 . _ - V

‘ I At a great hunt before the Coronation Dunn's

3 reputation as a shottist was revealed to the Zulu g

Q . 4
;

I nation ; then on Monday, September 1.1873, the I

M -
5 z

= ceremony and installation took place. The new laws .

i were proclaimed by Shepstone after an "audible and

1 hearty assent had been given to them, not by the King 1

i (as is erroneously believed); but by his brothers and g

§ the fiatives and Counsellors in reply to corresponding §

1 ' 6
. questions , . Thereupon Shepstone "safely planted the 3

; I symbol of royalty on Cetywayo's swarthy head " to: 5

E _ the roar of the full throated acclamations of 10,030 v

i ‘ Zulus. _ . ;. g = A 2 :2'. ‘i . p F

?
1 _ . ~

t
,4 . . 3 ‘_ /When;..~.u -

E l. Uys contends p.453 under 'de Kiewiet ' that the ~

‘ ' ‘Native Problem‘ was as much a question of labour :

f as of land.. ‘ _ ‘I1; ; .‘ _, -.

2 2. Russell p.28. N ; .

; 3° Dunn op cit p.48~49; p 53. vide preface page 2.

5 4. Dunn op cit. p.46.
- ;

§ 5. l.No indiscriminate shedding of blood. 1

1 2.fib Zulu to be condemned without open trial and 1

5 the public examination of_witnesses, and that.he

3 would have the right of appeal to the king. . E

{ 3.No Zulu life would be taken without the sanction

{ of the king even efter=such trial had taken place.

3 4.For minor crimes, a fine would be substitu ed

2 for the punishment of death (Gibson op cit.pp 123-‘

3 128; Dunn op cit pp 40-42; Russell op cit pp_2l7-

‘ 218) -

" 6.01137 p.15 Extracts from Blue Books quoted by J

J Bishop Coleneo (Digest p.363) _ .

¥ 7. Uys op cit p.84. ‘

~ 8. Russell p_2l7.
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. when the order desired was established,Cety*.-zayo V

I wished to examine the guns I Captain Escomhe caused

"‘ the peculiarity of the breech-loading to be explained

14 ‘ to him; he was surprised at the facility with which

an open cylinder could be closed for firing,"but

seemed c"-.:7.r;c.;.71:.:-:7.:‘;%.»3d. that they were not larger.“Thus .

Cetyivayo had the mysteries of breech-loading explained .

to him under the authority of Mr. Shepstone himself,

and under the same authority, it is stated, he was

a presented on this occasion with one or more breech- "

‘ loaders.“ 1 "l‘Ioreover, he seems to have appreciated

' the value of fire arms and of the later improvements

a made in their manufacture, like any European War ’

Minister. And he showed readiness to make "progress"

in this respect by arming‘ his men, as far as he could,

with breach-»loa.ders."2 Surely further proof is not

reqeaired to rid Dunn of the charge of gun-running X

The really mportant thing is that Cetywayo is ‘ ft‘

reviving the old "inilitary systemunder Shepntonfla ‘

very nose. W ' I‘ ‘ " ‘I " ‘ ‘ ° V

. What had Shepstone gained by crowning Cetywayo I l‘

He had given the Natal Government‘ hope of acquiring 3

3 a "safety valve“ for their surplus Native population 3 ;.

he had preserved Zululand for British enterprise and

E had put a chec1<_ on Boer encroachment4. He possibly

E hoped to controlthe trade of Delegoa Bay by controll-

ing, through Cetywayo, the chief of the area;‘ but I.

Q the Secretary of State gave him no support 5, and 1

E even had he so’ desired to help him, all plans were i

E scotched for the moment by thelangalibalele affair,

which "revealed in a flash the__ dangers '9: the , '
I: . - . /gum... _j

§ 1. Colenso — Digest p.363.‘ -

1: 2. ibid p. 533. _» ‘

f 3. Uys p.84:.

‘~ 4. ibid. p.85

L ' 5. For details Vide Uys pp 84-88.
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: gun-trede and the radical weakness of the Native I
g ' 1 .. .

3; policy in Natal " ‘ fl

§ Shepstone had hardly got back to Natal when

Q Cetywayo opened the "ball of killing without trial
at 2 I '

f which was usual in his reign" . There was the case

% of"the chlorodyne man" who drank Shepstone's
M ‘ p I . .

Q chlorodyne which he had stolen, much to his discoms '

fi .fiture, - and also Panda's old servant. Both
5 ~ » , , 3 '

§ these men were executed without trial. But before E.

‘T ‘ _ . _ _. . ~ _ ll.

g we condemn Cetywayo by our standards we should i

% . remember that at the time it was really believed '

‘ that “the Zuluis only tabs’ ruled by théirear of ,
. ‘ 4. _. - .. 4 V

E death, or the confiscation of his entire property ‘ , E

Q and a point often forgotten is that Cetywayo was §

§ regarded as a good king by the Zulus themselves . [

2 In 1879 the Zulu deputies said “No one had been put :

g to death without cause.‘ The utnost'forbe2ranca had ’
u . . . -,. . .. - 3
E been shown to those guilty of'witchcraft . It . ' l

g ' ‘might well be so}‘" '4’ ’ I H ”.‘‘H' 4. “ . .

. A - Cetywayo gave orders for all the late king's ¥
* - . F

g cattle to be collected and brought before him. It {
3' ' - « =3

/ ' was a wonderful sight‘ to behold the cattle come 4 ;.

§ pouring in day eftgr day. Dunn estimated their it

P number at 100 006 . The k ‘ selected some fancy- E
. ’ 8 5

E . coloured ones and gave many away as presents . f

9 ‘ . - .. ..x .. . ' '
i; K ‘ V I !Thenooooo :
, _ .. :

Q 1. walker op cit p. 358. For full details of the
3 ’ Langalibalele affair see Walker pp.358-360; Uys

., op cit p 88-lOl,eopecially p.102-104; Hattersley- {

* ‘ "More Annals of Natal.T Chap 7. especially p 243. “
5 2. Dunn op cit p.56. '

g 3. For details vide Dunn p 54, Gibson p.l27~l28. '

§ 4. Dunn op cit at p. 54. p
2 ' 5. Gibson pp 131-132. . '
§ 4 6. Gibson p.163. . ' '

g 7. Even at £5 a head it_mad§ Cetywayo a very rich man.§

E 8. Dllnnn Do 56. I, A ',l.:,._:.'“' ‘. .‘_. _t H t

E _ ‘ ..
3 ' 4 . _
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Then the Natal Land and Colonization Company

‘ fir

‘AA - asked Dunn to‘ try and secure for them a tract of ‘

Zululand. At a meeting at which Dunn was able to '

V arra:2@;e,t‘t_1,e‘great Umnyamana, one of Cetywayo's chief
wt Q .

1; advisers said ~ "Our land is our own;' we don't like

ipartingwith it; besides we afraid of you white

men. If we give you a piece for more than one to live

on they will want more and so on until they get the

whole, and we will have to wander about as if we had 1

‘ a ' 4 . . . 4 . ., 4 .. . ‘

E no land.’ It is well with you personally (Dunn). You

are living with us, - hut we don't know the other

whitemen " _. This ended the land scheme.’

The ancient‘ custom on the accession of 'a king had

‘§ been the_ washing of spears in the blood of some

neighbouring tribe. Cetywayo be-thought himself of :

av _ A _ ‘ . , I A

this tradition and who better than the Swazis as a

fitting victim "I" But first he must get the" consent

of the Boers. when in May, 1875, he asked them to

countenance his ritual their 15resident Burgers was .

' overseas ‘trying to raise a loan for his Delagoa. ' h

“ ' ‘ . . '

I /_ Railway, but the Transvaal Executive under Joubez-t‘.

refused to countenance such‘ a thing; The ‘fact that I 4

lg Cetywayo asicedthe Boers fox ;oermission,w'embold-

1;‘ ‘ ened them to proclaim. on 1.-SsyL25 , a new ’boundary‘

Q ‘oetween the Republic and Zululand; ‘actually it was the

old one laid -down in the Treaty ofwaaihoelc. . Little .

9? wonder that Cetywayo was ‘a.nnojred' at the ‘well-intended‘

ii measures of Joubert, who now appointed a commission

E to register land claims, which gave out all the Blood

‘ i H‘ 7.’ “" b ‘ ‘‘/River.‘...

1-CE‘ de Riewiet.p.l92. - ~, ‘ ' ' -

1: . 2.Ma:-sipula had died,naturally,gust after Cet¥wayo's ‘

K coronation. Umnyarnana was e mi’ of the Eu elezi.

;‘ - 3.Dunn op cit p. 5?.

E 4.!\. straight line running from where the Po cola.RiverUs
“ cuts through the Lebombo Mountains via "Choenj iesnek"

. past the head waters of the White Umfolosi and

3 Asseg;ai's_Kloof_to a point near Rorke's Drift on the
1: Buffalo R1ver(Staatscourant Vol lZVIII.No 581 of Jun:
;_ 9.1875). Vide Walker. Historical Atlas p.15 “

5.U s o cit n.120. '
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2 River Territory in farms and tried to tax the 15,000

Zulus living in it .1 Then , as a‘ counter stroke to

Shepstone, Joubert hurried with an awe-'-inspiring

commando of 350 picked men to. the ‘Swazi Great Place

' and crowned the 17 year old iImbandine2, over whom

Cetywayo claimed suzerainty, King of the Swazis, and

induced him to sign a treaty/Ekrielglher hg understood it

- A or not , made him a Transvaal subject . ‘

p Q An event now took place outside Zululand which

E ' may be regard‘ as one of the greatest single events in

Zulu history: In July, 1875, the French President

« A Macmahon,‘ awarded Portugal ;"a.ll and more than she had

asked for at Delagoa.Bay, and though Great Britain ,

2 _‘ secured a promise that the bay should not be ‘sold to

a third party, the Transvaal was at last sure of a

-non=»British port is soon as the"fever belt could be

traversed safely . ‘ Hereyliesthe solution to

Republic history and politics;' at lastra way was free

to the see, but there was a difficulty- a railway had

(f to be built through the fever-laden area. This the

/_ Republic failed to do immediately,- with the result

once more Zululand , with its possible harbours at

. St Lucia Lake‘, Sordwana Bay and Kosi Bay, becane the-

’ object of Transvaal pretensions. . . ' ' '

if We have noted above that Burgers was in Europe

trying to raise money for the Railway. ‘Joubert,

uncannily eware,it seemed,.that his endeavours would

I prove abortive, prosecuted his old scheme and sent

Cetywayo a kind of ultimatum in which he"skiln.1lly

4 I introduced an allegation of rights between two

‘ assertions of grievances". he regretted that .

. T " A _ '" /Umbandine.....

1° i=iaJ.l:er op cit p.366. The labour problem gain I

i 2. lfsxvazi had died in 1868 and his‘ heir,Ludotga in 1874

’ (Year Book of U.S.A. No 4 (1910-1920) p.965. ‘

' 3. ibid: Uys op cit p.121: Walker op cit p.166.

4. Walker p. 366.
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U:_-tbandine should still have cause to connglain against

C'».?‘;‘,;.".'.-‘:2._=,'o,' 6.932.115-.o‘:1 an assurance thvat. he would respect '

the new bourrlery, (which incidentally the I-Z-ulus had been , ‘

. ' oz-dc:-crl by their zzmg to 91:11 downfland reminded him of 1

his repcafiezi 1"ai1v.ro to oxtx-iad'J.te Republican criminals. ‘

. 2-lie failure to comply would 2 Ifesult in Joubert "eatizgrg ;

hiL2u§_>" I

Cotywa;/oh now tcrned _?.o'E‘»h'ep|s.ton-e and caused Donn

to w:'i'i;c ‘co. shortly a£'ter't.he 3rd April, 1876. In

tzge leizer he deznziéd ‘tho:-light. of claim to mrther land =

by_ the Boerc, on tho Nat.1on"and asked for permission I

to =,'.vz3_<3h-his spoa:-ogclaiminzg that "the Amaswazl were 1‘, ;

fO3_‘;!-1£‘X‘ly our poo;o1e as Bolouza (fntherof Mswnz13II) their

. great. original chief.‘ was one of Chaka'a people. but the §

/«.:§:z-zswazi are now claimed ‘by the Boers‘ ". 4 The Lieutenant-E I

Goveruoz' of Natal eotiroly disapproved of bio oanguinary £

' c:-speditioo, énd Cetvsayo a§:cquioscc'-:c‘1'.5 an the 26th April, - If

. 1876, 3-‘reai<3<—:n’c Burgers, retained from Europe; wrote to S

A Cety‘;';5\yo him to hold a. meetzhxz-; who:-eAthey_wouJx1 :

-/ discuss the boundéry am’! thenlbeacon’ 1; off in ~ 1

interests of yeace 6, ‘out‘before‘ariy‘{h:1ng could be donc\ g

the Transvaal was icvolved in the Sel'<u.kuni‘fimbrAogl1o; ‘
\

.I—‘-‘resident Iius.-gore ‘led 1,390 Boecs supported by 3,400“ ‘ K

. z.
Swazi 2-.'a:riors into the Eapedi Chi:ef's location ._ I

Eaeszukmi/l;'?2%usod to pay his taxes ‘or givo op lacd -.v'r.x1ch. "

the Republic clamad as pat of the.S§:eai1 concessign of I

1816 or to allow‘pI'Osb+:cto'1.‘s 't.o“enter his valleys,

. l. Dunmpage 128. ’ it . - »‘ I

9- Uys. page 126. A " ' 5 ' A U ' 3* 1

:3. Vide Union Year‘ Book,No 4, 32,964 for thelreasons
_ for this _ . _ ‘ 1 4

4. Dung lettcr quoted :;Ln i’ul_l_p.l37 ff. ‘E ‘ ‘ ,
5. Uys p.127, Dunn pp o6-57. I . c

6. Dunn. p. 132. , . < _ I < 4 E
7. Uy5p.202. ~ ~ » ' '_ M 5
8. Vloucer p. 369; de Kiewiet p.100. ' ‘ ' ‘

' ‘ . x
. 3
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Burgers scored an initial succeea, but failed to

asaaiet the Svaazis, who not. only regarded the Boers

. cowards, but also resented their confiScéti'n'g

A the cattle they had had the good fortune to capture;

in high dudgeon, they returned home as did the ‘I

cormnamrloes who distrusted Burgers. “In the final ',

analysis the failure of the expedifiion was the . ‘

1‘ailure to cagture Native cat.t1e". ‘Cetyvlayo closely ‘_

' watched events, began to mobilise his regiments ‘

at‘ Dnclini and "sent. the Swazi, Umbeline, ‘to raid '

little clans in the eastern Transvaal" 2,. one of I

> which was the S'}vazie. . ‘U;/5 contemia that if k

. Ce’cyv:ayo did not ‘receive a hint. from Pietermaritzburg: i

to move against. Umbandine, it is "almost certain

‘ that be was inspired by that polygamous Anglo-Mu, I

. John Dunn, - that is. if thegiplomatic Cetywnyo had ’}

stood in need of inspiration. Iiys boses his ‘

aasewcion on the letter that Dunn wrote to Shepstone 1

(April 2c, 1876) 4', but it its quite clear from M

has been said above that Cetyweyo was merely‘ 1

observing a custom of his tribe by wash:Lng his f

spears. we do not deny that this is a horrible

custom, comparable with say, auttee, but that is

to take sides with a moral iesue. It would have 5

'i'.aZ—£en more than Dunn to alter an established custom. “

If we may believe Dunn. Cet.y~.=:ayo did nob know or ‘ I

Umboline'e raid upon the Swazis until after it was

over, but when he learned ‘that, Sokukuni had not.

‘ been defeated, he was prepared to act in concert.

/with..." R

1. do Eiewiet. p.131. _ ' -‘ ; 1

2. 12.369; Uys 9.205. ‘ . 1

to above vide p.§§.(The dates do not 2“ '

tally because Isurm composed the letter after

/:.pril). .

5. Later when Cetyaayo is dead Dinizulu .1115 son

wishes to -e:a:.h his spears.
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1 - ‘ J

._ with that chief against the Boers. ,

Before this happened peace with Sekukuni was ~' I
. ' 2 1

formally concluded on February 15, 1877 . - - f

. ' 2 +
The upshot of the whole affair was two-fold; it L

resulted in the annexation of the Tramsvaal; and ;
. 3 '

‘ Cetywayo, who bed revived the military machine ‘

' of the Zulus, wondered if Sekukuni had been ao"r A ;
. . ‘_ H . 2-, ‘ :

' successful what could not he perform against the ? ;

‘ ' 4 , " ', , ‘, ~'. '1' I

ever-encroaching Boers 2 4‘ "' _ ~ 4 H'}

‘ - _;-‘___;_-;__;4 ‘¢!f?=..‘. .>‘.‘ * ER '

. _ > 3 ; .= ";.:;" '- .' '. .,. _ - ._ 54 -3

' 1. Digest pp 63.0-631.~-»_ ' -.3 . , C ‘ §_
2. Uys. p. 212.. . .- M I ‘--. -. J

3. . For a full definition of the Zulu war machgne _ . t

'. vide Stuart "History of the Zulu Rebellion; ‘: f

1906" Chap. IV.. = .4 . - ' }

_ . I ‘ if ‘-, . -$:,?i£ $'mcf;giwn~E V. J: ::j:- { E
~ . _ . < - ‘ . p: ; . _ . 1.4 H. o .~ . E '_ ;

. ~ ' _ _: W -_A_ ,::_g~.,=. -3‘ : EX; .

_. l _ I ~‘ -5"‘: \‘*f.r ~" _ " : ‘

I ‘ l ' ‘ ‘ . ;1~"-.'.\I“ .'.\ '." wf [- “

' . ‘. , ..~» J, I .. V‘. ..' .:«..,_’

'- v . ' A, ~ “ .1" w. . —‘ ‘ \‘I ‘r‘: ~ . ‘:1’ 1

' ' ‘ ‘ '-—" . 7"‘ V *.“"'; :."« a;' '‘

. m.“ ; . , , . *. ,,A. i f

: .'_. “ :-n-' = “..-*u. f ‘

. I .. —.l_‘ E
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Chanterr III. A ’ ' V ' ‘

.3“ ‘ Ehe ReneTade.’:'. ‘ it I " ‘

The parlous state of affairs in the Transvaal ‘

3-l«’«tI‘E!’-‘C1 the British Cabinet 9. Native chief, _

Sekukuni, had defied the Transvaal Government, and the W

latter had been unable to punish him; 9. special war !‘j

tax had been voted without the slightest hope of its sv‘

collected; President Burgers had been unable L

i to raise a third of the necessary loan for the Delagoa

#1 Bay railway; the Cape Commerial Bank demanded repayment

% of its loans to the Transvaal; officials were going “~

$ ‘. unpaid; the President was unpopular; the Transvaal-

, Zulu boundary dispute was unsettled and Cetyweyo, in if

‘ any arxgry mood, was likely to attack the Boers. Lord

Carnervon, The Colonial Secretary, thereupon, commiseion-

_ ed the newly lmightediheophilus Shepstone, then in

England, to annex the Transvaal by the wish of the people

if possible; _if not, to annex in time-’-honoured fashion. ‘E

. He then asked Sir Bartle Frere, a tried Indian officer,

to go out to the Cape as High Commiss ioner ,4 to federate

% South Africa andthereafter to repair: as its first 3-

% Governor Generel, F2-ere‘. ‘igno"re.nt,of Sh’epston'el-°» _ ,

mission assented. H: '_ .~ _'1 A .- ; '_

- Sir‘ Theophilus Shepsto'ne"e.rrived at. Capetown, I i

3 ' I “with the Republic's death¥\rqarreLzit'.in his-pocket, " 2

E and proceededfirst to Pieltermariteburg to try to take

{ the pulse of Cetywayo. ‘To do flha tried to get

‘:3 into touch with Dunn, to hear firsftshand what was going

on at Ondini. Unfortunateiy',’he-inissed him, and the.

news be gleaned from a ‘M1'.‘.Nuxmw.%n altthat time was

‘ living with Uhainu was to the“. effectthat Cetyivayo was *

. _ ‘ M‘ ‘ ‘l ‘ /determined...“

1. Wallcer pf see-370; Uys ppZ.5-2l9. -
2. Uys p.219. 4 , - . .
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determined to get the "Disputed Territory‘; and would not

‘ accept any modification of his boundary 1. To enforce

his rights he was collecting his impis at Ondini, but

' under the cloak of the celebration of the solemn .'

ceremony of the First-fruits, a. festival which marks the ‘

beginning of the Zulu year andvfells era‘ the end of

if A December or the beginning Jlanuaryrwhen allnthe 4

g _. people ‘assemble at the'king.'s kraal and none may eat 3,

E of the new fruits until after the eolemnities; then,

E everyohe feasts and dances.'2," . _ _

E. It was felt that Cetyweyo's:celibate warriors 3;

would not only ‘dance but would also "xjash their spears‘

:3 either in the<Ar:aswazi ornthe Boers. M . H I is

g ‘Then on December_ 23., 1878, Shepstone saw_e note

3,3 written By’ Dunn to a menu in Natal which eaid, * I've

i had a long talk with Cetfxveyoend he has gone on so long ’

without the intervention of the English Government, 1“

i a1tho‘ughk-equeated to ‘do. so: s'e\|re_rAal ‘times, he will allow

i 4 .'m:-mi-,e3r‘s to take their cooree,'especia11y as he has‘; V .

Si . heard aboutihe movensaidifcxohhbe ‘taken by the British V

Government in the‘ Trans'veal.‘- ' Cety\v'ayo ‘is, however, \

determined to hold th.e‘houndery_-a_‘ga.inst the lhxtch" !

g I This information decided Sheostone ‘that.’ Cetyvaayo

had given up the idea of 'eetix:.;'up" the Amaswazi for" E‘

punislumg the Boers; so onthe. December he left I _

1 Pietermaritzburg to annex the Irenevaal. He was. .

followed‘ by his I 'trojan horse '-“,"c;ox;:prisirxg in particular ?

the 3rd Buffs. The troops were to“-. put down the Zulus ;

as well as to; intimidate the Boers... and for this reason

g . were at first marched only ‘as es ‘Newcastle in order 1

_ ‘ not to. rouse suspgcionl
mihda ofifither lsoers

or of Cetywoyoi ' ' "W. ./ ‘Z’ i ‘ “
I ' '~ ’« Quad ,..-‘. ;.. ‘

« 1. we pp 220-2121. ‘ ‘ ‘

g; 2. Frazer "Golden Bough" ‘p._46'Z;".;"_;: - ‘ '

:' 3. Uys pp 222-223. .' W"-“_ ‘ ‘ '
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One: the annexation of the Transvaal was "

accomplished -- and this was partly possible owing to . .

transhumance as the fighting men had gone to the low

> veld -with the approach of winter, - 2 the most important

‘ question of the day was the boundary dispute. Hitherto, -

§hepstone had supported Cetywayo in his claim to the ‘ ' I

hlood River Territory, but now that he we.s_administretor ;‘

of the Transvaal, his opinions underwenhtuha complete I |

change; He examined the documents of nearly twenty

veers of dispute and compromise in the "one-sided archives" ‘ 1

' at z‘-retoria; for the first time he was horrified at the i‘ ‘

desolation of the farmeteads‘ 1:1 the disputed area, -one 3;

perhaps most of‘ all, he was mortified at the disrespect-

fultone and overbearing manner assnmedwhy the‘ King‘: ‘

~ iniifinas towards the British’Government.. . Fort,',1.’ied with

, the legality of the iaoer; claim he non considered it his ‘

dutv “to protect‘ a civilised settlement against a brutal ‘,

invasion of estahlished rights " 3 A W 4' . . _ E

It was about this time that Bishop.Co1enso began ;"

to interest himself in Cetywayo 's affairs. His Lordship g

I ‘ was no hellw-fire missionary}; He had been resgovmible for

the unhappy Langalibale1e'e' removal from Robben\1[.'sland' ‘I 1‘

to the K-.v1ainla.nd% His interest in Cetywla,yo_v.-‘ms or n ’ K7 ;

similar nature, - "to look into the blots and stains of . Q‘ !

right", -= but, if we may believe Dunn, Colenso tried to . L

insinuate himself into Cetywayo's counselend supplant

' Shepstone. _ I . . ‘

‘ It appears that ‘the King sent for Dunn to read

a letter surporting to have come from the Natal Govern-

went. On his handing him the supposed dispatch he was ‘

\ surprised to find it to be an appointment of a'Dr.Smith ;,

‘ and Mr. Colenso to act for the king as his agents in all

diplomatic affairs connected with the Colonial Government. V

I _ ‘ ‘ ‘ /On. . . .. .

1. 12th April, 1877. .

_‘o%‘d?L8g.gf§:)§?Ode Kiewiet p.219:

Gibson i>.1§2-144. 34 Vuk i,ol»o- }o5k [w mu‘m'm~-7-

_' - Fe. Vlalker o.3oO-. U‘JS—DD9l~lO4.- , T, ____fi
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. "On my saying to him, "this is no message, where is the F

letter '2 ' thinking there was a mistake, he said that

it Wm the only one. I then told him the purport of

' the document, and at the same time asking him who these

I men were he had appointed. His answer was ‘I am the

same as you; I don't know them, or anything written ‘. v

on that paper; the words are not mine. " He then sent _‘

for the messengers (his own, who had returned to him)

and on their arrival he asked them the meaning of what i

was in the letter they had hrought. The answer was,

‘Yes, we delivered the ‘King's message as it was given

. to us, but on‘ going to Sobantu (Bishop Colenso) he

advised us tcfmeke.‘ 'a statement, and as we thought it

was for the good of our king we did so; ‘Sobantu further 5'

stating that if the king listened to the Inhlwena of X. ,"

' Sonzica (meaning; the little house of Shepstone) he ‘

would go astray as they (the Shepstones) had to leave

‘the Aznaxosa country for having ‘got’ the Amaxosa into _ - " }

trouble with the whites, “and they would ‘treat cetywayo

' lilzewise unless he appointed some white men to look I

after his interest with the Government of Natal,‘' A \‘

proposing the before-named gentlemen to be such Agente." ‘

Dunn advised Cetyvzayo against such a mistake and the

mug agreed. ‘ Hot lorxgefterwards Mr, ‘Colenso came into E

Zululand to get. an explanation frfom Cetywsyo and to ' w

claim certain expenses tolwhich he thought himself ' y: g

entitled in consequence of an appointment. On arriving “! %

' at Amahlahatini he‘ took up his quarters with Mr. muums,’

a trader; andone morning he’ came‘ over to my camp and .

‘ ' explained his missionto me, requesting me to assist 7

- - him in his recovery from Cetywayo , ‘the sum of £500, a

sum he said he felt he was entitled to. 1 knowing the J_ g

circumstances tried to persuade him that he was wrong A

and that there was small problabilitvof his getting

redress; at the same time declining to intercede for .

-
/him. . . . . ,
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1 . - _ "
him. It is quite easy to see, if Dunn be correct, 5

that there would, in future, be no love lost between :

him and Col/2./enso.‘ 2 . ‘ ‘ .‘

. one thing is certain, Cetywayo was furious at

Shcpstonefls volto face and when the latter attempted

’ to a.rrange a settlement of the dispute and with that

\ intent proceeded towards the Zulu frontier on the 3'

' Blood River, Cetyv;a£m refused to discuss the matter

and demanded the immedieto cession of the land in l

‘ dispute. Shepstone concluded that war was imminent.

and found Sir‘ Bartle Frero ready.to believe him- ' 1

,
Sir Iienry Bulwer, the Lieutenant -Governor of Natal, w

' however, c'ould'not or would not, follow Shepstone's ._

reesonzing,»-'and suggested’as'a. way out of the impasse’

that a commission should make an enquiry into the ‘ii

@ rival claims;"that both the Transvaal Government and

the .'./talus should abide by ‘the decision, while the

final avzard lay with Sir‘ Bartle Frere.2 Cetywayo was,

at this moment, troubled by internal strifelxetween

his old warriors and his young ones, both being Jealous 1‘

"of the’ othez"3anc1 so agreed to..».‘ .. Bulwer‘s.~‘ suggestion. ‘ii A

' Meanwliile Sekukuni had risenronce more at “ - ' “y

Cetgrx-iato's instigationé and a British Expedition under ‘

Colonel Rowlands sent against him in 1878 met with

‘ the same‘ fate as Burgor's, and it was not until the E

_ ‘ end of 1879;‘ a matter of twenty months, when a renewed E

- attack of 1800 men under the command of Sir Garnet ‘-5

'-fiolseley ‘aided by‘ 5,000 Amaswazi‘ that the chief was

‘ c:.=.ptured.‘;'. He was talcemto '-Pretoria and afterwards g3

‘ released." can his return to his own country_he was

murdered by one of his minor chiefs. '5 2 . ' '.‘

' 3 . , ‘/The.... I
l. ‘.‘.’-a-Llee—r-—-*3;-3—’FS. DUNN P 60 e1 seqr. . _ ‘ “ ' ‘

2. Russell 5: 229: Talker p 378. ’

3. Details of this-Gibson _.Chap 13. _ ;4__ 3

4. Gibson p. 145-146. 4 ' ‘ ‘ ' ' » T

5. do Kiewiet p.232; Uys p.250: Russell p.227; Gibson

p.145-146. _ ‘
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' The Commission was appointed in Fe‘oruary,l878, but :1

before it reported an incident occurred which antagonised

the 1-‘éulus: May was the usual month for the Boers to1 .

~ move their flocks to warmer pasmrves. ‘ Their movement

. shortage of

into Zululand in 1873, a year of unusual/grass and water,

particularly aggrievedthe Border Zulus, and Cetywayo -

towards the end of September notified the German Settlers f

about Luneberg to"le-ave their farms and homesteads as W

the lands were required for grazing purposes for the ' “ :. ‘

['4'
King's cattle which were being eentup from Zululand; g F

also the garden grounds were required; that as the winter .,

was now over and there was plenty of young grass to be I.’

found at the .Vaal River for stock, they (the Germans) were it

. 2 3 ‘,- 1

_ required to go away" . War talk grew more insistent »

4 - ‘I 1

and the farmers laagered The orderawas never put into ;

effect but a military force hadxto be placed thero to »

5 I L

Protect the farmers. -' "5 .-'. a . ,‘ ‘. ‘Tl ‘\
. . g, y

The English, German and Norwegian Missionaries, who ' E
I .‘

' had settled in Zululand with the permisa ion of Panda .

ii ‘
had also been told that Cetywayo had "thrown them off",_k ii: “

meaning that he would no longer protect them, regarding .\‘\, .

a Christian I-Iative as a good Zulu lost.» The Missionaries‘
4 .. 3

were advised by Shepstone to quitbthe land and they left - ' M
\6

I

- in Key . Dunn ‘wrote to tho'Aborigines' Protection .

7 E

Society in England telling them that war was imminent "
8 = '

because of the land claims of.the Boers .2” 1 -‘--'..7‘\

Frere revealed in a letter to the'=new Colonial L:

. Secretary, Sir Michael Hicks Beach‘, what would be his -.

attitude to the report when it came; he did not see “

/ ‘ ‘ I _~." .. ' "v 71 !h°woao;‘0“p M‘ ‘V

l. Vide p.14 supra. - ‘-

2. Gibson p.155. -. " .. ; ~- _ .. 53 f

3. dc Kiewiet pp.222-224. : :1 I

4. Vialker p.378. .. .i ' . ‘ 3 I

5. Gibson p.156 . _ _ H I ‘A. up

-6. Gibson pp.l4'7-14.8. ‘ ' - ‘ A . , f

7. "which ecclesiastical machinery Colenso was instrume‘n- '

tal in e>:humin‘g during the Largalebalele a£fair"Uys... I

p.9l=-92. . ..
8. Dunn Notes p.67. ’
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“ how the Zulu claims could be admitted without the .'

“ Transvaal giving up portions of territory which for 3

H’ years had unquestionably belonged to them; also it .

would be inconsistent with the pledges given by Sir

Theophilusishepstone to "the inhabitants of the

' Transvaal that on taking them over the British ‘

Government would maintain the integrity of the Boer

state. Concessions would not make the frontier any

% more secure: Cetywayo must be destroyed, whatever the .

original or legal rights of the zulus; the Settlers

were there on the frontier, and were entitled to be

g ‘protected. "south African -policy we]:-uld ill be

§ served by an expulsion of the Boers " ‘ < '

E To the perpetual’ question of responsibility for’

the Zulu war there can be.no simple answer. Frere's :4

. critics have made him the scapegoat; his apologists

' have absolved him of all serious blame." It would

i '_ appear that he was merely a willing instrument: when ‘ 1

Shepstone was in Natal service he desired Zululand as

Q a “safety valve‘ for Natal Natives to thedetriment of

' the aspirations of‘the Boers seeking anindependent

3 republic with an outlet to, the sea: now that the

' Transvaal was British territory the aims of the two . gt

European countries had commingled but both were . ‘w

insistent in their demands for Zululand, and instead

of each tryingto oust the other and getting the land

for itself they had united to share the prey. 'Frere 3 y

under these circumstances was merely bringing the "

problem to its logical conclusion. - « ' l

' The Commission handed in its report in June .1878.‘ -

and its finding was that "the evidence shows that this “ H

so-called ‘disputed territory‘ has never been occupied

by the Boers, but has always been inhabited by the .

’ _ /Border'....\‘

1.de Ricwiet p. 224. ' . ' '
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Border clans, who had never inoved their kreals, and .. '

the only use ever made of the land by the Boers hm

% been for grazing purposes, which in itself proves

‘ l. . ., .
§ :1o’chirg" . ' ' " ' ' ' “
g 2

The Commission therefore awarded the Zulu) this land.

é ‘ ' The Report reached Frere‘ at‘ the Cape in July for .

his award. He‘ quickly seized upon the weakness of thg ,
It . ‘ , :3

_. Cormissiorfle finding; ‘there were at least three areas ; ‘

the report only dealt with one. ‘There wee firstof all g5

5.3 the area of lindisputsble Boer settlement.’ In the .

E5 district of Utrecht, for exaxnpllertho Boers were too ‘
ff‘ . . ' . .‘ :1

‘g firmly established to be evicted. Then there was an I.

indeterminate region. of intermingled white ‘and black

settlement round the teen ofluneberg, for example, and
h . ‘ I . - * It

i finally, the area in which there were many claims but

few Europeans. ”:-r.‘was‘ with this area that the” 3
.1 i . _ _ «

Commission had primarily concerned itself. The

3 . ‘disputed territory‘ of the ‘report. wiles not the entiro '

1 _ . . ‘ - :

‘gf Transvaal-Zulu border, but only the Blood River ' _, lg"

$ . ~ . 4 . . .. - - . '- . t’
3 . territory. Had the Commissioncovered the entire ‘

frontiefline its finding must necessarily have been\ ‘

g - less severe.‘ As it was, it was too inflexible, and 5

V its execution. sans'phra”se', would be too direct‘ an 1‘ f.
i . ‘ . > _ I . ~ V. " 9

affront to the Boers and too signal a victory for the

iii‘ Natives. The British Government ‘had ‘promised the‘ "

Trans'va.a1 a secure frontier and protection against

‘v . ’ . , 2' ' {‘

Q M»/gj_x_re aggression. That promise must be kept, but to _

communicate that fact to the mine would ‘mean war, .

’ Frere therefore resorted to the expedient of delay in %;:

his award until war preparation {was complete, and he .

was assured that the result of thatwar would be in""‘ 1;

u A ' - '

3 his favour. 1 y‘ ,; -
. ‘ _. ' "‘ , - .‘ 6-3“ 5;

1. 5.'uoted_de Kiewiet p.225. ' V
‘I 2. Gibson p.152. ‘ - ‘

3. Vida walker, map facing p.378. -

de Kiewiet pp 223-227. .
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1 M f
The contents of the report soon leaked out and ‘ F

when Cetywayo learned thet much of the Boer evidence ._ E

‘ had been thrown aside and thet he had been given more . L

than he asked, he reasoned, hauing so much he should [

have all. He built. a kraal in the-Blood River territory,-

a fiulu method of indicating ownership of land, - for an ”

Induna to rule the Zulus living alongside the 75 Boer : t

. homesteadsg he followed this up by building another §% E

north of the Pongola near the Germen settiere at if’

, ‘ ~ . ' .> . _ ;f. I

Luneberg.. He was told that he was Jumping to conclusknsfifl t

~ A and that the final award had yet to be made. he. with--
.

‘ drew the men, but not before the farmers had laagered. ; l

Shepetone had asked for trooos and Commodore Sullivan W

had examined the fiulu coest in August for the possible F ;

‘ 2 . ' . 2' ‘

landing of troops and army stores . ' r
.- «. ~1»< unfaithful b

_ Then without his knowledge two/wives of Sirayo, one 3 I

of Cetywayo's counsellors, whose kraals were near ‘ “' “ }

Rorkees Drift, fled across the Buffelo River in July T , % L

1878 and were seized on Natal eoil by Sirayo'a three }{ E

_ sons Eehlokazulu; inkumbokezulu and Tyckwana, aided by‘ ii a

some thirty werriors, and were carried back into ,f'_

Zululand where they were shotf’ Bulwer demanded that X 4 -

the murderere should be handed over; but Cetywayo, who 2; i
. . . 2 . . .‘~‘ .. r 3 f 1

‘had previously had such a one returned upon his hands , h

sent a perfunctory offer of compensation and his regrets J .

,. _'. .’.a‘ ‘___ ;,

for this 'boyish excess’ . " 5!

’ _Frere reached Durhan by the R.h.S. “Cour1and" on Q ‘
4.. ‘ . ~ , _ . I.

the 23rd September, 1878. He found the colony in the fi -

. ‘ - . .‘ ‘F

grip of a violent war scare; Cetywayo being regarded ' L; {

fl‘ _ . ._:v . . , n I

, as a Dingaen redivivus. He took a serious view of F E

' " ' j_ A ' /t.he..... T25‘ I

1. de I?.iewiet.'p.230. < « 2; _ E; i

2. ibid p.227: Walker p.378. ‘ :' §

3. walker 378. Digest p. »681.~' « o ,3 5°:
4. Gibson pp.l49-l5l:_Wa1kar p.378-379;de Riewiat Q i

p. 227: Russell p.239. ' . ~, ‘ ’ g

. 2

- E

.
§ V
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the military kraals built in the blood River Territory ‘ $

and close to the settlement of Lnneberg. Even nore E :

’ seriously did he regard the Sirsyo affair and insisted on _

A having the murderers and A fine; ‘Seknkun1'was still ;

unsubsued; Frere concluded that Cetywayo was acting in A. ,

bad faith and that Natal was in imminent danger. It must

be remembered that Frere was a soldier, and “to the‘ 3

professional soldier there is a war on every poorly '

defended frontier“. Months previously heazibmitted plans 2

for an invasion of Zulnland, but Carnarvon hed forbidden P

a Zulu war; VHie successor; Hicks Eeach, did not have ' $

Carnarvon‘s original interest in the éffairs or South A W

Africa; his unfamiliarity with ‘South mém inclined him

to put his faith in the men on the spot. For the nonco fl

South Africa was not being ruled by Downing 5treet,a1though\ fl ‘

1.; would appear that the vacillating colonial Office almost

. wished for a war . Then in October Cetywayo once more =

unleashed his 'dog' Umbelini who ettacked some four or . ' am 3

five Swazi kraa1e2. Messengers were now constantly passing § 3

between Cetywayo and the Government, and resorts were made H‘ ‘

that troops were collecting in Natel 3;‘ Cetywayo sent for] i! ‘

‘ Dunn and asked him to write'an angry letter’ which he ii 5

refused to do as he now plainly ssh thet it was his intentionfi

.to quarrel with the English; for all this while he had been %

calling up his soldiers and marshellingfithemti Cstvwayo" E

then. wished toget ‘rid .of~Dun.n and plainly told him to go

home, but Dunn waited until Umnyenana} Uhamu 4and Usibebu %

‘ arrived, when he told these Indunes that he would not write fl

letters to the Metal Government as long as Sirayo and.’ ' . ;e

Z Rabanina advised Cetywayo. "x-k:Ahl ‘i h :;j‘_ 3

' ' A by ‘ H /The..... . V
l.de Riewiet p 227: Walker p 378.-_ ,4 ‘ ,

P 756‘ a‘::§::sp3;'%e::°:°:::;:s:“:c::::b;;%‘:°:¢::*; 9:
for exact dates. A ‘ j

2:gfi::°gi§.i§E know that'Uhema had firomised to remain
neutral in the event of war. _
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The next day Dunn was warned to fly, but he confronted ' %

Cetywayo who was ashamed and asked Dunn to stay, but he

‘ refused.’ "No" he said "I now can go, as I know {hat no one 4 E

will blamo me if anything goes wrom bet§wee_nyou and the .

' English" 7. That same evening Dunn bid Cetywayo farewell. _ '

The King tried to persuac1e.l'1im.t,o stay ‘and. said!" I am no

child; I see the 32-nglish wish to haveymy country; but if

they come I will fight 32 "__2 Efzentuallyhe gave Dunn . I

permission to leave the country 3. ‘r '

on reaching home Dunn ‘sent several messengers to the ‘ ‘:1. E

King to ‘try to per-_sua.de him: to desist from war. Little did

Dunn know _’c.ha’r. F:-‘ere hgad ds§srmined_ upon war, __although he :

1.r_rlew that troops were belling vmassed‘ in Natal,-1-and were on

their way to the border, ‘ ._ I I “ ’ .

I-‘rere 'ne.dI‘kept tho :n1digés_;tible reportfof the Boundary t

A Comm-ission for nearly ‘six montils. [Now ., ‘in December‘, when A

he lvaslfully Prepared for x~{ar,‘he'}:1°auk]e-ad his alvard and

accompany i’c.s pro.mulg§aLtio_n_lg1i£h'.:a_ln> ultiznainmrto Cetywayo )

whz‘-.ch'he lgllaw he could not £:ul1f.1l._ The mack had been

' ca-relfully A planned ‘to avoid the winter and‘t'o t_ake place

during summon, lnormallygjtno rniny ‘season,’ there would

be wa"ceI' snd pasture fob:-‘the lindispensable‘ draught animals; :

It would nlso be‘ the season Jusich before;-‘the jharvest when ‘

Ce‘-;3rwayo z-night find it, difficult to oollect an army‘ and ' V

keep it injhe field; and Unimu, ,<:etywayo's‘ brother, had J

promised to remain neutral. 7. ' « f ‘ D

_ All was now rea‘dy.f‘or_jf..he fanxous meeting at the‘

Tugela Drift yoverloolcing what was aftervzards called Fort

4 Pearson. Here, on 11th December, 1878, representatives from

, the Governor and Cs tywayo met... .Dunn was invited to be ~

present by both sides and tho was pronounced assigning [

the boundary izhat the commisaioninnd recommended. ,. It

1. Dunn p.73.
,

-2. ibid.p.74. , y . 3 « - ‘ -~ }

3. Col.Spar~ks to me July 1939. ,_ '. ‘;

4. de Kievliet p 231: walker p.38D':.Gi’oaon p.154-155,
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Half an hour after its delivery the king's '

_ deputies were called together and an Ultimatum

demanding compensation for the dispossessed farmers, ’

» the handing; over of the sons of Sirayo and Umbelini, '

reparations for Sirayo and other incidents; the t '

observance of the promises which Frere had been led to

believe Cetywayo had made to Shepstone at his coronation, 1| '

the break up of the Zulu war nachine and the reception -

ofua Resident in zululand 3. Thirty days was given '1

for the expiry of the Ultimatum which would expire -

~10!) the 10th Janue.ry,.1879.2 The King's envoys set .1 j.

‘ off at a leisurely pace with the 4,CO0'worded document ‘ 1;: '

A committed to memory, thesubstance of which in duo ‘

-i . coureethcy would transmit-to the king." Dunn realising ' '

A _ the ‘steed for speed sent his» own messengers" to‘ inform .

f the king in advance whatwas required of ‘him, - the

written ultimatuml was left‘ with Dunn which: he kept at

I ‘ Mangete.3' He a.f'terwaz‘ds told a friend‘_,,' dare‘ not - i

' send it; it would mean death’ to anyone '_7who‘ carried an I ,

ultimatum_'oi‘ that sort "44o'_" ‘~_ l':'_‘.j " ' ’ V‘

. . Thus -it-came. about that4conflictinig‘reports oi’ i

b these proposals reached the King who spite of the Z“ L

' rains, set ‘about collectirg the re_pe.r‘_a’t'ions cattle‘, ;_

. while Frere completed his military Lireperatione which ' '3 i

he believed would at least he necessary to support l

' ‘Cetywayo against his warriors if;-he to comply’. ‘

v1i"c.h his demands 2 5 _ Cetywayo complained of. the

‘ short time in which we had to co]=1ect_'the reparation

_ cattle and got Dunnitolua-ite a letter‘to._thie effect ;

i i i — '/on....-. ;;~ ,
‘ '1. Gibson pp.l58-163:Wa1ker p.380:‘ de Kiewiet p.229: .: '

Dunn pp 71-92 - l ‘ j; ' _ 3,; 5

2. Gibson. p. 165. : ‘_~‘j ,' 2 V -' ,

5. Xiialker 11.380. y’ ' ' “
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on the 13th December 1:0 the Natal Government, and received gt

a rtrgly on The 26th to say that no extension of time would ‘

graxztecl and‘ that the troops which Frere wi.3 collecting;

~ would zzflvauzce £11‘. the end of the thirty days ; but F:-ere was

not "no 'n:«.*-1e any Boer ‘troops for they apparently did not ,,

apgzzwzciate all thawl. was doing for them and refused - 3

their co.-operation, although tfxey gave good advice. 2

The farmers of the frontier ‘district of Utrecht. alone, 4

under ‘oz-ave Dirk Uys, acign of»a brave family, loyally ;; A _

gained the British For-cc B. ‘ I ‘

X Bum.-'1 advisecl the Secfctary of Native Affairs that he

'4 wishezl ci"r.her fioaquifi the country or to yemain neutral in

' the evezxt of 22-5-1.‘ , Lord Chelmsford, the General

Cc:2:and1n3~in~c!11ef in Scui‘: A£‘rica‘e£1vised him to cross i

witiw. all his ‘people into Eatal,‘ azul that he would feed 1

‘them; he promised to ‘see re-in:-ntated his poasess- 1

ions the war wa.s over . "T‘uus"};oaye' Dunn , "on the

3-:.-tn Eccerroar I gavo notice to my jpeoplc at Ungoye to

come to !..':a.-cgete, which they did by fihe 3131:." We went

/me Tugela.‘ The rivér was full and the scene‘ can be” .

:L*na§z,inec1: I had 3‘,-L-'3-O head‘ of cattle of myovln‘. It took."

’c..hree days to get all across; thanks to the assistance of;

,;',he ivfaval Brigade.’ ':.~’hen my iaeople arrivcd onltha Natal I

side ‘thoy v.-'ex=e‘de§,~rA:lved~of luhichhvaere mine, and

tltese were given to thc Nativé police foréthe defence of g

the border. ‘I was nevér compecsated for the guns (Had 6 1

Colenso confused these v1'ith"(2ety"»':ayo'a‘ ?) I lost " Q A S

. 3,0 head of cattlé, but so1.d'many afi a gocdlprice. Lorcl L

Chelmsfcrd broke his promise’ as £0 the feeding of my people

' who .~:ez'e encamped by the llth between the Umvoti River and 1;

Uz:;h1ali" ; so Dunn had to feed them himse1£.‘5 /V" M _ "

1. Du:-.3 p.532. , . . < ~ .. H , 5 » 5 A

2. dc 3f.ie';:iet p 232. ‘ '

3. L‘unn 17.74. . ;

4. Dunn p.93. . , , - > '3'” 1

5. Dun;-1 pp.93-‘B5. ' '
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On the appointed day for the expiry of the 3 f

Ultimatum, four columns crossed the Zulu border, :; 5

and on the following day the Transvaalers unhelpfully 3

< called a great meeting at Wonderfontein to pledge

themselves solemnly to regain their independence 1.

[Dunn had advised Lord Chelmsford that Cetywayo would H

. concentrate his forces and risking everything in one i

great battle, uould fall upon the column that he ?

thought would give him the most trouble; he therefore :

suggested that the General should divide his forces : '

-into two strong columns, making each strong enough E i

. ‘to cope with the whole Zulu army. Chelmsford, we are ;

told only laughed; he did not think that Cetywayo “7‘;; ;

would fight; " I must drive him into a corner " 2/A<;\:

Had Chelmsford listened to Dunn perhaps the disaster

. of 22nd January might have been avoided, when 800 l

regulars and as many Native levies were wiped out i

by the Zulus at Isandhlwana 3.. Luckily the zulus l .

did not follow up their success. Several reasons t

have been advanced: Cetywayo may still have thought :

~ he was the friend of the British} Bishop Colenso may :

have told him he would get better terms if he did not !

advance; perhaps it was because his Usutu and the E

hostile Usibebu faction thinking the Zar was over, }

fought each other in a ‘bloody battle . Whatever I

the reason, Frere's best laid schemes had gohe astraygg

the growing crops had not kept the Zulus in the fields‘

4 The rains did not come till the middle of December, g

and as the first planting had failed there was no ;

' harvest to keep the Natives from joining their impis. y

Drought, the collapse of Katal's transportation 2

system and the bitter quarrening between the military S

. and civil authorities in Natal all contributed to

‘ ' ‘t /the....

1. Walker 9.287; de Kiewiet p 232.

2. Dunn. p 93. ‘ _

3. Russell p.235;walker 382;

. 4. .Walker. p. 383. : V
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I the disaster and two days after Isandhlwana we find H I V t

‘ Frcre writing that Cetywayo was armed to such an ' 5 1

"unprecedentedi extent and in numbers that cause him “ ~ E

‘ to be regarded by his own people as well as by most‘ ' 3

‘ other Native tribes in South Africa, as more than a g '

match for any power, Natiye or European; was in fact I ?

the greatest military power in South Africa ? Bishop ? %

Colcnso, apparently not realising that the disaster of P T

Isandhlwana would take a lot of explaining away and that ‘g i

this was part of Frere‘s explanation, ascribed the q? E

pernicious evil to our John Dunn, from whom Colenso ' if 2

. alleged, Cetywayo had chiefly obtained these firearms?. Q 3

It is worth noticing that Frere does not say Cetywayo‘ R i

should not be armed; but merely that he was armed to g. t

an unprecedented extent, implying that a fair number 4. !_ E

was reasonable . ‘ _ . ’ ’; E

On the 25th March, Lord Chelmsford asked Dunn to L g

accompany him as adviser; Dunn rode over to see the K: ii E

« General, and told him that he preferred to remain ' I:

neutral, to which Chelmsford replied} "You knee what ‘ !' %

will be thought of you for withholding the assistance you,§ %

‘ 4 can give, and you can expect nothing after the war is E B

over". . Dunn asked for time to think over this ' Q E

veiled threatrb He tells us that, "I knew my father‘h g E

‘ had suffered by remaining neutral in the fighting between r I

the hoers and the English at Congella"§' so the next Va ! ‘

day he rode over-and accepted the offer ? For this I g

' worthy action Dunn has been described as a renegade. M 4

There is a surface case wainst Dunn, fox-‘he himself '

' denied that Cetywayo was thelprime instigator of all the_ . I

mischief since becoming King, We agree. ‘He admits that i :

1. 1 M 9 ‘ fl? ‘ T. ‘A [there..L.. E i

2; §ig§:iw;f:3§'b§§ng citation from Blue Book 2252.p;46, : Q

3o Digest 9.437 in notis. _ f A

4. Dunn Notes pp.lOO-101. ”* .= ” g

i o %
' }
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up _ there was an understanding between Cetywayo and

.5 . Sekukuni to act in concert against the Transvaal Boers, »

but this was arranged after President Burgers had ‘ ‘

I retired in commando from the Bapedi Reserve in August

1876, and the execution of theplen was only prevented

M by D.1nn“s endeavour and the urgent representations from 4

the Government of Natal. ’Dunn made no secret of the i

fact that since the annexation of the Transvaal, his ‘

‘ conviction was that the Zulus had not had fair play. 1;

He pointed to recorded facts and ennmerable dispatches ‘

g for proof of a plan, long ago conceived and politically

3! worked out to bring about the overthrow of Cetyweyo.

As far as the gravamen ofthe present charge against . '

Cetyweyo ‘is concez-ned,’namely, his inciting Umbelini

’ to attack the'A.me.swe.zi, his failure to implement his

coronation oaths, and his countenancing the outrage of

f Sirayo's"sons and thus violating the Rights of Nations,

Dunn was" able to explain them away at least to his own

3‘ satisfaction. With reference to Umbelini, Dunn asserts

‘ that Cetywayo did not know of his raid upon the Swazis

until after it was over. This mmht be so, ‘since

, ‘Umbelini who was Umbandeni's half-brother,1ived near

the Swazi King. -As regards the alleged coronation

oaths, Dunn affirms that no such undertaking was made

by or even asked from Cetywayo. In the act of

. coronation Shepstone gave Cetywayo a piece of paternal

counsel‘, andthe. conditions to which the King is said

to have assented were in reality nothing more than 4

‘ recommendations urged upon his acceptance by the -

_ Special Commissioner with the laudible purpose of

securing a more regular government of the Zulu people.

we have already noted that it was the brothers and _

certain Counsellors who assented to the “new Laws".

A _ /411....
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All the more reason, then, that they should have ‘I

' been adhered to, but this is to iorgot the circumstances :-

in which Cetyw.:\yo was "crowned" ; Nor was the King '

I personally responsible for the outrage by the sons of f

Sirayo. There formerly existed an arrangement by which

I ' uvomen and cattle were both reckoned as property, and,

when they crossed the river, in either direction, it was '

custome.ry_ to sendthem back." How much easier all South

. ‘O African history would be if this custom had always been in

observed 1 Latter-ly, as far as the women were concerned "

the understanding had not been carried out. Dunn then

. pertinently asks the question whether outraged husbands,

even among eivilieed people, are prone to pay much ';

I ' _ respect to the Rights of Nationswhen upon the track E

3- of their unfaithful spouses, but Dunn forgets that I

Hehlokazulu uas a. son, not a husband. , Besides this, D

Dunn affirms that it was admitted in the legislative '

. ‘Council of Natal, that previous violations of the- _ . :'

k frontier have been passed over without any hubbub 2. - E y

_ Dunn also contended that Cetywayo still did not

A , know fully the contents oi‘ the Ultimatum. He believed ‘

_ that the troops were being.se'nt‘up as a scare, but ‘j y

when he realisedbwhat was intended he told Dunn that _

. he would fight end that his regimentswaould pursue ~ I M

right to Durbano, ‘ Condoijxixig all that Cetywayo did; why ' I f

did Dunn desert Ce'tyv-Mayo ?. _ I

Dunn advised Cetywayo not to fight, but the king E 3

- refused the counsel of his edviser. In the g .

\ circumstances Dunn did the only thing he could -3 he ' E

remained neutrafl. . , I
_ . . ' /Now...“ 3 ‘

l. Vide p.23 -.2.-.supra. 2 _ . i k

2. Vide ‘walker p.378. ' _ . .

3 630-631, being full account of Du.-*m's y

i 1

5 E

» ~ t
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’ Now that his late master was victorious a 1essor _ E

man would have left those who brought about the war to ;i '

their own devices, but Dunn realised the meaning of the j

4 ‘ menace and he knew that the destruction of Cetywayo meant i

:4 happy Zululand. His duty was to aid the English to V A ,

bring about this state of affairs. To call Dunn a deserter ‘ t

or a renegade is a more logomachy. His case in paralleled, 5 i

with that of John Churchill, later the Duke of Marlborough y g

. who deserted James while high in his military service in J E

the hour of his need and afterwerds corresponded with the fiat

Jacobites. Yet both Professor Trevelyan and Winston F {

Churchill agree that "Marlborough's iesertion of James was i E

in the circumstances commendable.“ Like Churchill, there L E

was a surface case against him: “many people thought 111 F

of him in his own day" d - but we with the "hindsight of V

history", must judge him fairly to-day. Dunn did not know t '

what we now do, that Frere had determined upon war, not V '

Cetywayo: so that Cetywayo‘s quondam adviser was nothing. N ‘

more than a pawn in the game. To remain neutral was also 1 %

an untenable position: Dunn, as father of his tribe had E V

to consider what would happen to his family after the were

. Chelmsford had made it quite clear that "he could expect_: g

nothing~after the war“, unless he sided with the British. g i

Under such circumstances he had to align himself with the l -

one side that could now assist his people. R . . ‘.~‘

There are two other points:- .’ . _ H L

' Cetywayo told Dunn to go: this was not desertion: and . .

when the war was over and Cetywefo was a prisoner .. ' %

_ , . /at....t ' Q
" . .' V‘

1. §reve1yan"Peaco and the Protestant Succession" p. Xi ‘ %

2. ibid. s , l4 ; _ . .. . , . ; §

3 . . c ~ . I F

. ‘ H T--u ' ' ‘ - g r
. V

. r . . y
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at the Cape, he must have thought little enough of : {

Dunn's "desertioin" to have caused the most cordial

and friendly letter to have been written to him 1 E *

< Dunn was now Lord Chelmsford's intelligence officer. $

His first good service was to tender Chelmsford advice ' “_ ‘

and to raise 9. body of l5O of his own man to act as ‘

scouts, as the General had been greatly misled by people » i

. who knew nothing of either Zululand or its people. 2‘ , L‘

" I)urm’s men were attached to Major Bar:-ow‘s Horse. I

while the column was camp'ed"one night on the other side '

of the Amatikulu River, Dunn's men formed the outside _

picket while the infantry pickets were ‘between; them and

* bivouac. Dunn's men had orddrs to retire to. camp when

in touch with the enemy. A false alarm caused them to }' ‘

. retire hurriedly, and in the confusion; they_were mistakeni f

I for the enemy, and a number ‘killed. v{_' 79.‘ I

when the force under Colonel Pesrson‘at:Eshowe 2 I

was beleaguered, Dunn's assistance was again sought, and Q‘ ‘

a high reward offered if he could get someone to run i

despatches to the besedgxed. "This I did, sending two 5

men. Three times they went;4 one was killed." , ’

‘ Lord Chelmsford did not reward these men‘: as promised, - t

_ “ nothing came of it beyond what I paid’ myself and go‘

couple of sovereigns given by the Revd R.Robertson. I

So much for the word of anyone representing the authority 3

of a military Government". Dunn also had to pay for I

I all the food he got from the Government at a much higher ;

rate than he (would have bought it privately, besides that,

1:. insufficient and he had to 1:111 his own cattle 4 J

‘ Lord Chelmsford organised and led the relief column 1

to relieve l=ee.rson and his garrison at Eshowe. Dunn was

asked to put into writing what he thought the duty of E

the scouts to be. This he did. and Chelmsford asked him

/ton... 3

1. Letter quoted in full Dunn's Notes pp 107-108 g

Cetywayo to Dunn 29/ 10/1880.

2. Panda's old krael & strategicypoint. _

3. The famous Anglican B.-Iissionary at Kwa MagV-’aZa;Z\11\11a'3d- V
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‘ I t to accompany him {me far as the Inyezanc River as his

. experience in Zulu warfare would be invaluable to him,

. -, b:-rt he would ea}: him to go no farther as "I quite ‘ ‘

understand that you do not feel justified in running -

I . ‘ 5 risk of depriving those who look to you for eu.p;:.ort v‘

. i .‘ of your helping hand" 1 But Dunn elected to remain

— ’ ' with Chelmsford. ~ A - ‘

‘ . _ 4 v‘ - D.unns:=lactedA a good position at Inyezane(the

. e present. Gingindhlcvo) for the camp. Then Chclmsford ‘

.. ' ‘ - ‘end he rcconnoitered and Dunn sew thin columns of blue

‘ smoke rising here and there, betokening Zulu kraale in

the vicinity. He advised Chelmsford to send mounizad

- men the nexthorning to draw them on to an attec}: before ![

h ' breaking catnh for -the forward march. Ea:-].y the next

V . ‘ - morning (April 3) the Zulus tried to encircle ‘the camp.

I’ The coldiera fired at 1500 yards. They fired wildly ‘

< and Dunn noticed that they still had their long range

- ’ > nights up, alth-;.u,r;h the zulus had advanced 1230 yards.

‘ I .‘C=n mdvisih.:_,r C‘nelms::‘ord of this the order was given to

H - lower the sights. The battle was soon over and the ' ‘I

V I Zulus put to flight. Eshowe was relieved. The second ‘

‘ day they all returned to Ginginrlhlovu 3 ; and afterwards

. Dunn was attached‘ to General Cradoclve staff as .

Intelligence Officer, Jy Chelmsford. ‘ . ' i

‘ Grievances in the Transvaal reached bx-coking point.

« . The Trarxsvaal had become British soil against. the wish

' _ of the‘zz:ajority of its peoplesas its institutions were

. suppressed: an autocracy of Natal and Cape dfficials

who snubbedits leaders were placed over it. This was

‘ _ unexpected and intolerable. Small hearted oconomynnci E

pitilese tacilessneso r.\11inu«.l“r.he British chances of ~ ¥

‘ holding the Transvaal. - ~ 7‘-.«, _ ’ < i
_ ‘ /'Z‘he.... ;

1. Letter in possession of F.Dunn.Gimindhlovu.

Zr Dunn's uotoe pp 101-108. W

3. Uye p. 316-322. ‘ I
4,. de mewiet. p.115. ~ . II

I _ é

.an»-%@ , 1
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1 The disaafisfied Boers laagcrcd some a1>:tcen '_

: miles from fretoria, and Frczre, who had rushed up to ;

the T‘_"€3.-"_-£1VE:£1l9 yrcmiaed to ?.:.'a.2'~.s:a1t to ‘.N;.;le.nd their _ =~

- ::c:;_orzLr2~iu.-'3 of g;riov:.ances. They had hardly broken up

when the harassed Disraeli ministry censured Fcore for J

‘Em .5’.ulu.'.v.’:;z~ policy and filzfurmod hm t.hr;z.t. even if 3

C0"C.y‘-.')3}/‘O were utterly crushed Zululand would not be 9

azmmzed. The censure v.':-m consolinggly accompanied M

v by x'en_‘.ms'b that more would remain in offico and ';:

informed him that the High Commisaioncrship was being

3 :3p1:1.'Z'. and that it was senzling out General 511- Garnet‘. 1

; --‘olselcy to be High Commissioner for South East Africa. 3

..-‘hear; CheZL-snaford learned that ‘riolseley “'05 °°311¥\‘S I

i ‘(so supersede him, "he ')".oughc:d his way through Central ;

Snlulzaxzd, losing the ‘E2:-irxce '.I1npez‘ial on the way and

forcccl Cety-aa;,'o ‘to a final battle at Ulgndil: -the

§ 32:1;-h Place — on the cm of July, 1879. " i

! Cetywayo borrowed horses frpxn Usibebu and made

north foo Um_qyr.=:n:zna's country. A month later, on the

1 28th August, he‘ was capmzred by fiajor Harper. He was

1; hurrzicd z'.-‘my ?.o"i'.‘r1e' Coast and sent by the otéamer "Hatal"‘

. Cugacto-.:.rn, "ashes-e'hc arrived in silk hat, grey tweédg ‘

% bare .1:‘ec‘o" to be coru.“5..ned for a while in the Castle.

g _ Fe-.-: were curious about his fate. They accepted the;

E :f:'ac’c that the white man had nix} and that he ‘wan dead

f 32 fax‘ as they were concerned -3. ' A

i ‘ Burn received ixxstructions to collect. all the

cattle that had bclozwwd ‘mg the Kira, urd to return the ;

rc:2:d.r:«:‘1ez° to "choir o\mez’o. L

,1 . 1. 1..-221.1492‘ 9.381-'.‘:; do Kiewiet. 33,236: p.245.

j; 2. nuosell \;n.‘2r14.; ';..u11:e:- 9.3%. .
3 3. It won: from here ‘\‘.."1at Cctywayo wrote to Dunn Vida

4.. Boundary commission R.C.:’.. 2&3/2/8’:-. ?
1 5. ibid; Dunn's Notes p.132. 1
ti ' .

i .
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The post-‘war settlement was entrusted to ‘

C}w1n21'craV5 zuccasscr, Sir Garnet ‘afolseley. ‘.‘:ha1*. was E

nor.-‘ to ba diam with Zululand 2.’ England had Iiad va I

aurfsit of armoxétions - tho. .I‘z-ahavaal had proved a

. veritable her;-1::st'a nest.’ __ She had recoursd thereto:-a

~ to the euggc-stiom; previsusly with regard to the

beat policy ‘cox-:a1*ds Zululand: Sir Geprge Gfey héd

A urged Smnzia to divide up his coum‘.ry ‘among his sons. ,

This it 2-15.9 believacl v.=ouJ.d ensure the bréak-up of the :,

Ezulu po=:-Jerxl Clxmrles Emownlee, the minister of Native }

Affairs the Cape, advised the making ‘independent of ‘

' every clan that had been incoryorated by Chaks, and that

at Britiah Beeident be -appointed w1_th supreme authgrity‘ !‘ A g

u:1:1cr izh-e H‘J.g;h Cr;-mziaeioner or Governor of Natal. It _ 13

was upon ‘these lines that Woiaaley proceeded to work; . . V

< for he had. been enjoined by Hicks Beach that zululand 3’

was not to be amazed: VJ ~ ' _ ,_ . . .7 j

. "Caz-efully bear in mind" the sescremry of State urged, \; M

“tlmaf. the objéct 0:!‘ Her E£:njes1".y's Government is not to

add to the extent of British 3’>oesessions".3 . 4 K

‘.?o3.eeley divfl.<icd the cbuntry into tlaifteen kirgletza E

uncler rois fainéants. Two v~.Iex'a Scions of the houses ;

‘ which. he-.-5 ruled before the days of Chaim; the aged

Umlmdela, hereditaxy chief of the Umtetn.-.va, and Umcogana, . 1

hereditary chief of the Ndxaaand-we; seven were ixzdunas or

descendants of imiunas of the '.‘.':u1u kings: somkele of ,

the ccaat, T5mi‘a.na=::enlela, Umgityvza, Gaozi,»-mo was aoon . I:

to die from old age, !*‘a1~2ukas1..-1530, Seketwayo and Ch1r1g'.-ieyoi

an-:'i 1“ou:.~ who had su9por'ted Tim British forces, Hlubi ,

h _ , - " ' /the....

1.. V16.-9 p.6 supra. _ - J i

2. Gibson 1,9 2.‘:~=$ -=-3:5. ‘ 5*

3. <36 ‘c'.iewie’x'. 1) 2416. ‘ ‘ ‘ )‘
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the Basuto, (J7-hamu, "the traitor", the valiant Usibebu

and John Dunn,"whose invaluable services" as political I

and intelligence officer to General Qealock, had been . h

‘Drought :6 the notice of sir Garnet Wolseley by that '

Goneralf I:-tr. Viheelwright was appointed the Resident,

‘to be the eyosand ea:-s',3but .not’,as weshall see, A -

the mouth of the British Government, .. _ p 3 «

Dunn was the first of the thirteen chiefs: appointed ji

' uno‘.er,the_ new scheme., He signed at Ulundi on the lst

September 1879, a document; as did all theiother chiefs,

recognising the victory of British ‘arms over the Zulu

nation, and the right of_ the Queen to deal with the ,.

conquered as she thought fit; he promised to respect " g

the boundaries to be assigned to him, to prohibit any’ t

military systeezwithin ‘his territory; to encourage his ‘ *

people to live peacefully; to prevent the importa- g

tion of arms and ammunition without the permissionof ‘

the Resident; to see that no life was taken without a 4 5

fair trial; that there was no witchcraft or"smelling

out"; to surrender to the British fugitives from justice

who had fled into his territory; to undertake no war

-4 without the previous sanction of the Resident; _to settle i

all disputes with a chief by arbitration, the British . . '

_ _ Government to arbitrate; to grant succession to the '

chieftainship according to/tgxtfclient laws and customs of

his people, and the British Government was to approve '1

_ ‘ I of thesuccessor; he would neither sellmr alienate . -.

any of his land; he recognised that all people were '

_ to reside in his territory if they would accept‘ him ‘as 4' 1

chief, if not, they were to‘go elsewhere unmoleatedg " 1

the British Resident was to decide a case between 9. . I E

1. 11.0.2. 24/9'./80: Report of Zululand /Brfl'.iSh"" !

Boundary Comxnission. ‘ ‘ I

2. In a letter dated 7/7/79 from General Crerlock to -

Sir Garnet Wolseley. (F,Dunn.)
I

3. Docuznents 70 and 90 presented to Legislative Council,. ;

~ Nata1,l879. Va. 37. . 4 I

,
Ix
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"3:~:T.t.i:3§‘x sazbj-:ac’c. emit a Zulu, and was to try all British I f~

.’.,ubject:3.- :1l1"Ce{§r.qo's 'oroth-era, except U'namu. choosing 5

to res:-aim in Ziululmzd were to be collected into the

' of his chief brother, Dabu1aminzi'a kraal, \

t
v::hi_c'n near to Dunn, and would be under his eye. V

Chief’ John ‘L-Lm.'z ‘gas to assign localities “co them within i 3

his ‘cor-.::dm‘y', but neither Ndabuko; who was looking after {

Cety\=;q*~,ro_'s heir‘, Dinizulu, ‘nor Uoiwefcu went to Durznsland ‘

until after we years had elapsed. Dunn to collect. E: 5

all of Ce’cy‘eaayo'§ cattle, and to return the reminder "

to tnoir owners Q, while the resident was to see that '

c all guns were surrcndercdgfiy govember, 1330, some ?f?1iO «

' ;"'5_z‘c=-ca-ms had been hamled in. missionaries were to ' 5|

t
be allowed to re-cattle‘. if the chiefs so consented 4. 31 f

was set on foot the iéolseley Settlement. which’;-7’

was c1c:~J'bine<1 to lost. some twee years. On paper it #1,": *

was a good ee'tt1e2;on’og the people were undez‘ the chieffc “

they could respect; the land had been so divided up \

‘that. the Zulu m:‘=.l;1.‘?.ax“y machiao could never again reef" V

its 5-eiszy head; and the land had been left. intact; 3 V

I But. in reality the settlement was hristlim with x

‘ difficulties; the of war aw equagblcs V

' -the zapgaointed chiefs about, cattle and grains. -; the

chiefap ezacept. for I31:-.n_.~'s,',‘}i‘.'.u1:>1 and Usibebu were men of

si;z“a‘.'~.=; the he‘-.°edi*t.wy chiefs 6:-e.-“used to kow-tovtgto the V

_ aypointed chiefs wirzom they considered their ‘infericra, ,

the rcsidenfi had no power to cnforcc his decisions. '5

‘rho Eula. E-aunclary Commission cozmonced its work of :‘

the ‘thirteen territories on the 13th September, v

' 1879,, coaplefied its work on the l9th..November. "'

1 Drum 130 f.‘-;“. '. ‘ '/mmn'B"""' 3 ‘

Dunn 9.112. 1=..c.z. 24/2/so. “ -

'3. n.;::.:::'.o. Osborn to cone-y 10/ll/80. j ' ‘ E

V - 4. P..C.Z. 2%/*2/80. Report of I~Z1.1l‘.1lE.‘..'1d Boundary Commissiox

“ Dunn. 11.3.3.2. .

5. do Kicwic’c..p289.
{

G. c.;:. Coty.':ayo's b:'a’c.hc1's Dabnlemomzi, Ndabuko. 3‘

T.2<;vurnan.g-.'1ar:9.. and Godide. _
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1 = E
Dunn’s Territory adjoined Chief H1ubi's. He had the

largest and finest ‘territory; it formed a broad buffer '

between the rest of Zululand and Natal. Along the coast I‘

< was significantly an abundance of land for sugar p1anta- ' A

tions, vfnich Dunn apparently did not develop, - his ; .

chief occupation being the’rearin,g ‘of cattle. ' ‘ 3“. i

He commanded all the drifts of the Tugela into Zululand, ' g E

except theone by Rorke's farm. His inhabitants were ‘ E :

- more alien and more divided in their affections to him

than in any other of the twelve locations, but being a. 1%;

European he was the more able to deal with them. It was E

for this reason that the Ki1rs;'s.brot'ners who elected to

stay in Zululand were told to stay underfhis care around ~

Dabu1amanzi’s kraal near thelmzandhla forest, and, as‘ V * ~

would be expected} they {vere a Even which spread disaffection. E

or the other territories the on1y two that need mention

were Uhe.mu's and Usibehu's,' whiéh were both in the ‘north, I ‘

Uha1Lu's adjoining "the Transvaal. ' ‘ ‘Dunn had realised T

his dream, -2 he hadha muchlarger territory than he ‘could ,

ever have hopedufor under Cetywayo, and as‘ soon as his 5 Q .

people were settled again in their old haunts ,‘ he put \ I

~ into practice his ‘idea of a paternal government.‘ He 1 .

appointed and maintained three European magistrates,

Galloway, Oftebro and Bruxrine.-.-, to exercise both civil and

criminal jurisdiction, to collect the‘ hut tax of 57-» a’ ‘ V

. hut he was goirzg to‘ flpose within their ‘respective ‘ 1;

districts, and to receive money ‘paid by traders for ' ‘

licences. Their decisions were suhject to himself as ii ,

a final court of appeal .2 ‘ ‘ A ‘ ' ' . L V

In’188C>, the first year that Dunn imposed a.hut‘tax, ,/1 " ’.

he collected, at ’5/-s a hut, the ‘total sum of £2,468. /

The following year he raised the ‘tax to the permanent rate I is

of L’;/-s, when the sum raised use £5,101. 3. ‘ .

/ He....... ~

l. Vide Wallcer Historical Atlas Map p.15. 3

2. P..C.Z.24/2/80.Report of Zululand Boundary Commission: ;

Gibson on.2.’_>3-224. 3. Colonso thought the amount was J

.; f,_ ._.’é¢~::-:r.~”r“‘“."’*‘“°*’”’_- ' ' . ’ .
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He used this money for salaries, general expenses, the f

purchase of ploughs 1 and for road-making 2, thus : E

‘ anticipating in part Rhodes's Glen Grey Act 3by some E

I fourteen years. ‘ ‘ ,A Q

Dunn was now a landed squire. He spent his year §

moving about his territory giving his advice here and Q :

tending to some problem there. his favourite sports were : }

fishing and hunting big game which he indulged to the ' i

full. Cattle were his chief concern next to ruling his E‘

' territory. It had been decided by the Government when 4: ‘

Dunn.had collected the 500 Royal Cattle that a number. I E

i should be sold, and Dunn seized the opportunity to buy % V

i as many as he could. This business transaction led to. 1 ’

a friendship only terminated_by his death, with Harry E

Sparks (now Colonel), then a young man of 24. Mr. Sparks :

was then a meat purveyor, and his business necessitated ? ?

his going to Zululand to buy cattle, which, in his 4 i.

opinion, were beautiful, and before the Zulu War without g

a tick. We are indebted to Sparks for the following § .

incident which occurred in 1880, when both he and Dunn ; '3

were hunting near Hluhluwe and Dunn had his nsrrowest_ i i

_ escape from a buffalo. It was an old beast that had 4 if ‘

been driven from the herd;- ‘Dunn was walking alone‘

~ through a bush after.game some distance from the buffalo ,

haunts when he heard a grunt behind him and before he had 1 7

‘ ‘ time to turn he was tossed through the thorny branches. ~ L

of a mimosa tree and landed spreadueagled on top. He was E

much pricked and bruised by the thorns. The beast kept . $

him up the tree for about an hour and then retired to a % F

short distance; but when he attempted to get down to I - 1

' reach for his rifle, the brute was back again. However, i k

" ‘D i : -/after... _ E

l.D.B.1I.C. Osborn to. Colley 5/11/so. J ;

2.o.x3.u.c. Osborn to bulwer 2/8/S2. . Q

3.Vide Knowles op cit 3l9~324: Union Year Book No l6.p.966.i~ 1

. .. ,
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afi"';e'r a time it retired and Dunn hurried down,sccurcd ;

his gun, ffizsd emrl wounded it. The buffalo then ‘ %
c21:zr5é~d, bi:-ft. Dunn brougjht it down with a second sbotul

‘i‘;n.e:‘e vzesre ‘urea e'ta’c.:‘.ons , by this time, in Z

Dunrzsland. The first, on the fewm Emoyeni, was‘£1.1:an;;ete. :.

’ it five miles from the Tugela River, and '.va.~3‘qu:lte )‘

.2‘. village cgnsisting offiva houses, one being used

I for guea‘c.s.~<‘ He was very hosgaitable and provided a -

_ splendid table and wines for visitors. His chief wife

lived therer Th-sre we:-<~.* also very 1eirge‘kraal3 at t

this spot to accouzuaiaxg. his headmen, hunters and their i
families. His Second station was at Inyezane; and i

‘ _-~sc.:a-3cl ’C:11g'ilens3, about 20 miles fx‘on1_'L'?z=.ngete, and here ‘

_ 0.130 was an up-to-date building and several large

Beyond mis again was the third station at ‘ E

Ungoye am": named Thws-._\,'o E~."duku. It, too, was'qu1to 8 z

large village wi‘c.11 several kraala 3. Some of these - ‘ 2- i
.

buildings weraz» made pf‘ wood and iron ; others of brick ‘ }

and cement; all were well furnished with furniture" ' ; ;
1:5:-or-‘cod frora Durban. > He had 1-:'aals,f.‘or his Natives, ? E

' and Natives alone. Pie tczok particular careichat all _ 1

his children 2'-.=ex'e well clothed and well-cared for. °’ I ;

4 -=':ez'e educated by a European, Gilling, who eventually‘ A
zaarriefi one 0:? his de-.u5-;?>.‘tex's —. Thus it cannot be said, V 7

Uys, Bum: "was in all but name a Zulu." 5“ ' ‘

During the lzzst caszgaign, all the Mission gztations, '

- except Bishop Sch:-oedér's were burnt 6. ’ ' I‘ 3 ' " V:
" . ‘ ‘ .. /Non-J....."“ : I"3.. {Sparks to July 1939. , .1 »2. Usu::.lly .-“."ar:4)u.s vécarld huntzars. ‘ ” - a v.3. Colmzel. Sips-r1»:s "Natal I-.fcrcury" 24/D./19?/1. ~ ‘4. "-:.7u2".:*.l .‘a’~ez'cury"- £"1pa¢r"£«;5's ?.'ulu1and'e_'.‘.hite Chief. :,Ifosiercfosr .19:A. ‘ ~5. Uys. ~ - ‘ ‘ ‘ *3

‘ 5, 3,c,z. 241/2/80. Report. Zululand Boundary Commission: 3

i A . E
‘ . ' ‘ ; J

, . ,
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Now that peace was restored, and consequent upon the :

terms of the Deed of Chieftainship, several of the

I chiefs were willing to allow the Missionaries to return,“‘

~ but Chief Hlubi refused permission to the Norwegian

J Missionaries 1 and it was not within \=iheelwright’s :

4: power to interfere in internal matters. Dunn, like-

wise, refused to allow the five German Missionaries

to return because they had voluntarily left their ‘

4 stations, unlike the other missionaries, long before

the warbegan, and therefore could not be regarded as

having been forced to abandon them on account of war;

- nor were they of the type of missionary he considered

likely to benefit the Natives; the Revd Volckner

L; . voluntarily abandoned his station in 1877, while the

V; . . Revd Muller left before the war by order of’ Cetywayo, Z

‘ because he had severely beaten several Zulu?women; and I

the other missionary (possibly a Hr. Kuickijlhad hit

an old Zulu over the head with a piece of iron, from ;

which injury he had died.3 The Missionaries had also ;

refused to sign Dunn's ten conditions upon which he

. was willing to admit them to his territory. ‘ ‘ “

' . Briefly they were, to acknowledge his authority; to‘? V

« have no personal claim or title to land, to teach ‘

both Zulu and English in their schools, which were ~.

“E to be " an ordinary plain English School", where no ‘I

undue attention was to be made to suchaccomplishments

' as m-_1sic;. to teach a trade to any Native so inclined; ,.

that no Native was to remove from any lcraal to settle ,

. on a station without Dunn’s permission; if permitted,

he was bound to erect a dwelling house in European: 2,‘

' : style; that no native becomes exempt from tribal 3‘

duties to his chief by residing on a Mission Station;

‘ l
I _ /every... .. '

’ l. R.C.Z.-K.L.Titlestad to Wheelwright 3/1/80.

Nine Norwegian iiission Stations were abandoned about

18th Ayril 1878(I\J'a‘tal Advertiser 18/4/78). ‘ 1,

2. Vide D.B.M.0. Osborn to’ Bulwer p.l5l. '

3. D.B.I:i.0.0sbor-n to Havelock 27/ll/86. 4..D.B.M.O. -

‘ 0. 9 to Colle 1.‘:/.8/80. . - _ '
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‘ every encouragement be given to industrial pursuits L

. ‘ta make the a'ta*tion, in tim:-5, self-sugyporting; to - f

cul‘-.;iva'-se for :1 me~.r1<e’c.; and, V.-"cat was to EJu:m,his

chief complaint against the Mics ionary, no station lg

7 to be a1tz‘adim station for dealirgzg in ca-.'_c.t.1e for

profit —. Little ~.-sender that the IIano’verians would

not su‘ascz'i‘23e to his decalogue; the bilirgual ,,

. d2‘_’c‘i‘iculty might cppear insuperabla ; to insist. upon I

a house of European style would possibly deter the _ _ E

4 :m’c,ivc5.an:} to prevent the Liissionaryigcrmadingr in , ‘

cattle for profit while the chief did such a thing, ‘ I

' must have annoyed. people whose allowance was usually

a pittance. Nevertheless, Dunn's con-ziitiona 4

exliibitcd the currenf. Coloniafconceptiorz ‘of a

missic>na:'y's dfity to Gc<3.'a backward children. n V

‘ i~‘..I-'IoL=.ls petitioncd the «Governor in Eiovembiex-, ‘but as K.

Dunn 2,-as Leviathan, hiia Excellency would not intez-~ ;
E _ _ ‘ , . mus/'5 _ _ '

fare. Eventually L‘-unn allo\=.=e<3 % Horwegiansto ~

":.r_\1'.-2' the pl2.ce‘of'A the E'{a:.1o§/e'2ric~.ns.3 V‘ ‘

‘A I It was act. until Novemcr 1-S36 when Dunn was no " V

' longer‘ an a;3;)of_nted chief that the Gerzéan E.-iié.:zion- A §

aries were allowed by the Britisix Governmentto \ 3 5

- return ‘to their fo:.z'me:" stations.’ ~ . E -1 L

\‘Ihe'n drurlcenness Xiroke out amongst. the Natives 1

the evil attributable to excessive beer- V -,

‘ drinking, Du.'1fi irzstituted an enquiry an.d'found‘t.ha1'. ’

Eiurcpezzz traders sold notes to 2~a'at.ives on canteens -' ‘

for liquor. Dun.-'1 thereupon promulgated a new law

‘to stop this, 5 ’ ‘A

’I‘o\:1arc1s=. the end of 1881 it ‘-.'I:'.~18 reportedifnat _

his people were contented and t‘rrivir).r_,7 under the MM

lm.-'9 vfnich the chief.‘ ha-5. laid damn and wers bei::g:' '

administered by himself azidthree administratars? ?

‘ ” /I’o..... 1.‘ 3*
l. Dunn p.14-8. ‘ ‘ ‘ 7

'2. frsborn to Colley 17/1/81.”
J. :».B.;.:.=. . Lcbarnx to Havclock 19/10/-b3;'?.l/12/33. v

.3.r:.;«z.::.. vtaborn to Havelock 27/11/a6;11/_5/87 —-\‘ , *9

5. ?!ata.l ‘:.Zez'cury 2.:/{L2,/1881. "Joim Dunn's vie‘-::§"j«.. ’

Digest p.6i3-=»'7C>. V ,. '



(38)

It xvculd have -‘seen very strange had no one found feult.

with 13'-.1."1.n:, people are usually envious of other folks’

good f‘or“'cune: . ifr. Campbell was such an one. He wrote '

' to Sir He-art,‘ Elulwer accusing John Dunn oflevying a

‘O1’-.‘I.‘.3‘2'. from the haadmen of the kraxals in his district;

of eradizxz in 9.53. buying oxen and other cattle, an:1 of

co:.pe2_1i:::g ‘the Natives 11 certain d1s‘t.ric‘t.s to take. them

although suffer ing from lung sickness, which was rife

at that ‘.‘.izr:e.l Also, other Chiefs v.-ere following . -

Bums”: ezcemple 2. -J.‘.’-:'.s7hepstone, who had succeeded

sir Theo;-hilus Ehepetone as 5ecre§ery of Eiaativa I-.1-‘fairs. ‘-

Natal, explained in so-far as ‘the other Chiefs were '.

ecncernee‘. , the "levy oi‘ cattle" was merely a thank-

o:’:‘i‘e3*3Lr23 to the Erifiieh Gsvernment, which had had

' q.o1ee1<~:y‘s zzpgrovel. As for Dunn he had collected

Ce'cy;2ag-0'3 caztle, which he had been instructed to do. _'

an-:1 he-.r;‘2. bought‘. some in. an. open market; .30 that when

~ the C215.e§.‘s, -..r«..-no had been Campbell's informant, sew .

’ auxzcng Dunn's cattle they not unnatural1y,conc1uded

that ‘me chief hoe agcropriated cams. The Resiclent, .

enatgested that sales should cease . . ; ,

A more serious chwga against Dunn was brought “, V

by I-"e.nn’m. Homer Agent, Uszzvoti, aahoeaccused him

of £ll~t;~eating.%.1av!:Eren_3w«1s:1a, one, of Cc-:tywaye'a brothers,

’ rsiac; '::c~.3 perez.-':_a?.c«ri1y ordered to leave his kraal, mg ‘

'<‘..tx:z‘t. coapazxiee pulled dawn two of his kraels .

‘.’;‘1zcel:=;right, ho\~.wevei~, considered that Dunn had acted

rightly the ccmplaintazrt. was unfriendly cowards other 1

people, it x-:5-as Dunn's duty to _maint.ain peace within

his dist:-ict 5. Ga:-net. "a’€o1seley also approved

of Eu:m"e action, and observed ‘chef. "reference of such ‘

_ I 1, . ' /me.tters....

1. dc E'<.ie':':iet, p.2.i5. .

2. P..C.3’.. Bulwer to ‘1:‘f'nee1v:ri_5;ht. 7/ll/'?9.

3. ‘.!i».1e fsugra 9.49; YJ.£i.’.$.G. Osborn tc Bulwer 2/11/32

4. Eulvsaz‘ to ;2'hee1*:/right :3./11/79. (:~*..c.z.J ~

5. i'.r>i<l ‘-’.'-./lb?/78. . . . ’ ' , "

1’. '
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matters of internal government to the British Resident I

must so weaken the authority of the independent chiefs . 1

' as to render their effective rule impossible", but :

‘ "the Resident should keep a vigilant watch upon the

character of the government of each territory, and . E

should be able, without interyosing his authority in 3

each individual case, to understand before long whether

there is any misgovernment so grave as to call for

i .' rehuke~or intervention from the British Government. He : ‘

_ ' . should give his advice where he thinks it is called for -i

- to the chiefs, but each chief must be allowed to rule '

his people and to settle disputes among them by his

' own rights or sovereignty and independently of British

' Authority. " 1, It was quite clear that the Resident

was to be the eyes and ears} but not the mouth of the .

\ ~4 British Government, In the circumstances Wheelwright 7

. _ found that he could not continue in office, as he was

_ - unable "to interpose authoritatively in many questions

:referred to him by the chiefs‘? Thus six months after 1

-. its initiation the Wolueley Settlement was about to 5

i ‘ founder on the rock of ‘No Authority‘. Wolseley was ’

_ on the horns of,a dilemna; to admit failure because \

of the lack of authority was useless; England would .5

- not alter her declared policy. He therefore had to ;

look round for a person who possessed the qualifications

‘ necessary for so invidious a position. He chose Melmoth _

Osborn, who for many years had been a resident magistrate ~

in Natal, was a brilliant Zulu linguist, a friend of 1

Sir Theophilus Shepatone, and at that‘time the Colonial §

Secretary in the Transvaal, to Sir 0wen‘£anyon who had i

3 , _ _. gsucceeded .... '2

is R.d.z.‘hulwer to Hheeluri§ht:l9/2/7§; enclosing‘

copy of Garnet Wolseley's dispatch.

2. R.C.Z. Minute paper 1/7/80. Wheelwright unfortunately '

, did not indicate what these many questions were.

. K
\.
\. ,«
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succeeded Sir Theophilus Shepstone as administrator in '

V March l379;L and so on the Ides of March 1880, Osborn

5 assumed officeg. Gibson rightly said of him, "His task

; ‘ was one of greet difficulty, how difficult will perhaps

% never be realised. His position was one in which it

1 was difficult to obtain credit for the trouble he prevented,

1 because of the large amount of trouble that occurred." 3

g 1 It is convenient here to sum up how the new scheme

3 was working; All men under forty who were still unmarried

g lost no time in availing themselves of the general j

§ permission to marry.’ No shield-bearing Zulu had been :

g permitted to leave the country; ‘now these young men _ ;

% ' hastened to places where they.could earn money to acquire (

§ herds. A large number of them had gone to Natal for work

1 which they obtained chiefly on the railway construction.

3 Those who had returned were pleased with the wages they ‘

§ had earned, and "going to work“ was becoming popular in ‘.

i Zululand{ Osborn suggested the continuation of the Agent

5 system for getting labour 4. All this augured well for

E the future especinlly as their complaints and sorrows had

Q been many after their enormous losses in cattle and grain

A during the Zulu war 5.. " what then‘led to “the large 1

g amount of trouble“ to which Gibson referred in his estimate

% of csborn 2 l =\ 2‘ " -’«‘ ‘“ ‘ -'

g It was strange that their conquerors required no

3 form of tribute from them." Those who know the Zulu mind

f say that they regarded this as‘a form or weakness,- such

i magnanimity is incomprehensible to a barbarian. 6 ‘

E ~. /They...... !

3 1. Sir T{Sheoetone was now living in retirement ‘

in Pieterfnaritzburgmusaellt p.220. de Kiewiet p.237. '

§ 2. Votes and Proceedings,Legislative Council,Natal,

I ‘ telegram Wolseley to Bulwer 7/1/80.

K 3. Gibson op cit p.222. ‘ . ‘

% 4. D.B.M.O. Csborn to Colleyflo/11/80;Gibson pp.222-3.

. 5. de Kiewiet p.289.

% 6. Cf.Stuert op cit p.312. ‘ ‘



' (61)

They regarded the appointed chiefs as Indunas of the

British Government rather than as indefiendent rulers,

and those who had once been in high authority resented

the uncontrolled authority of those whom they had not

' always regarded as people to be obeyed. Both Umnyamana

and Ndabuko smarted under these grievances, and the

latter began to agitate for the return of his brother
. 1

.

_ Cetywayo . Ihe representative of the conquerors had

no authority; and even if he had, he had no force with '

which to back it up; further, he had resigned his post, i

and there were many who asked why, and in a land of ‘

superstitution weird and wonderful rumours spread. '

- ' Through Dunnis intervention, however, the Resident

got a certain increase of authority. It happened that

Dunn was having trouble with cattle traders whose cattle

were trespassing on the gardens of Natives; he also ' ‘

complained of this to the High Commissioner and wished

to know who was to deal with British subjects travelling 3

through the country as this was not envisaged in his ;

’
HI

_ Deed of Chieftainship. ‘The upshot of this was that

esborn was appointed a magistrate within Zululand as A E
. . 2 _ . ‘

. and from 14th September 1880. _ _ ‘I .

At the same time Dunn wrote to Sir Garnet Wolseleyr 3

suggesting certain proposals for the betterment of . _

I 7ululand. He wrote because he could not help noticing I

the feeling,in Natal against the Settlement of the Zulu I

country, owing flchiefly to the British Resident in here I

receiving his pay from Natal“ ? Dunn first proposed '
.. ,

_ _ '_ /that...”
y 1. D.B.M.Q.‘Osborn to Bulwer.l3/7/80. ‘ "“'

2. B.C.Z. Colley to Osborn 14/9/80. ‘ . “ ,

3. Actually Natal paid one half and the Transvaal the ‘

other. Doc 90 and 107 presented to Legislative Council

Natal; Vol 37 and V0 39: fihtes and Proceedings {

Legislative Council,Natal:Telegram Wolseley to Bulwer

ll/1/30. ‘ ,- 4: , , _g-__\: E

' = - ' - s f

. . E

. ‘
~

l

' '1
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that the Native Chiefs of the Territories should’ have ‘

1;‘-=.=o white administrators of :»:’.ulu law, men who thoroughly

under5T'.oo:i the language and customs of the people. The »

_ said a;;L':.inist.rators to be under appeal to the chiefs in

cases of eulu ve. Tulu, end to the British Resident in

cases of British subjects vs Zulus. All chiefs should

be authorised ‘to levy a tax of 10/-s a hut on all people ‘

under them. .1-"rem this tax pay ‘the British Res1dent'£530 V

:1 year to cover edxninisltration costs. The Chiefeshould ;

keep the roads in repair and for their upkeep should put “

a toll on them. There should be an immigration scheme.

Each irr.mig:*ent to pay £25 a year in advance. He is to be

there for the purpose of agriculture, «stock-forming or

z;»uz~suit.:-; if irkiustipy. No eyirits are to be introduced for

either sale or barter. out of the revenue received, £50

a year is to he ear-marked en a g,-‘rent-in-aid for education.

' That the scheme was f.‘es.sible‘Dunn‘could inform Sir.Garne_t _ j

‘-.:volseley;f,('/with the exception ofthe immigration proposal’, ‘

he was successfully cegrymg out. such a programme. Osborn ‘[

supported Dunn's view“ and Sir Theophilus Shops‘-.'.one‘

concmured but suggested a hut tax of 14/25.3 Osborn

, sounded the chiefs on the new proposals -but nothing x-ms’ «V

' _dc:1e at the time‘ as the Boer \'-‘Io: hadbroken out.,'but the

ougiiesiione were kept‘ in mind.§ ‘ ‘ I " ' 7

new Government had succeeded Disreel1's in July

1880. The political philosophy of this mid-Victorian - .

Liberal 3;?-.1"-’c.:,' ‘to whom both Kimberley sand Gladstone .

belonged was one that counselled abstention rat her than

. " _/interference... . ' :

l..?.-?..C.Z. Kimberley to Sir Hercules Robinson 28/4/81 1

enclosing Dunn's proposals.
2.D.El.;..-1.-O. Oobornka memorandum to Colley 4/9/80. , ~ ; :~

:3.i.C.;':. Erhepstone to Colley 18/9/8::-.Shepstone had levied .1

a hue tax of 75 on every native but in Natal as early \

as 15349.
-".~..D.B.3.1.‘~-’. Cnshorn to Evelyn wood l/6/81. '
5.‘./ide p. '79. iFff“in_f‘:-a.

6.The new Secretary of State for "Colonies. . . $

. If ‘
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interference, and that saw self-help as a leading

virtue of all self-government". Its platform had

been that the Tulu War was an unjust one; .it now

’ behoved the Government to evince sympathy towards

‘ those who had suffered by it. Cetywayo was not ‘

slow to make the best use of this hint and eventually

1 . succeeded in visiting the Queenfb Gledstone's

cabinet_also adversely criticised the annexation of _

the Transvaal. It soon witnessed the retrocession

of that land to the Boers, and, later the restoration ;

of Cetywayo. A new ministry in England also saw a

change of Governors in Natalj Sir Henry Bulwer was

‘ succeeded by Sir George Pomeroy Colley, who as

Colonel Colley had accompanied Sir Garnet Wolseley, I

. after the Langalibalele outbreak, to Natal where the y l

latter carried "Jamaica" reforms and drowned the ‘ E

liberties of the fiatalians"in sherry and champagne'1 _ }

' ’ .InlHovember the Potchefstroom officials had ‘

sued the Boer, Bezuidenhout, for his taxes and when '

he proved that he had paid them, they mulcted him '

I with costs end distreined upon his wagon. This was :9

_ too much for the'Boers.‘ Cronje with 330 men rescued {

‘ . the wagon; l5G0 armed men speedily assembled and ,

British troops were rushed up to the Transvaal. A _'

great meeting of Boers was held from the 8th to the ; .

13th Decehber at gaardekraal (present Krugersdorp),

when it ens decided to fight. On historic December 5

‘ 16‘, the Vierkleur. was hoisted‘ and the ‘-‘far of 4 i \

Independence began?. It wes destined to be short and i

indecisive. .' " ’ ”1.'.h.‘ ‘
' " /In Zululand.... i '

a_ L¢l7 D@x}¢4 of.aX1 Cxafazy. .~ ‘:1 1; T ‘ ' Q

l. Vide Walker p.363. = 2 I .1 ‘ y -

2. ibid p. 387f388; Russell p; 249:?d9.y ,* “g‘Q r

.. §‘.\l if

" =3
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In Zululand, Umnyamena had been placed in Uhamu's

territory but refused to acknowledge himcas his overlord. ~

' The latter had demanded from Umnyamana the full restoration

of all cattle, some 1400,seized from him and his people

. ' Vhy the Zulus during the lste war immediately after his

secession from Cetywayo. This the former had refused{ f

Umnyemans appealed to Osborn, but he could not deal with ,

‘ the internal affairs of the chief, although he considered .

that Uhamu had acted oppressively since the cattle he ‘'

claimed were Royal cattle and legally belonged to the 5

hritish. Osborn realised that this would mean trouble -: i

and asked Colley for advice. The Governor suggested giving I

Umnyamana a territory; but Osborn considered that this _

would lead to other disaffected chiefs throwing off their _

allegiance to the appointed chiefs, and before Colley could E

answer him he had given his life at Majuba on the 27th. ‘ ‘

February ,188l, and bsborn anxiously awaited his euccessor's {

decision.l % ‘ . . a _ '

Hdabuko who was residing in Usibebu“s location was L E

trying to get Cetywayo restored. He had‘ been to W :‘L

Pieternaritzburg in Msy, 1880, to petition the Government '

in this respect, but had been referred to the Resident.‘ § _ I

: Usibebu fined him for going to Pietermaritzburg without ' ‘

permission, but he refused to pay. He too, smarted under

a grievance, and was in touch with Umnyamana ? Osborn ‘ t i

' thought that if only the Governor could interfere euthorita- %

4 tively all would be well, but the time was out of Joint; '

for both the new Governor, Sir Evelyn Wood, and the new I

High Commissioner, Sir Hercules Robinson, had gone first to’ E E

Newcastle and then to Pretoriaato complete the final terms S f

of the Pretoria Convention4 which terminated the first Boer fl §

‘I-far 5. ‘ ~ ?
-/The one.....

1. D.B.M.Op 25/l/81;18/5/‘G1:20/9/81:30/5/81: V ;
4/12/80:7/12/80: 6/4/8l:Gibson p.225-227. {

2. D.E.M.O. minute dated 31/4/81. _ 3
‘ 3° D.B.M°O. Osborn to Wood 22/4/8l- 5

‘ 4° Eybers Select Constitutional Documents p.455 ff. ‘ , ' i

5. ‘-.!alke:.'- pyhssswaoi} Russell p.258-2s9; my BMW of-M‘-/MW”

. " ‘ . 1



_ - <65)

The one peaceful spot in zululand was Dunnsland, 4

and three months after the conclusion of hostilities 4

with the Boers, Dunn asked to be allowed to construct - F

- a harbour on his sea coast, and to enter into agreements L

with the chiefs of Zululand for the right of transit_ E

‘ through their territories for a railway which he E

intended to build to the Transvaal. The moment was E

thought to he unpropitious for such a grandiose scheme, »

' and Dunn was thanked for his offer.l It is idle to ,

speculate what would have been the political result j

had such a scheme been put into operation. There was 3 p

A much of Rhodes in Chief John Dunn. ’:

Osborn informed Colonel Mitchell, who was acting ;

in Natal, that a Natal Native, Sitimela, was causing -

mischief in Zululand; that he would apprehend him and ,;

send him to Natal if his information were correct.2 s ‘

The greatest stigma attaches to Dunn over this ' 1 .

affair. Bishop Colenso accused his people of slaughter-ff‘ ;

ing women and children as well as men, - his eye witness i‘

being one Manxele. I . . J; L .

Sitimela laid claim to the chieftainship of the p ‘ 5

' Umtetwa over which his Uncle, Umlandela, an appointed. : E g

' chief, ruled; He based his. claim on the fact that he i 4

was the son of Somveli, son of Dingiswayo, a predegessor E ‘

of Chaka. Chaka drove Somveli out of Zululand, but by 7 f

the principle followed by Sir Garnet Woleeleyahe should

be chief. when Osborn learned that he claimed the A K

chieftainship he sent for him, but he had ‘fled back to z _"

Natal.4 Bishop Colenso says, according to his f ‘ ‘

‘ informant, Maxele, that Sitimela had gone to Zululand ! ;

to discuss tribal matters (not specified) and had no“ 3 E

desire to turn out his old uncle, but when he heard 5

that Umlandela was sending an impi after him he fled, ‘ V

‘ 1 /In July.... t

l.D.B.M.O. Osborn to wood 8/8/8l,enc1osing ~ y

Dunn's letter dated 25/6/81. 2.D.B.M.O. Osborn to E.

' Mitchell 28/6/8l.3.Vide ..5o supra: 4.D.B.M.0.0sborn ,5

4 . -- - .a - 7 81: 5. Bieet p.114. ,



‘ (es)

' In July, 1881, some six months after his first .

appearance in Zululand he reappeared, as Coleneo avers

not to fight but to talk over matters 'amicably' with

: his uncle. He had merely come, says Colenso, to claim

the house and property of Somveli. Umlandela refused

this and Sitimela then‘went to the appointed chief

Somkele to ask him to send over some of his headmen

to be present at the negotiations with Umlandela.

‘On his return:from‘§omke1e, Umlendela had left and “

gone to John Dunn? ‘The truth seems to be that . §

_ Sitimela went to Somkele to solicit his aid to turn

’ out his Uncle, who was very ill and incompetent.

Sitimela gathered A force round him, - his claim to .

the chieftainship, false or true, haying gained

credence, - and forced the aged chief to flee to n n

w Dunn for protection. Sitimela then assued the 1

» chieftainship-and, as is the custom in these cases.

sent Osborn two head of cattle. Osborn ordered the

: pretender to appear before him,2but instead of‘ p

‘ obeying he formed an impi of 1,900 strong. .' ‘E

. Sir E.Wood received a telegram from Dunn, dated

i. . July 8, stating thet rebellion had broken out in the

‘territory of Chief Umlandela, who had fled to Dunn

E ‘for protection. Dunn, in absence of the Resident, %

E asked for authority to suppress the rebellion. :

E flood replied that while Umlandela was in Dunn's i

Q territory, his person should he protected but’.

{ Umlandele must not organise his followers, nor was 3‘

g Dunn to interfere with onyone outside his territorys %

i A beyond using his influence in favour of good order. > i

E ‘ / Dunn..... ‘

1 1. Digest pp.259—275 for Colenso version.

5 2. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Mitchell 6/7/81 erroneously

g _ dated 28/6/81. a

A 3. ibid 13/7/81. _

I
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Dunn restored Umlandela to his territory in a

wagon, whereupon Osborn told Dunn not to interfere,

and apprehensively awaited Sitimela's and Umlandela's

_ indun-as. But Dunn, Without authority, or in complete

disregard of the above instructions of which he was

;f'ully aware. " lcalled out an impi snd marched into -

Um1andela's territory. This unauthorised, or rather ’

disobedient action on the part of John Dunn, says ' ‘ .

' Colenso, must, of course, have precipitated matters 1

"and rendered. a. peaceful solution of the difficulty ‘

almost impossible. But Colenso forgets that once

Umlandela had entered his territory he needed protection

and where was he to get it exceptifrom Dunn. ‘ I

I The Resident again. cited the two chiefs to appear

before him. Sitimela was only too willing to appear,‘ '

while Umlandela refused .' "'1-{ere we have ‘an appointed

chief backed up by John Dunn", says Colenso "refusing . .

_ to appearbefore "(.he'Resident." Osborn, however, .

excused Umlandela on the plea that he feared his. ' ‘

representatives would meet with harm from Sitime1a.‘s ‘ '

followers on their wey to him.2 Sitimela, in spit.e__‘ ‘

- of his "protestations, didnot put in an appearance. )‘ 4 ‘'

Osborn considered thathis own appearance in ’

Uz2le.'ndela's territory would be inadvisable unless‘

Sitimela refused to comply. As Sitimela did not 4 '.

appesr the ‘Resident set ‘off for‘ Mount finhlazatye ,: the’ ‘

scene of the action ' Dunn was st'i1l'assisting' L '

Umlandela with succees,“_while Somkele tacitly acknow;-'- :

ledged Sitimela. Oshornxrealised there was no chance !

ofsuppressing sitimela without some exhibition of force,‘

. which he could getby advis the loyal chiefs to send

strong contingents to help;U"mlandel%e‘.L ‘ ' .‘ .

‘ /Co1enso...... I

1. Colenso.
2. D.s.L4.o. Osborn to Mitchell 11/7/81. -
3. ibid 211-/'7/81. " -

4-. D.B.hI.O. Osborn to Mitchell 21/'7/81. .
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Colenso makes much of this. He says Osborn

actually told the loyal chiefs before the 25th that

he would possibly have to call upon their aid, so that.

when Sitimela heard of this he would not, for fear, go

to Osborn. But Sitimelais attitude was that of a person

in the wrong. What is more he was not afraid because he

mwtmt%mdemswmmgmmM¢ flewmmcwe.

. with the arrival of Somkele's eight companiesl. Somkele ;

afterwards explained this away by saying that his men E

would not return when told not to interfere,-but this‘ j

explanation was not accepted .2 !

_ _ Sitimela refused to go before Osborn if Dunn was

i ' present as he had threatened he would seize him, he

alleged, even in front of the Resident; Osborn could

not send Dunn out of the territory; ‘for to do so would. '

be to leave Umlandela imperilled, since Sitimela would 5

not disperse his impi. ~ 1 ' - -‘ ‘ “ ~ :

~ On the 27th Sitimela appeared with his impi. The‘ r E

people were told to disperse and to submit to Umlandela. I

.Sitime1a was told to leave the country.‘1Sitime1a" 3 "

A disobeyed and Osborn called upon leyal chiefs Dunn, ‘A

Umgitywa, Usibebu , and the Regentesiungaza 3 to render ‘

. armed force if applied for, but'no women or-children

were to be hurt in the event of war.4 9 y p " ' L

_ The next day at 8 a.m. Osborn sent Sitimela a last

warning to disperse his people and to leave the territory.

By 3 p.m. Sitimela prevaricated by saying he had ordered

the women and children to return home peacefully. Osborn I

insisted on the men being dispersed. _On the 30th Dunn i '

sent a party to ascertain if these men had been dispersed:

' The reconnoi$ring' party was attacked and seven men

A killed. mm then led forward his contingent, attacked 4

and put the impi to flight; 'sitimela escaped over the f

/Umfo1osi....... ' f
1. A Company consisted of 50 meni2-D-B-M-0-Osborn t0 i
3. Appointed chief Geozi had died. Mitchéll $4/7/81, ' f

D.B.m.o. Osborn to Mitchell 28/7/81. ' Q
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1 n

Umfolosi into the bush country.' Colenso says this is not E

a true version of what happened, and quoted his eye I

witness, Manxele, who testified before Hr. Fred B.Fynney

that "on the morning of the fight Sitimele was with his

followers at a kraal named Uyengo near the Nongidi Hills, V

_ when Chief John Dunn rode up, followed by his impi. E

As soon as he get within range he dismounted and fired i
_ I

upon Sitimela's followers, and then otherwhite men who_ , ‘

. . 5 _ .
were with him. five in number, fired also. Sitimela §

ordered his people to retreat as he did not want to fight."§ §

. e
Dunn also at that time, says Colenso, killed women and - Q

\ children. This he assures us upon the testimony of two 3

3 ,

eyewitnesses and published a list of 38 wives and ‘ K
. . 4

children of men of note who were killed on that occasion .

hanxele could not know what had previously happened

to the reconnoitrmg party and that Dunn had already been ?

attacked, nevertheless, if Colenso's allegations were f

true, then Dunn deserved the stigma that His Lordship ' 1

would put upon his name. Dunn, for his part, categori— : I

cally denied this inhuman barbarity, questioned the trust- ,

worthiness of Colenso's witnesses, and accused Mr. Fynney ‘

I 5 v

‘ of partielity, he being'one of Colenso°s jingoesfl 7 ’ 1

_ Fynney,in reply, vituperated Dunn in a long letter to the

. 6 .

local press . Had there been no other evidence Dunn's ‘

accusers would have to admit that a state of rebellion ;

existed, or at least that matters called for speedy action; j

that Dunn, alone with other 1oye_l'chiefs.had been ‘ ’ *

authorised to suppress Sitimela's faction. His action,

too, would no doubt have been vindicated in a court of f

7
13.1"}: ’

/ Fortunately.... K

l.Notes and Proceedings Legislative Council,Natal,

Governor's speech ooctober 6 1881. Vide also Digest p. *

128 for Dunn's actual account. ~ _

, 2.Digest. p.l7=l8. 3. ibid pp.l27-129. 4. Digest PP-209 P
e275. 5. Digest p.148. 6. Ibid pp.l73-175. ;

7.Cf the case of General Dyer who ordered his troops to Q

‘ fire on a mob of rebels in the Punjah,India in 1919 when - ,

- martial law had been proclaimed.He was removed from the ?

arnyolater tried by English Judge and Jury when main ~ {

issue was whether he had used "unnecessary force". Both 1

the Court & public opinion vindicated him & conceded his c

_ action had Vseved India".(§§}§}aEe£§%”X§Z£2{39)“hat A ,
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Fortunately there is other evidence; Osborn who was

> almost on the spot said "All the information which has E

reached me on the subject shows that no bodily harm was i ?

done to the women and families of Sitimela's party: F

they were, however, taken prisoners, the captors granting k

their release on receiving one head of cattle for each t

as ransom." This rather knocked the bottom out of . r

. Colenso's allegations, but nothing daunted he sulkily Q

remarked, "Those who had no relations to ransom them were A‘

kept by the captives." 1 There was no proof of this. é \

3000 head of cattle here captured, of which _ ‘ w

;’ Umlandela recognised 1400 as his own. He then unwillingly ;

. distributed 60 among his adherents who complained bitterly %

of his meanness. The balance, about 1500, were kept by

Dunn asla reward for his services. Gibson says Sitimela

disappeared and no enquiry was ever made to find out if

he were the rightful heir to the chieftainship of the

Umtetwa.3 . _ _ _l_ s . V

‘ At this juncture Osborn suggested that Sir Evelyn‘ V

Wood with 100 mounted men as escort should come to 4. "

Zululand, now that his work at Pretoria was completed,

to deal with Somkele, and to make awards in connection s : ‘

h with Umnyamana and Kdabuko, who were still truculent ? '

It was also an excellent moment politically to bolster ’

up Wolseley'8 tattered settlement: The Chiefs now knew

that the Resident had no supreme power: Chiefs Tshingana

and Umfenwenlela, too, were having trouble with the tribes &

under them; possibly, says Osborn, this agitation had

been engineered by Ndabuko and UmnyamAna.6 . Q

' 4 /Cutside..... ‘, *

1. Digest pp.259a275. Give both sides together with. ;

Colenso°s comments. " ' ~ ,

2. D.B.hI.0. Osborn to wood. 18/2/82. A _ p

3. Gibson p.230. , - f

4. Pretoria Convention signed 3rd August l88l(Eybers) ;

5. D.B.M.O. Osborn to weed 12/8/81. * V

6. ma. 1/6/81. \ . A .

i‘
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Outside of Zululand the Basutos had won the honours of

-war in the Disarmament affair; Majube had lost English

prestige: the Boers had got back the Transvaal, albeit,

under the suzerainty of the Queen, if anybody knew what

that meant, and the Pretoria Convention had defined the

boundaries of the Transvaal state on all sides} with _

which it was now necessary that all concerned should be

acquainted. Further the time was ' propitious to breach g

the subject of a general imposition of the Hut Tax, - V

with the exception of Dunn; the collection of Taxes by the 5

>~ Chiefs had proved abortive: - the appointment of sub-

Residents in both a political and a magisterial capacity

with the chiefs;'and the granting of increased powers to

the Resident, «innovetions that uould render the Wolseley :

' Settlement nugatorY.2 ’ ‘ ' "' A ”' ‘ A‘ i

. The meeting was arranged for the 29th August, but V

inclement weather csused it to be postponed until the

. Blst. Six of the appointed'chiefs put in an appearance: :

Umcojana; the Regent Siyungazi-(Gaozi‘s territory); hlubi,

: Chingweyo,'Usibebu and John Dunn; Representatives came

instead of Seketwayo, Fa§ukasinigo'and Uhamu: these Chiefs

. were either obese or too infirm to attend personal1y.'f

Umlandela,‘Umfenawenlela, finfiityna and Somkele were 'V< '

unrepresented, slthough apologies were r::.lved from each.

In the case of Somkele it was highly significant.. About ‘

a thousand followers together with certain hereditary ‘

chiefs which included Ndabuko with Cetywayo‘s little heir.

Dinizulu,-Usiwetu and Umtonga of 1861 fame, completed the

indaba." ' ' ' ‘ "' ' ‘

. The proceedings began with address "A", summarising E

the Eros and cons of Hajuba.‘ it was interpreted by Mr.

Eoastgsand was designed to recoup British Prestige. "Mr. ‘

Ruaolfgthen interpreted Memorandum "B" comprising

’ _ /proposals.»zra -
1. Walker pages 286=39l.

2. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Wood 6/8/81. ’
3. osumnds mulqibqv . r
4“ 1,; gg,¢Lja~ un¢,4.¢ owzloruuao. _ _ ‘



' ‘ (72) i

for the better government of Zululand. Dunn's 5

influence will be patent as we discuss them.l g

The Chiefs unanimously assented to the general ;

imposition of a lo/-9 hut tax, part of which was to }

meet all the expenses incurred by the British }

Government for the good of the Chiefs, the Zulu people E

and Zululand. This envisaged sub-Residents. Dunn g

declined and two of the Chiefs deferred their answer. $

to the proposal that Chiefs were to have European V '

Officers if desired. All agreed that the Resident, i .

.. - sub-Residents and expenses of Zululand should be met ?

by part of the hut tax to be imposed, while not one ’

desired to defray the expenses of a border police from

ibis source. Again it was unanimously decided to ; :

maintain roads and to levy reasonable tolls: Dunn d i

. alone considered his territory sufficiently advanced ' .

to establish industrial schools. Two chiefs deferred

their opinion on the profiosal that no liquor was to be ‘ I

for sale, barter or gift. All agreed to a periodic ‘

assembly of the chiefs. _ ' . ‘ -

His Excellency then-proceeded to deal with the

_ recalcitrant chiefs. His award was that Uhamu was \ I

to restore one half of the 1400 cattle seized from i {

Umnyamana, considering that a fine of 700 on Umnyasana

was sufficient.’ Usibebu was likewise to restore one i

' third of the cattle to ifdabuko and Usiwetu as soon as

the two last named quitted his territory. It was at ‘

this point that the interpreter, Rudolf, is alleged _ i

by Colenso to have translated His Excellency as having .

A said, "Po turn you out, Ndabuko, Dinizulu and Usiwetu E

- because you are always saying that you want the ‘bone’ E

of that scoundrel (ishanga) whom we have done away %

with”. The reference to Cetywayo as 'a scoundrel' §

~ _‘ /deeply..... . F

1. vide p.61 ~62 supra. L

' r
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deeply ogfended, we are told, the hereditary chiefs '

- present _, but Oshorn who.was present and was a

brilliant linguist, denied hearing the offending wordz.

‘ The indaba concluded and Lord Kimberley was duly

informed of what had taken place. Her Eajesty's

Government agreed to the levy of the hut tax; to the

‘ making of and maintenence of roads and their upkeep

' by means of tolls; to the preventing of the importation

of spirituous liquors; and to the periodical assembly f‘

of chiefs, since "these proposals involve in themselves g

» no increase of interference on the part of the British ;

., Resident", but no part of the hut tax raised could be ‘

used to pay the salaries of either Resident or proposed

subafiesidenteg for in so doing the Chiefs might believe '

that it “would secure the general direction o£'Zulu '

affairs by the British Government”.. Her Majesty's

4 Government further refused to extend the powers of the K: ‘

Resident as that "would lead to placing Zululand‘ ' E

A virtually under British rule. To pay the Resident ‘ i

would constitute a direct obligation on the part of the. £ i

British Government. He would then exercise real {

‘ authority, and‘this to be effectually exercised must I i

necessitate a force adequate to compel obedience. The '

combination of Chiefs could not be relied upon for this I

purpose, as they might ex.“ resist their orders if they " l

were directed against oppression or misgovernment on

their part, or they might be divided amongst themselveg. V

p The crux of the matter was that the British Government 7

refused to incur further expenditure. The Treasury :

_ curmudgeon had had bitter experience of the cost of ‘

Colonial defences, and had ingeminated economy, which *

. I [de_Kiewiet,.. L

1. Digest,psesim,consult index ishanga (Scoundrel)
P.P.H.E.”Bishop Colenso on Cetyweyo".R.C.Z.Wood to y

Osborn enclosing Colenso's letter 18/15/81. . 5

2. D.B.H.u. Report on Bishop of Natol's letter to Sir i

E.wood 15/10/81. . ' g
3. R.C.Z. Wood to Kimberley 16/9/81: Bulwer to Osborn :

15/3/82 enclosing Lord Kimberley's dispatch. _[



‘ (74) ~ "
. A 1 .

De Kiewiet considers was false economy; we

subscribe to that opinion in view of the events k ;

that follow. Had the resident an adequate force, %

which could have been maintained at least partly E

. out of the proceeds of the hut tax, he would have

v'* been able to prevent most of the bloodshed that

' followed.‘ Cetyweyo would not have been restored

' end there would not have been his war with “

Usibebu, nor would the New Republic have been I"

- formed, which resulted from this war as the i

’ i ‘ sequel will showl I This was not to be. and i

. Lord Kimberley now had to seek a formula which '

would ena‘ole‘England to withdraw, he hoped, ‘

‘ A . _ "from her present invidious position. His :

. solution was the ewentual restoration of Cetywayo. £

‘ 'But first we nust deal with the events '

4 ‘ , immediately aiter the greet indaba. There had

i . been so much talh of subeResidents that the idea f

I even stinulated the incompetent Umlandela, but i

.f in a way unthought of by its proposera. He V“

' A ' ' _ caused a minor stir.by asking John Dunn to be his ‘

" 4 \unflele(subeResidenti, The suggestion was unthinh i

L ’ ‘able; an appointed chief to be the subafiesident ; ‘

3 ' ‘ of enother appointed chief, but he had made the

' request in good faith: he owed his life to Dunn: E

' his people would not obey him and the Resident _ E

was powerless to aid him. Dunn was unwilling to é

I act in this capacity; but was quite prepared to ‘

take over the territory. Osborn scotched the £

I idea, because other chiefs might do the same and L

I : _ so stultify the present settlement; Kimberley " 3

' _ upheld his decision.2 '
. ‘ , I _ /Uhamu. . . . . . ' ;[

1. de Kiewiet p.197." '
' 2. R.B.M.0. Osborn to hvelyn Wood 15/9/8l;R.C.Z.- E

mood to Osborn 12/1?/81 enclosing Lord k

Kimber1ey's dispatch; Digest p.275. . g

- R
. ' ‘ 3
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Uhamu refused to obey wcod’s award to restore F

. Umnyamana"a cattle, and in September the disaffected ' E

Abaqulusi tribe in his district joined Umnyamana. ;

. The Abaqulusi were the personal retainers of the ex-King, k

' :;x1£. had :aLu"i‘arec‘l on his behalf‘ 1;: the late \'u'.21!‘{ By"

the Uolscloy Settlement they had been placed in Uhama'a ;

charge, and he had done nothing to make them feel at k

home. In January previously. Oaborn had learned that _

3' they mere on the move as their position had become I %

’ intolerable. All he could find out was that they were ! 1

' thought to be going to join the Boers 1. ~Qsborn now ' l {

set off to see Uhmmu ? Usibebu, in fulfilment of i

Wood's Award, expelled Hdabuko, Dinizulu and Usiwetu,

and they ran into Umnyamana'a open arms. They sfiouhd

have gone to Dunn's terr1tory.but instead they elected 3

‘. to residé with Umfanawcnlela.because he was a weak

ruler and his land was contlguous with Uhamu's.3 So J

much for fihe best laid scheme of Eolseley. war was ' :

imminent, and on the 2nd October Uhamu met the Abaqulusi‘

on the right bank of the Bivana River, the boundary §

between toe Transvaal anfi Zululand. The battle was \ '

short and bloody; hundreds of defeated Abaqulusi were 1

‘ killed; only those orosaing the ricer escaped with their T ,

lives. B} the 21st 2f the month all was quiet and the . ?

irapis had dispersed.‘ - V’

The Sitimela and Abaqulusi " affrays wore the only

’ two serious conflicts that took place under the 1879 ‘ :

Settlement but they were sufficient to indicate the I ' ;

ineffectualneos of such a scheme. some other and better |

method had to be devised. flolseley's Settlement was . 5

' moribund; the Abaqulusi affair was its swan-song; it :

. non only needed inteékont. ' E

Dunn, writing in 1386, summed up the Wolseley , %

- , Settlement: "the so-called settlement of Zululand was _“ f

I Osborn to c.:11cy 24/l/81. F i‘the..2;: ;
?*-'-r“. r r;.~~:.,'v.
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the maddest piece of policy ever heard of, as the

_ ziulu peogzle, after’ their'defeat naturally looked 3

upon themselves as subjects of the Government and then

. they would uillingly have allowed ‘themselves to be

moulded into. any. shape‘ . V The country ought to have

beon annexhed and bi‘ough£_under Britishlllulel at first ‘ ‘

' ‘ without sending; Cetyw-zayo évaay. ‘The settlemeni; as

ruade by Sir ‘Gal:-ne‘t Wolseley having ho alternative V

- wouldhave worked well for some years if the Resident : f

_ _ had been vested wi?.'.h greater authority, and'a small Q

I ' force had beén. at his command to carry‘ out his _

orders " _ 1 ‘ ‘ '

4 /CHAP'1‘E'R V. t

. l. Dunn !>.D.1l.8-119. A "* ‘-“ " , - " .' "A  

' " . .1- 2 . ~ . '-. »: "2 ‘

_ . . - ' I. ‘ I _ ‘ K. I r

‘ . . . . . ff
. _ I _. ‘I

ll 11.
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Chapter V v %

v
THE BULKER SETTLEMENT. ‘

‘ Before the final scheme for the future policy of

Zululand was determined upon several proposals were

submitted to the British Government. As some supreme Q
_ t

. authority was felt to be absolutely necessary, John ‘ i

' Dunn modestly proposed himself as supreme chief. This $
1 _

was refused, although it was recognised that his was the ',

. only territory where law and order had pgevailed since i x
. , 2 4; T

‘ the Ulundi Settlement . The'Eransvaal , Bishop Colenso

. 5 . _
and Lady Dixie wished for Cetywayo's restoration. The

Revd. Robertson, a lifetime missionary in Zuluand, hished
‘ 6 . . .

for Magistrates. Natal, for the most part, clamoured .

, for the annexation of Zululand to Natal, - the"safety -
. .. 7

. valve’ was still working. Cetywayo himself, was, like

' Dunn, most imoortunate in his own behalf. ‘His letters

. to the various persons in high authority had been frequent: ,

and elegant, Q Lady Dixie, the wellémeaning authoress ._i

and others had visited him at cape‘ Town,’ helping him to : a E
» 8 . _ 2

pen mellifluous epistles. He'soon began to produce the E

' desired effec"t.; A_ on the 15th July, 1831‘, he ac1<iz’-eased at

~' ' letter to Lord Kimberley, begging.to be taken to England

to state his case.- ' .l,g‘{: ; ’_ .'5 ‘5 ' 4 ’ i

. 4 . _ ’ 1 'h.ifi *;< :./ A telegraphic...» '

l.Gibson op cit p.232. .' ' A" -- ‘
~ 2.Doe.ll2,188l, Presented to Legislative Council,Natal. 1

Vol 41. . *
3.D.B.M.0. Osborn to Wood 8/10/8l:Gibson op cit pp.230-

232 for details. - . V
4.This solution of the problem had been advanced as early

as May 1880 when Sir Henry Bulwer maintained that it
was the Bishop's interference in Culu Affairs that

caused the agitation for Cetywayo's return.(Doc.37. .

1833, Presented to Legislative Council,Natal.Vo1. 44. ‘

5.D.B.M.O. Ceborn to Bulwer 22/ll/82:"Lady Dixie {

. declared that Cetywayo's restoration was owing to the ‘ ‘

efforts of the Bishop and his daughter." Vida also 1 ;

~ Lady Dixie "In the Land of Misfortune" passim. - ;

6. E.C.Z. Revd .Robertson to Osborn 1/7/80. ) ,

7. Does. 112 and 113, 1881, presented to Legislative g

Council, Natal. Vol 41. Cetyweyo) f
8. Grent,Thuraday,EOth Sept, 1883, “Do you/remember a ,

lady visiting you with Sir Hercules Robinson while you E

were at Oude Kolen ?” He at once described Lady Qixie. F

He spoke in the warmest terms of her friendship Iorz (i

him and all she had done. 914m. of7.ov(',>}a/o~n. - ol~a,e2.7. /,
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y I A ‘telegraphic reply came on the l4th September

informing him thatlhis application was being favourably t

I considered. and in 1882 he went to England where he

saw the Queen‘ and impressed the English 230 much that he \

' was to be restored to haJ.f his territory .1 ’

Dunn considered that the restoration of Cetywayo if

“would turn the country’ upsidepdown" and ‘-:-5:.-s most ' .

A emphatic that he would not come into Zululand across ‘

the Tugela. Both Sir Evelyn Wood and Sir Hercules I 1

Robinson in an interview with him at Newcastle after j .

' ‘ \_‘ .t'ne Transvaal settlement stated that "they could ‘ I. ‘

ALMOST "guarantee that the lmperial Government would ' ‘ 2‘

not restore C‘ety‘wayo" . hadno objection to the ~

‘Imperial Government annexing the whole countryend

5 7 leaving Cetyweyo. to rule the northern while he retained '

' the present territory with the Umhlatuzi River as a " :

“hui‘:’.‘er“.' He was also emphatic that he would not '

give up his territory without remunere{tion2. . -‘

. ' when Sir (;‘;arnet.\.-volseley had approached Dunn to E

be a chief he had promised in the name‘ of the English E

Government that Cetywayo would not be restored. only

‘ on this condition would Dunn accept the post 3. 1 ‘ I

p I-Io-.-v in J2-muaz-y, 1882, Her ‘Majesty's Government 1

‘inti.-rzzated that it intended to re-establish Cetyweyo ~ ' I

in part of the country 4, Dunn now learned that what7=

one Cabinet promised, its successor might and often

did forswear. _ < ' ‘

As soon as Ifidabuko and Umnyamana learned ‘of the ‘ = I

possibility of Cetyweyo '3 return they tried to get

territories of their’ own, complainixg that they had no ' I

_ land in which to live. This was simply untrue. They ' .

had been told to go to Dunneland where there was I

" plentb’, but had not done so. / To them”””.

' C\§T:11?J:E§n“.r.J}7‘.22‘3~23-2zllusséill p.259,'l4.ul7«9r'»x_}c 64¢/12/_

3 1:..52.iaaszmEtéégsiesaaaagagggggsygs,-wglseley.3
dispatch to Secretary of State: Dunn p.l“l7. 1:

R.C.Z. Wood to J.v-Lshepstone 12/l/82. W



To them Dunnsland was a gilded cage. Their demand for E

territories was refused. Then they stirred up ‘ g

agitation on Cetywayc‘s behalf. They told certain E

chiefs in Dunn's territory not to regard Dunn as chief" F

any longer. It is the refusal of Ndabuko and Umnyamana, F,

said Osborn, "to recognise the appointed chiefs over “ E:

them that causes all the trouble, and further trouble ‘ E‘

is likely.to ensue because of their demands for : E

independent territories.I The Usutu opposition to T2’;

f Dunn is explicable by the fact that he chiefly would F‘

oppose the restoration: and had not bunn said in , . 5‘

‘ I February, 1882, to’a friend, "As soon as I get sight ' E

A I of Cetywayo I‘l1 shoot him 2 " Dabulamanziaided 7 I.

' Edabuho and the strangest rumours pervaded Dunnslandz ; d

i A ‘Dunn had run away from Pietermaritzburé to_escape : i,

‘ ‘imprisonment because he had incurred His Erce11ency's T

displeasure: Dunn was going to refund all the hut tax i

Z noney he had collected: and Melimata (Osborn) was to : ’

'eee this implemented.3 Sir Henry Bu1wer‘insisted that H >

' Dunn should not resort to arns without Osborn'a . i E

< permission-f‘ There must not be a second Sitimela. 5 E

4. It was decided to expel Dabulamanzi for refusing to. i g

_ A acknowledge Dunn as chief6 but Cetywayo's brother ‘ F

J ‘refused to budge and Dunn wished to use arms if Osborn F

"§ could do nothing. Once more the Resident advised Dunn g

‘ \3 ' ‘that arms were only to be used as a last resort, and i A,

" i‘ that he would be in Dunnsland as soon as he had dealt .

1\ _ with Umnyamana who had raised an impi against Uhamu. 2 1

. R Oshorn was able to persuade Uhamu and Umnyamana to 3

‘.‘_ A/J2’ disfierse their impis and when Debulamanzi's people g

‘.'f”;h' . _ /saw.... i
;'jl ~1,D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer 2/7/82: ,

' 31/4/32: 17/4/32: 29/6/82:8/6/82-.1 ' i
» 2.Digest p.105 in notis. .

3.D.B.H.O. dsborn to dulwer 29/6/82. ‘ ’ ’
4.Returncd to Natal once more as Governor in March 1882 '

5.R.Q.Z.Bulwer to Osborn 15/6/82. ‘;
6.Ib1d 8/7/82. ‘ y i E

. ' v -f V
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‘ saw Osborn and learned how they had been gulled by

..idle rumour, they, too, gave no more trouble for the

N time being. Thus Osborn vindicated Wolseley's faith

‘ . in him: Without a Police force he had been able alone

to disperse two impis and to bring peace where an ugly

situation had presented itself: for this meritorious :

‘ service Her Majesty was pleased to confer the C.M.G. '

1 I

; . . upon him . ‘ . " ‘ - I

While Osborn was havim; his hands full with the ‘

J ‘hereditary chiefs Boer Adventurers on the western .I _ 2

i frontier penetrated Seketwayo'e and Uhamu's territories I

. This wasthe beginning of the future New Republic. ‘

f As soon as it was bruited that Her Majesty's ;

J Government intended to restore Cetywayo, the agitation E

3 for and against his restoration worked up once'more to f

% fever pitch. The British Government was wisely testing i
‘ ‘ ‘ . 4 g

g ' public opinion,'but'unwisely acted contrary-to the f

? - opinion of the majorityf Those who had the ear of the E

«f . 3 4

3 Government also led it by the'nose. Natal ,Durban , F
5 .5 . 6 ',

3 and Dunn were‘ wainst his return. The Transvaal ', ,

* 8° 7 8 "

3 . ' The Aborigines‘ Prgfection Society , Lady Dixie , and ’

§' ‘ seven Memorialists wished the ex-king to be restored. E

I .

E Henry'Binns, later to become the premier of Natal, was i

3 in London in August, 1882, supporting Cetywayo's }

? _ restoration.. He wrotefito Harry Escombe, another future f
1 ' I

3 Natal Premier, that "I am to see Lord Kimberley in a f

‘ ' I _“ ‘. ‘ oaaoou

. . . p <

3 1. lbid 21/7/s2: a.c.z. Bulwer to "Osborn 29/6/82:
6/9/82: 15/7/82:.

. 2. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer 22/7/82: 17/11/82: 17/11/82“

1 Digest pp,5.'33a-534. we pwr Infra, I

‘ 3. Votes and Proceedings, Legislative Council,Natal,

¢' ~ l882.p 83.p.84. 1

; 4“ Doc.83.1882, presented to Legislative Counci1.Natal. L
Vol 43. . M 31/1/83 .

I 5. E.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 7/ll/82,encl.Dunn's letter] _

6. Doc.37,l883, presented Legislative Council,Natal. A

Vbl.44. Vide pages 78 and 127.

‘ 7. Ibid p.194 ff: D.B.M.0.0sborn to Bulwer 25/lo/82. .

‘ 8. Grant 29/9/83; 2/6/83: D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer

' 22/ll/82 V

v 9, D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bu1wer,l883.p.l5l. ‘
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‘ day or two, but it is very olear that he is leaving

South African motters pretty much to Courtneyl. I told

Courtney that I had no fear of any danger 2to Natal from .

Cetywayo's return, but that it was premature to discuss

_ it. They quite understood that Dunn and the Kinglets

would have to be squared first, but they are very anxious L

_ to bring it about as soon as it is safe and practicable."3 j

Here briefly we have what the Secretary of State thought fiv

_of South African public opinion. The responsibility and

T ' blame for the war that followed consequent upon Cetywayo's

_- restoration must fall upon the shoulders of those who ; ‘

blindly ignored the warnings and imprecationa of the folk 1

. on the spot. Binns was wrong, too, in supposing that V F

I . there was no danger to Natal; for as soon as Cetywayo was i

back he commenced to revive the Zulu war machine. The i

I British Government was also prepared unashamedly to waive _ i

_the most solemn promise of its proconsul, by squaring f E

Dunn and the kinglets. Unfortunately it not only broke ' “ }

i . its promise but also neglected to square Dunn. It says i

a great deal for the man that he remained ever loyal to ft

’.the British Government. British Colonial policy in South ‘I

‘ Africa was at its lowest ebh. ’ ‘ # "

‘ ‘ V Just as Sir Garnet wblseley had been entrusted with g E

' the post war settlement of Zululand, so Sir_Henry Bulwer ;

- had to find a formula whereby Cetywayo was restored to g

. half his kingdom; the kinglets could be satisfactorily E .

squared; the future of Natal was safeguarded} private '

individuals ' whom the king disliked were secured; and 1 i

a better administration put on foot.‘ His first essay was 5

to divide Zululand into two, the northern half for r l E

‘ Cetywayo, and the southern adjoinigg Natal for those E

who could not live under his rule : ‘ ' ' t
' r ‘,/Sassandrs—like.. V

1. Lord Kimberley was succeeded by the Earl of Derby. f

December 1882. ,

2. The Zulu war machine (Vide Stuart op oi? 99.67-91) E
3. I-‘.P.H.E. Binns to Escombe 12/3/82. ' ' t
4. D.B.E.O. Osborn to Bulwer 12/7/82i Gibson p.236.~ J
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Cassandre—like Osborn, however, did not doubt but that

Cetywayo would re-organise the Zulu military machine and

suggested a tripartite division of Zululand, which left

‘ faithful Usibebu independent-in the north; placed Cetywayo

conveniently in the centre and created a Reserve for those

when Cetywayo disliked in the south 1.‘ This was the c

scheme that Bulwer put up to the Secretary of State. It '

aimed at as nearly as possible a fifty-fifty basis; -- ;

Usibebu being’ allocated about a quarter of Zululand, W

} Cetywayo, a half, and the Reserve territory the final

‘ quarter, a with the added security of a loyal chief and

a warrior on the northern side of Cetyvayo's territory.

The British Government accepted the tripartite division

' but gave Cetywayo twoathirds instead of half Zululand 2.

Eulwer strongly opposed this final arrangement, but to no

_< purpose 3. ' ‘ ‘ - ' - _

x .-. It was left to Osborn to square the kinglets. They - '

were deposed from their independent chieftainships,although.

they still remained chief of their tribe; they were .

' informed of Cetywayois impending return and that they must .

choose either to stfy under him or to reside in the i l

' Reserved Territory ’. Hlubi and Dunn were within the '

Reserved Territory; there would be no need for their tribes

to move. Hlubi was satisfied with what the Government ‘

had decided to do? Dunn was disgusted and would say what

he had to say in writing. In his letter he claimed

compensation amounting to £20,000 ; to a sufficient

' location for his people; and to the payment of his three ‘

European Administrators for the unexpired period of their -

engagement 6. " §\» -
- _ ./The-secretary......

l.D.B.M}O. Memorandum for His Excellency Aug.1882.
2.Doc.37,l883, presented to Legislative Qouncil ,Nata1.

Vol 44; p.239 et seq (Lord Kimberley's\instructions as
contained in dispatches 28th & 30th November 1882.)

3.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 4/12/82. _ .‘\ _ - p
- 4.D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer 23/12/82.; -‘

5.,D.B.r.z.o. Osborn to Bulwer 23/12/82..
6.R,C.Z. Osborn to J.shepstone 8/1/83 enclosing Dunn's

letter; D.B.I\.-LO. Osborn to Bulwer ‘so/7/as enclosing

Dunn's letter ‘i '
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A The Secretary of State declined to pay compensation "as

there were no funds to nest John Dunn's claims even if

they were admissible", yet in the same dispatch he was

’ quite prepared to pay compensation to the chiefs them-

. selvensf This did not satisfy Dunn, and for the next two

years he persisted in making claim for compensation; To

take a leaf from his "book" - ‘He was deeply wronged by ;

being deprived of his country and his chieftainship, after i

' having been of the utmost use to the British cause during ‘I’

' the Zulu" "2. S\:ir"Henry }3ulwer'rea1ising,; the injustice

' that had been done begged him to stay peacefully on his ;'

land new the Twgelas in order to act as a buffer between

fiataland Zululand, and he would see‘. to his rights; but ‘-

' this promise was not‘ !<ept4, 'un1ess:‘-.=ze regard his being |

I appointed Amatonga Agent again -in i383 3. ‘.‘Dunn's ward ‘

. wa.s bounded in the south by the Tugela River, in the north

by the Umhlaatuzi River, on the west by a line from Band's 1 i

‘ Drift‘. on the Tugela to a spur of the Range abuttigg

the U.-mhlatuzi River, and on the east by the Indian Ocean .

It not until August,1s8s; that Dunn received '

£216.13. 4 in respect of paynent to his three ‘administrators

d but Dunn asked for an additional £150, being three amounts ‘

' of £50 to each Commissioner towards building.‘ Osborn . -

suggested giving Galloway £190 ‘for his building, but

nothing for the other two, and this was done 7. In 1888 "

4 ' Dunn was still hankering: after £133. 6.’ 8 for salwy paid

to his administrators. He was told to get receipts and ' _

vouchers together and the Governor would approach the 8 '9

Lords of the Treasury who eventually liquidated this amount.

‘ < - /Usibebuu...‘ V

‘ 1. R,C.Z. Eula-;er. to Osborn 22/1:2/83 enclosing :

, Derby's dispatch. V . _ - e .
:1‘. z.‘-oo;3ie preface to x,‘-un.n's“notee" ~

3. Ibid. . I
4. 11,1; , 5 \/ice infra p. /90.ff. ~

63. 2.3.22.0. Clarke to Holy Hutchinson is/9/~35. j f
7. ’9.I."..r='-.»;:. reborn to Bul-.-ser 15/3/35; Osborn to Hgvclock s

14/9/86:11./11?):§36:i€.C.it. i=;ul\:.-er to Osborn 4/9/33. I

' 3. E«f.C,::.". Havolock to Csborn 5/3/F..8:3,"4/SS: D.B.2s‘a.O.

Csborn to Haveloclc 31/3/83. V

. v_.
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Usibebu was set up as an independent chief in t

. I
his old lands. Of the remaining ten appointed chiefs, g

five elected to remain with Cetywayo - the unpunished }

somkele, Umlandela and Umcojana, - these two chiefs were t

related to°Cetywayo by marriage ,A- Rakukasinigo and V
1

Seketwayo; Henry Francis Fynn ‘was appointed Resident I

2 .

with Cetywayo .
,

Bulwer also put up a schene for the future § 9

. , administration of the Reserved Territory. He envisaged “

‘ the division of the territory into districts over which 7 f

he would place competent Magistrates. The Secretary of I

State considered thispremnture but recognised the 1

immediate necessity for a bodyguard of police for the E

Resident of the Reserved Territory. The European element f ”

of the bodyguard was to he limited to a small number of »

. 3

officers who should organise the Native Police . It was

also agreed to_raise a hut tax of 14/as in the Reserved ‘ '’

Territory "if there is no reason to apprehend any T >

resistance to it " ‘ , ' ~ “ ‘ I

_ _‘ All was now ready for the return of Cetywayo, g‘

- ‘ who, on the 10th January, 1883, set foot once more in E

, Zululand; seven days leter he was re-installed seeking 1

- 5

‘ in his truncated territory. He was no sooner back than

. ' 5 _

he began to cultivate his party . ,

The Usutus dnaeii-zngk-aithin Usi“bebu's territory .

' failed to submit to that chief's authority and committed y

acts of violence against his loyal subjects. Usibebu ; V

reported these acts to the British Government and finally ,

assembled a large force. On the 30th March a memorable ‘

' ' /battle...” ‘

l°For detailed replies of Chiefs vide D.B.M.O. ‘

Osborn to Bulwer 28/12/82. ,

2.D3c.37 ,l883,presented‘to Legislative Council,Nata1.

Vol ~'-1-4;.p.239 et seq. .

3.R.C.Z. Kimberley to Bulwer 30/ll/82. , "

é.R.C.2. Eulwer to J.Shepstone 18/1/83 _ %

5.Doc.33,l883,presented to Legislative Council,Natal, ‘ [

vol 4e,p.l8; Gibson pp.23l=24i. ;

6.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Shepstone 24/2/83: Gibson p.245. ;

 £2
1
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' E
" the

battle was fought in the valley of/Umsebeend the ;

Usutu.g§;?routed .‘ Osborn formed his bodyguard, the E

‘ Nongqai or Zululand Native Police, in April under the i

‘ command of George Mansel. It comprised 50 Natives, L

N.C.O.s and men, half of whom were recruited from Natal. E

This half was mounted and was under the command of two - %

European Officers. Dunn had little faith in this Native [
2

bodyguard On the first of May Mr. Pretorius took up V l

- his residence as sub-Resident with Hlubi; the Reserve : I

being an elongated‘territory it strategically required ; ‘

some competent person in the west to treat with the . i

3 r- Resident Commissioner stationed at Eshowe . This was .

the beginning of the division of Zululand into magis-

tracies as envisaged by Bulwer. 4

It is not proven that Cetywayo sent the impi which ,

Usibebu routed at Umsebe, although Bulwer thought that t
4 i

he did but it is quite clear that he summoned the men 4 i

_ I in the Reserved Territory to rise in arms against Uhamu »
I 5

the traitor. . So great was the uneasiness in the

Reserved Territory that Dunn wrote to the Resident asking f

if the inhabitants of the Territory were assured of 3

protection in case of molestation from Cetywayo, and

6 .
' asked the Resident Commissioner to point out to the

Special Commissioner Sir Henry Bulwer, the increasing

interference of Cetywayo with the people of the Reserved J

‘ Territory; the threats of vengeance which he holds out 9

against all those who refuse to acknowledge his authority, '

7 I

and also the consequent uneasiness . Osborn replied that '
8

a meeting of loyal chiefs was to be held , but as things £

quietened down nothing was done in the matter. v E

' . /Cetywayo...... ?
l.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 21/4/83: f

Gibson pp.246a249. . _ ' .

2. Stuart op cit p°558. Vide below 941070
3. R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 28/4/83. 4 ;
4. R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 21/4/83:Gibson p.250. g
5. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer.l2/4/83:l3/4/83. ;

6. The new title for the official locally in charge of I

the Reserved Territory. . I

7-D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer 3/5/83 enclosing Dunn's letter I

-r=‘-n12 33 ‘
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Cetywewo became impatient of Fynn'e good advice

and reposed his confidence in one William Grant of

' Du:-‘sen. Grant was a friend of Lady Dixie’s, Chessom of g

the Aborigines’ Protection Society’, Bishop Colenso and ‘ I

Harry Escombe , to name but a few. He visited Cetywayo E

on the 2nd June and learned from the King his point of

view: “.111-:osan gges.-‘e an account oi‘ the interview in - ' 1

London between Cetyweyo and Lord Kimberley and said the : &

expression used respectingi the land to be reserved was i.

°nic1o:~.sn‘, a small piece. Hence Cetywe,yé'§ dissatiso j

faction, but this does not explain why he should attack '

either Usibebu or Uhamu. Grant then tells us that "the i .

truth appears to be that excepting John Dunn and his V _

personal following and I-Ilubi with his personal following, '_

also the Natal Natives who had been recently allowed to 7

cross into the Reserve, the whole body of Zulus in the

Reserve are heartily with their kingz. This does not r.

telly with the decision made by the appointed chiefs

recorded above, although Grant would say that an - E

appointed chief was..not his people. ; A .. '.f.=;.;;b Q

I o _ g
on the llith June Cetyweyo appointed ez-an-t.« to be ‘

' . his Resident Adviser and Counsellor 3 and told him,

"1 am being killed, but I have been sitting still ' 1

rolled up by the English law,‘ but I find I must soon ' '_

unroll myself “ 4. Cetm-aeyo had thus poetically ‘ ‘

declared ‘.2-‘ex’, a fact that Grant should have made known “ ‘

to Fynn,,-as well as the fact that Melcahlelega, son of '

Umbendine, ‘King of the Swazis, had interviewed him i . ’

when he met Fyxm for the first time on the 15th June. ' V j

Fym: told that he had caused greet mischief in the 1

country by unsettling the people and‘ the; all sorts’ of I

rumours were in circulation shout Grant ; 1 i

‘ ‘ . /to which.... ' P

1. Grant 2/6/es: 9/6/es. '
2. Ioid ll/6/8.3. ‘*

3. Grant 14/e/83. . V [
4- Tbid l3/6/83. ' . ‘ f

5. Ibid 14 6 83. . 6. Ibid 15/6/83. _e: T .



(87)

to which the latter replied that he had come up simply as’

a friend of the king and that "I was not in any.wey

connected with the (English ?) Government d E Fynn, Grant

tells us, sympathised with the King in his position_and

' agreed that he had a grievance, to wit, the number of

cattle which were now in the possession of John Dunn .2

Grant returned to Durban on the 22nd June, two days '

after the demise of Bishop Colenso, to consult his lawyer,

Harry Escombe, about his procedure with refehence to his [

new position with Cetyuayo.4 Escombe, imgertially; gave

. him sound advice as to how to influence Cetyuayo ion the :

- .5906 of his people and for the sefety of all cohcefned,3 _

i and Grant set_off for Zululand.‘ U l ‘g. i ..U >. .

1 --‘ Meanwhile Fynn tendered his iesignetion. but it has

not accepted because his presence at Cetywajo‘s:hraal ‘

‘ ' ‘ . would ensure the safety of those chiefs who dare not now

.j'$1eave the king.4. -; Bu1ner_wrote to Der5y;Ithe Secretary

» :_ of State that "Cetyweyo had disregard some of £né mone .

'fl- important conditions of his restoration} endgbegged for

. .HI ;W'the presence ofea sufficient force to give essurance to i

:-'4 the people in the-Reserue abut he oleaded in vain ? I?

‘ f’ l Cetywayo now determined to hetaliete noon Usibebu, -

< ' {».‘ endion the léth July his forces, undehfémnyeméne, went a

" ¢’ _considereble distance into Usibebuis dominion; swept back

. ‘.- and killed a number of people, iUsibehuHhesolved too‘_

=. avenge his murdered.people, attecksd the coast chief

, isomkele on the way,7and on the 21st he'su}phised detywayo

at his kreal;U1undi.A: .’;H~ ' .:y_n . I‘: . ’

‘ ‘ ’/The Usutu;....

2.rbid. .- '

3. P.P.H.E. Escombe to Grant 25/6/83.‘

4. D.B.M.U. Osborn to Bulwer 19/6/83.3 ' - . ;

5. Doc.lC6 l883,presented to Legislative Council ,Natal.

"i/ol.ll8.p.l01. . .. _ - .

6. Ibid p.lOl.ff: do Kiewiet p.301. ’_ . &J&

7. D.B.m.O._Osborn to Bulwer 20/8/83, _ -

~
~ 5
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The Usutu were put to flight, and Mr. Fynn, E

- who witnessed the whale affair estimated that 1,000 g

' kraals were set on fire. Uhamu attacked a portion g

of Cetywayo's forces but was defeated.1 Cetywayo .%

fled on a horse and was accompanied by his old E

' Counsellor, Sirayo 2. The king was a poor rider and t

dismounted. Re Yes discovered by some young warriors E

' and was wounded f By devious means he got to the . » £

Reserved Territory and entrenched himself in the / I

. Nkandhla forest, at a spot overlooking the Mame { E

»waterfall :. Below which 24 years later the decisive V V

battle of the Bembata Rebellion was to be foughts. ‘ F

I Cetywayo was then believed to?§g% into touch with the

Boers who hoped to make capital out of the disaffecgon :

, ~ ‘Grant was back nith Cetywayo by the léth Septem- I ;

» berg and found, the King disconsolate. _ He dressed his '

. _ .wound and gave hin a pair of boots 7.4 -~ ~ ‘

_ ~ » g The problem now was how to get Cetywayo from E

-out of his hiding place, from which he refused to F

° budge. To Osborn there was only one course open and if E

. that was an appeal to force.‘ He consulted with .3 E

Dunn and other loyal chiefs in respect of defenceg, V f

' but Usibebu‘s impi had already joined forces with 2

. .Uhamu's and after laying waste Usutu kraals heeded ;

‘ for the Nkendhla and the King. Cetywayo on learning

this intimated on the_2lst September that he was A

willing to treat with the Resident Commissionerl?

' A Usibebu was thereupon warned not to cross the ’

Umhlatuzi, the boundary between the Reserved ‘

‘ ‘ I /Territory..... I

1. Grant 4/9/880 7
2. D.B.M.O. Osborn is Sulwer 25/7/83:22/7/83: A

Grant 6/8/83: Gibson pp 254-256. -

3. For details of Cetywayo's version of what

happened vide Grant 22/9/83. Gibson p.257. ‘ t

4. Stuart op cit p.210. «

5. Ibid p.310 ff:Bosman The Natal Rebellion of 1906 E

A 6. n.s.r.eo. Osborn to Bulwer 31/8/83. p.78 ff. f

7. Grant 19/9/es. » it
5. R.CpZ. Bulwer to Osborn 29/8/83. E

9, Ibid 8/9/83: 10 Ibid 24/9/83. j~
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X

' \ 1 E
I Territory and Cetywayo's domains . After a whilehe K

turned east to punish Somkele who had attacked some of r
2 . ;

his people . Fynn volunteered , on his arrival at ‘-

Eshowe, to visit Cetywayo and bring him to Osborn, a E
. 3 .

mission he successfully accomplished . Grant who .

accompanied the King to Eshowe was peremptorily ordered '
. 4‘ . ‘

to quit the territory which he did post haste .

Now that Cetywayowas a refugee, the problem was . ’

what to do with him; four chiefs, including Dunn and l ‘

. six heedmen with 800 men urged‘ his removal from the 5
5 - _

Reserved Territory . Then Cetywayo solved his own ' ,

. problem: On‘ Friday, the 8th February 1884, "The ‘V

Slandered One“ passed away. He had died of a fatty Q
6 . \

heart . What was to be done with his territory 1. :

His marriages had not been very successful; he had but

one son, Dinizulu, a led in his teens , and four_ daughters
gmls C<'r9wAyo had has i

o:|ThoU3h- one of the married since er,-.:!:f. ‘

return from the Cape fl was pregnant. Bulwer wished V
I

to share his territory with Usibebu, making the Black I ‘
. 7 V '

Us-folosi their common boundary . The proposal was '

V rejected by the British Government: a telegram dated -:
' o 11 "

_ 16th May 1886.1, announced their purpose to "adhere to ’ f__

, their decision not to extend sovereignty or protection V
8 . ‘

over Zululand. . ‘ 2

— ' /CHAPTER v1........ 5

1. Ibid 4/1o/ea. - . :
2. 13.13.};-1.0. Osborn to Bulwer 14/5/81. ‘ -
3. D.B.L’;.O. Osborn to Bulwer, 15/10/83.
4. Grant 18/10/83: 19/10/83. ~ . .
5. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer l/12/83. _ y
6. D.B.M'.O. Osborn to Bulwer 8/72/84. ' - .
7. Ibid 24/3/84. . ‘
8., Gibson p.268. - . ‘ ' ‘; t

‘ _ ‘ x

’ F
4 : i

' E
If
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. CHAPTER VI A ‘ L

MFATONGA hec-rem‘ AGAIN. 4 _ v . i

‘There was an ominous quietness immediately ‘ I

after Cotyvznyws death. Zulu custom demanded that their

dead should be respectfully buried. After the burial K’

of a king it was also the custom to proclaim the "hlambolika" é

(Ihlambu), or cleansing process, by washing assegais in ;.r

blood 1. It was therefore felt in the Reserved Territory F

that they were living on the edge of a live volcano which ‘

would erupt as soon as the royal obsequies were completedz. f i

' In thinking this, they were not wrong, and the loyal chiefs ‘ E

were told to hold themselves ready to suppress A possible

Usutu rising. 3 Meanwhile Osborn proceeded to collect the 9

14s hut tax from Dunn's people as well as from the Coast ’

Chiefs. He informs us that "they pay up very well". The r e

‘ same could not be said of all of them, but this use because v 1

they wereginstructed to behave as they did, by Cetywayo's

brothers ;. 4 ' ‘ ‘ .5 ' _ ‘

' Usibebu had not remained quiet. Deprived of his royal E

‘ "quarry in the Reserved Territory he had vented his spleen. N .

' on Somkele, who was punished for heving sttecked some‘of . r i

‘ Ueibebu‘s people. Dunn, thereupon ,offered to meke ' E '

effectual pence beyond the Reserved Territory provided that

His Excellency paid him £4,000. 5 Needless to say the offer

was refused. Dunn, it should be remembered ,wss still '

hankering after his compensation money. ' ; e

Yet Bulwer was not altogether unsympethethic; for ~ - i

when chief Umfanawenlela was killed by Mankulamana the " I

state of affairs was so unsettled that itxwas necessary K

for the Amntonga to travel vie the Coast to the labour _ ,

‘market in Natal, and he therefore temporarily appointed V f

' ' 4 ’ /Dunn..... %

1. D.B.M.0. Bulwer to Osborn 22/9/84.
. 2. Ioid. 29/3/84: R-.C.Z Bulwer to Osborn 1o/4/34. f

- 8; D.E.M.O. Osborn to Bulwcr 13/4/84. ~ ' I

4. Ibid 11/4/34: 20/4/84: 19/2/34: 21/2/84:22/2/84;20/4/34 I‘
5. Ibid l/3/84: 18/3/84: 20/3/84. ;
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Dunn to act as Agent in this respect. "3-‘e find Dunn ‘

' still acting in this capacity four yeers later when it. t

was decided that instead of’ charging the Tongas viishing E

to pass ‘through his country to Natal, that they should

be charged double on their return to Tongaland when they l

would have money as they usually had nothing on the ‘.

' forward journey to find work in Natal.2 . '

On the 23rd April the brothers buried Cetywayo at ,;

I?~abularaanzi's kraal near the Nkunzana stream_, on a small I

exoosed ridge to the east of" the Home "Gorge 3; The eloge K

was‘ delivered, and respects were paid to the survivor,4' I

in this case Ndabuko, ‘the eldest of the five brothers . ’

All was nowvready thelfinal cerernozwr-‘the hiamoolika ‘

Cetyweiyo. On the 9th‘ May, Dabulamanzi with mac armed <,..\

men attacked Os"oorn's " ‘The Residentmqgzmgnaiesioner "/

recorded: ‘ "We met at 300 off‘ and repulsed thém ' E

tszithin tv.-enty—five minutes. “Our loss’ is .two killed and :

’c'c:o wounded. Of the enemy,‘ twenty bodies =.vez_'e found in , ,

" I‘ the field " 5 V The No:1q¥3ai had won its. spurs and it had

not been necessary to use the’ troops which Bulwer had '

previously sent up as a moral :::;1p1)ort. No’ one was more Q

surprised than Dunn et the success of the Native police ‘ ‘

- in whom he had no faith 6en-:1 had: refused to assist '

C-sbornunless the troops were used 7. That he would: -I .

have given C-sbornt every assistance had his wish been . g ' :

complied with is proved by the -fact that he had engaged 1

10 men, ‘- 8 'white and 2 coloured, -'4 at'£lO a month to _ I‘

assist him against the Usutu. ' He discharged these men

on the 5th June ‘gut not before their troops ‘had looted .

A < ' ' ' R‘ ‘V /cattle..." 4
l.D,3.I.!.O. Osborn to Bulwer l/12/>83. , _ . ' ’

I ‘2.R.,C.Z. Hnvelock to Osborn 16/2/8'7. _ _
‘ 3.I‘§:éc1. 26//L/84; Stuart op cit 210. ., _'

4.,D..?3.1:7.C-. Osborn to Bulwer 26/4/84. F
5. Ibid l-4./5/81. . H ' ;
6.{I‘cunI'‘c. op cit 658. _ .
7.?J.‘E3.i-6.<?v.‘<)s1‘:aoz_'n to, Bulwer 14/4/84;. 14/5/84. ‘ , H
81614. /«/4,/M, 7/6/5% _‘ ‘

. V
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cattle after the “hattle'} and Osborn had found it useless L

remonstrating with Dunn who said his force was kept "under >

arms by order of the generel to whom I presume he looks ‘I t

for instructions" “ ‘ = ’ ;

I We have noted above that Boer adventurers were ‘ E

penetrating Western Zululand once again “with the object

of acquiring a home for themselves. Nothing could have ‘ F

suited their purposes better than the present Imperial_ ‘N f

' inactivity in Zululand to advance their own objects. f

‘Osborn was fully aware of nhat was_going on while the ‘F I‘

Boers did not attempt to deceive him or the Natalians. ‘ A, :

Their spokesman, Wilhelm, was commissioned by the other t‘ .

Boers to visit Natal to test the feeling there; and at y i

the same time to see G-rant‘ Wilhelm saw Gallwey, the ‘

_ Attorney=Genera1 as well as Sir.Theophilus Shepstone in

Pietermaritzburg , with both_of whom he had much conversa-~

tion on the subject of Boer interference in Zululand and : V

concluded from what was said that the British Government

would not interfere. In Durban he saw Grant and told I

him that it was the intention of the Boers to interfere 3

by forcible means on behaleor the Usutu and with that

object to subdue Ueibebu, for which services they would 2!

- claim a cession of Zululand; ':Grant agreed to this and .

undertook to report favourably to the Aborigines’ Protect-

ion Society, «» thus indirectly influencing the "Evangeli- .V

cal vote in the House of Commons", ; in the action the -

Boers contemplated 3. Grant gave Wilhelm a signed T *

memorandum which he handed to Gallwey on his return to 5 u

:~11obane.4 It was also Grant's intention to return to H ’

Zululand where he would be able to advance the Boer ‘’ ~

cause among the Zulus, This Grant succeeded in doing.é- A E

. 12,4} /In Mav..... ;

l. Ihid 29/5/84: Grant 8/5/84: Gibson pp.269-270 ‘ I

2. Vide p.86 supra. .' . ‘ ,

3. D.§.E.O. gsborn to Bulwer l/lg/85. ‘ . ’ ‘ v f

4. Ibid A./9/2:5. ‘ -.._ .

5. ibid 7/7/84. £1. ‘ ~ ‘
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In May the Hlobane Boers secured a cession of

’ land from Dinizulu whereunder in return for establishing

- his authority they were promised as much land as

their leaders might consider necessary for the founding
1 !

of the New Republic about Vryheid. This was to include i

' a great deal more than the Disputed Pastures of famous I

2

memory. 3 ' ' ' E

A The bargain was struck. 'The Usutu covered by S

Boer fire totally defeated Usibebu on the 5th June at p

3 rz the memorable battle of Itshana . Usibebu fled into

- the Thwayo Hduku forest, where only two or three days " }

~ . 4 < 1
before Sparks and Dunn were having a picnic. ' From _ I

there he eventually got to‘the Reserved Territory and E

was placed in Dunn's Ward» Two months after Itshana

‘ the Boers presented their bill which was-paid on the

'l6th August when the New Republic was born in spite of

. 6

‘Zulu protestations headéaby Umnyamana who denied that '

the Zulue had given Grant the power to sign together ‘ ‘

with Einizulu, u now recognised by such as would ' 3

' r 7

acknowledge him to be King of the Zulus -, any 5 6

- document which gave away their lands. On the strength g i

of this document the Boers proceeded to measure farms. '

4They'measured and measured and measured until the sea 1

‘ was reached and there remained little for the Usutu -
8

beyond what had formed the territory of Usibebu.

The Usutu repented of their bargain and repeatedly _
. ‘ 9

wrote and complained to the British. ‘ "

I . April. a to V

l.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn l6/3/85.

' zcwalker, Historical Atlas Map 15.

V J.D.B.M.C. Osborn to Bulwer BO/6/85:22/6/85:Gibson pp. M V

270-272» ~

4.Sparks to me July 1939. ‘ .

5.D.B.M.O. Osborn to Bulwer 23/6/84.

6.R,C.Z, Bulwer to Osborn 16/3/85; 19/9/94.

7.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 26/9/94.

8.D.B.M.O. Osborn to Mitchell 21/12/85.Gibson p.274.

Vide Walker,Historical Atlas p.15.

9.R.C.Z. Bulwer to Osborn 16/7/85:22/4/86: Havelock to

Osborn 10/6/86. "Natal Mercury" 27/5/86. I
T. . . ‘

. . V I’ I

V - —-——~— V V .. ....,.,..__-_. ..,.___.._..___._i....__ J
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In April 1886 they asked for British help against their F
. 1

Boer Allies , with the result the new Governor of Natal,

Sir Arthur Havelock, was able to recover about one half :

of the land for the Zulus from the Boers, who were agaixl ‘

cut off from the sea: they abandoned, subject to the

approval of the Zulus, all claim to protection over
QASTEKIV '

them; but retained until 1902 the presentfiboundary .

from a point on the Umhlatuzi River to the Entonjaneni V »

Mountain thence to the Ulundi Drift on the White _ fl

" Umfoloei, up that river to Louw's Drift, thence over

the Idhlehe and czeza Mountains and by way of the f

_ Umkuzana and Umkuzi streams and the ridge of the 2 \
_ 2 '

’ Lebombo Mountains to the Pongola River.

' Dunn, it will be remembered had been acting ;
' 3

temporarily as Amatonga Agent . This agency brought ,

him into contact with the tribes up north and in 3 '

particular with Chief Umgongobali, whose territory J

V was situated north and adjoining St.Lucia Bay between f

the Lebombo Mountains and the sea; - '
' . » N

At this time the imperialgectivity had not only X »

inspired the Boers to seek new territories but it E

4 also gave rise to a”foreign menace“ ; Germany in .- A

particular was seeking a harbour on the coast of

Zululand to link up with : Angra Pequena, on the . , f
13 .

west, poesiblyAjoin forces with the Transvaal Boers and fi

' thus shut in British south Africa. England awaking T

from her lethargy had annexed, in December 1884, St ‘
. 4 ’ ’

Lucie Bet, but there was still Kosi Bay in Amatongap ‘ ’

land and Sordwena Bay in Umgongoba1i's territory.

/When......‘ . 1

1,D.B.M,O. Osborn to Havelock 7/4/86:R.C.Z.Havelock to C
Csborn 5/6/86. 4

2."Natal Witness" and "Nstal Mercury“ Julyl-July 9 1886 5

D.B.M.O. Osborn to Havelock 2/1/87;5/3/86:11/1/87.

R.C.Z. map used in Zulu were dated 16/7/81: Notes
and proceedings Legislative Counci1.Natal l886.p.31lo ‘
Vide Wa1ker,Historical map 15.

3. Vide pp. 90-91 supra. i ‘F

4. R.C.Z.Confidential Bulwer to Osborn.9/l/85.Ualker 5

pp.eO7=408.Ruseell p.261.Vide p.7 supra. f

‘ I.

___~ »~.~ f
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when Umgongobali died in 1885 he was succeeded ?

by his son Sibonda, but the late chief gave his E

‘territory to John Dunn and Sibonda confirmed his father's; E

gift. Dunn, alive to the political significance ~g

_ of the gift, and, also desirous of getting away from V

the Reserved Territory into a land of his own again,l _

wrote, in July 1836, asking the Government to take over ; F

_ Umgongobali's country and that he be appointed chief. ‘ . E

Osborn recognised that Dunn had loyally placedthe land-e ii 5

under Her Majesty's protection, but was not certain o ; L

whether the British right to St.Lucia Bay and the . £

neighbouring ground included this territory. He was ' ii :

anxious to know what to say to Dunn as he thought it E ;

probable that the Boers contemplated securing the _ b

. territory for themselves and thus not only extend their

' own borders, but also at the same time gain access to’ '

the sea.2 Sir Arthur Havelock replied that Dunn was a y

British subject, and, as such was not qualified to take fl

over territory in the sense of assuming sovereign _ ‘I E

authority over_it. ' _ ‘ V j A ‘ ' 1 '

Osborn was not to do anything, except.to ascertain the ‘ ‘g E

exact boundaries of the territory, until they heard . i Q

; what was to be done from the new Secretary of State, V H

O Sir H.Holland (later Lord Knutsford). with regard to A :

I the Boers contemplating securing this territory for‘ «

themselves, they were deharred from taking it, if it

were in the bounds of Cetywayo's territory during his

reign, as it would then be contained within the. s- V

territory over which it was shortly intended to extend

' 4 /Briti'sh..‘... A i

l. DtB.M.O. Osborn to Havelock 23/l0/88. ; . i

2. D.B.M.O. Osborn to Havelock 28/12/86¢ ‘h. k

' - ' P

. n E
. I

, .,_____,_~____________.___i_._,_;__,____~_,_.__.,___..i_l./
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British authority, but if it were.beyond the bounds

of Eululand the Boers of the New Republic will again I, i

be debarred by the London Convention érom getting a E 3

I concession of it from the Natives without the previous i

consent of her Majesty's Government a. Once again 1

nothing was done in the matter immediately. England % !

refused to he hurried; procrastination is not an evil J

thing,fiutas intimated by Havelock, British Protection, E‘#

‘ carrying with it the supreme authority of Her Majesty's {

Government was extended over Eastern Zululand on the !

' 5th February, 1887. This land comprised what was left i

of Cetywayo's dominion and included Usibebu's territory. i g

Eastern Zululand, together with the Reserved Territory F

was henceforth to be known as the British Possession

of Zululand and comprised six districts, Eshowe under “

Osborne the Resident Commissioner and Chief Magistrate, _ ~

Nkandhla under Fretorius, fiqutu under Major Mcxean, I!

Entonjaneni under Mr. Knight, Ndwsndwe under Mr. R.H. ..}

‘Addison and Lower Umfolosi under Mr. A.J.Shepstone. The ‘

Zululand Police were still under the able command of J .

George Mansel, who was now assisted by three subo % »

_ inspectorszo Addison, 0sborn- the Resident's son, and’ i

~ Pierce 8. What a lot of bloodshed would have been - ‘

H avoided had England done this five years previously, as

r was suggested by those on the spot, instead of then f

dividing Zululand into three unequal parts.

’ The effect of the assumption of protection over ‘

Zululand by Britain on the Boers of the New Republic : t

was LC hasten them to throw in their lot with the

I Transvaal, which they did on the 29th June, 1888, when J ‘

the New Republic became the Transvaal District of Vryc .

heid. 4 3 /Dinizulu. . 7

1. 27/2/1884. Eybers op cit p.469 ff vide article 4, ,

2. R.C.Z Havelock to Osborn 15/1/87. r

3. E.C.Z. Havelock to Csborn 14/5/87 enclosing F

proclamation 14/12/87. ‘ r

4. Votes and Proceedings Legislative Council 188739.32 f

7/7/88. .
, r
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Dinizulu and his Usutus had been placed in the ;

Ndwandwe district of Zululand, and when Usibebu was ‘ $

repatriated there in 1888 the fat was in the fire. : E

Matters came'to a head when Diaizulu built a strong- i

hold at Ceza in the district on the border between fl

‘ Zululand and the Transvaal. It was an old story

repeating itself; following in his father's footsteps, E

and inspired by his Uncles Ndabuko and Tshingana, he 4 '

‘was rediving the dreaded Zulu war machine.‘ It was f .

. therefore felt necessary to strengthen the new

‘ magistracy set ub at lvuna, and Usibebu and his impi ‘V

.4 " were placed in front of the camp. The} were no 5 i

' sooner ‘in position than Difiizulu attacked. Many of '

Ueibebu°s5men were killed and the invading army ‘ f

"returned in tridfiefi to Gaza.» This was the'aignal for ’

‘. vi disloyal chiefs to'rise; and it beeame\necessary to I {

flput dowh three ihsurrections§ Dinizulu add his ‘ :1

3 V '.sL.4',ooo Usutu iaying wasté the 1‘-Idv~.vandv1ei’ sigma; ' ' .

_ the rebellious chiefs of the Lower Umfolosi'bistrict ‘

_ headed by Somkele; and Uncle Tshingana at filopekulu '2

I , ‘ in the Entonjaneni District; " ’ .N; : 5”" '\ %

‘ . - ' Osborn decided to eafifiaign first agaiost . “ i:

V Tshingana. ‘on the 2nd Ju1y,1888,‘t'rie":§u1u1and ‘ ' i

§olice under Mahsel, Hlubi‘s“Basbtos under Major . i

‘ McKean, loyal Natives under Indunas and Eurofiean ‘

leaders morally'supported by Capeain Pennefather~and 1

the troops left for Hlopekulu to apprehend Tshingana. é

Another contingent of Natives, some two thousand i

strong was levied by Dunn. These operated from the _ V

south against somkele and were to guard the road ~ :

to Empangeni. Csborn°s attack on Ishingana was j

successful, although the chief fled during the night

for Ceza. This was the turning point of the ‘ g

insurrection.1 . /MaJ0r~o--- E

1.n.a.m.o. Osborn to _Haveloc}:. ll/7/'88:Gibson~ pp»-gig:

,i,__W..__..__,__..__,_,__,__,___,Q_,,_,,___m___,,,,,*$____,__,_,"_s
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Major HcKean was new dispetched to the Lower

Umfolosi District and together with Dunn was success-

ful in putting down the rebellious chiefs and causing ' '

somkele to eurrender.l Dinizulu realised the hope1ess— .

' ness of his task and fled into the Transvaal. A 1 I ‘

- Dissatisfied with his position in the Vryheid District,’

he appealed to Dunn ‘for advice‘ because he had been E

his father°s adviser. Hevelock on being informed .

about this told Dunn to do nothing in the matter 2and 1
- ‘ 'T'$HINGANA,

on the 6th‘Nbvembsr Eéaéfiikzwas captured at his

kraal at Hlopekulu to-which he had returned 3. After ‘E ‘

various movements Dinizulu proceeded to ?ietermaritz- E

burg and on the 15th November surrendered to the < E

. euthorities 4. After a long trial, he together with - .

hie uncles hdebuko and Tshingana,wes_sentenced on the ‘ ‘

27th April 1859, to imprisonment sand dispatched to “ E

St.Helena. The House of Chaka was no more, -“like g ,

water that ispspilt". And the story of Zululand from X o

‘ now onwerds‘is one of slow progress, fight against V

disease, commercial exploitation and enlargement until 5 I

'?ulu1and included the whole sea coast from the ' f i »

Portuguese boundary in the north to the Tugela. : l

‘ The first enlargement of Zululand was owing tothe _ A

I ‘ v ‘ interference of a certain Colonel W.Jesse Coope4 ‘who {

had been up to Sibonda'e and'Umcemnna's territory :

trying to get concessions 6. In order to put a stop

to such interlopers and to avoid any misunderstanding’

between the Government and John Dunn, as well as to

1.R.C.”.Kavolcck.td Osborn 29/7/83ufl/Zégréfgfiitfidlhorn ‘

.to Csbcgn %/liyago . ' . . .-..avelock

3.R.C.Z. Hnveloek to Osborn 8/ll/83. _ ‘
4.GiBsen op cit. page 316. I _

5oD-B-3-Go Osborn to Havelock 25/4/89:27/4/89.Din1zu1u
ggslgenggniggrggoiggfifs:Ndabuko to 15 yrs;Tehingana g

6nH¢Ce%oh&V¢10Ck to Osbgén 30/lo/88.16/Q/89:5/4/89: fl
D.B.m.L. Leborn to Havelock 23/1;/33, ;

‘ ‘t
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forestall the Transvaal moves in that direction it was i

decided to annex the territories of Chiefs Sibonda and

Umcamans to Zu1uland.1This become the Lebombo district V

_ of ?ululand.. Dunn still wishing to remove ftom the i

' Eshowe District asked for permission to go to the Lower ;

Umfolosi District, and wished the Government to pay him '

i for all improvements. These Osborn considered would be i

difficult to estimate, nor did he know why Dunn wished to L i

move 2. It may have been pique over the Sibonda affair; E ‘

‘ perhaps it was because the hunting was better there or '

perhaps it was because he wished to have a higher status I ‘

‘then the other chiefs in the Eshowe District; or perhaps '

it was because at the nonent he was under A cloud; I

Haveloek was annoyed with him beceuse of his raising

objections and making difficulties in resfiect of 0sborn's ;

requisition for a levy of Natives at the beginning of 3

> the recent disturbance. “If this happens again ", warned E -

Hevelock, he will possibly be relieved of his chieftaino :

- ship", and unknown to punn, the Secretary of State wished

Osborn to censure him 3. But this was never done, possibly; :

because there was wisdom in his repeated demand for ‘

European Troops and his want of faith in Native levies. :

The matter ended by Osborn sending hi? a semi-official

letter thanking him for his;eervices._;

The Secretary of Stategwould not allow Dunn to '

remove to the Lower Umfoloei District, but asked if there :

' ’ were not gems other place in Northern Zululand to which a '

chief of Dunn°s ability could be removed. Osborn could

think of no such place 5. 1 . r‘ ‘
/Dunn........ , :

l°R.C.Z.Eavelock to Osborn 10/12/88. '
2,D.B.M.O. Osborn to Havelock 23/10/88. '
3.R.C.Z. Havelock to Osborn 16/2/89:25/4/89 E
4.,T).B.E\wf.O., Ceborn to Eiitchell 31/8/89.Clarke to Helyo " ='

R.C.Z.Eitchel1 to Osborn 3/8/89:%YL90(Hutcheson 19/6/94. .
5.R.C-Z.Havelock to Osborn 10/l/89:12/4/89:D.B.M.0. ' '

Osborn to Havelock 16/l/89» ' ’ I

 e 5
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Dunn then wished to issue a pace to Natives leeving

his location and to charge a fee. . Osborn maintained,

however, that he had no right to do so if the Hative wished

' to leave Zululand as this was part of the Hagietrute's

duty, but from one location to another it was possibly fair,

~ as he was entitled to remuneration for work done. On the

other hand it would amount to a recognition of a right on }

the part of chiefa to impose fees and probably other taxes g

on the people of his tribe; for this reason‘§Sborn die- f i

allowed it and Eavelock concurred. Dunn petitioned His 3 ‘

Excellency in vain to reconsider his decision 2. For the E

" next four years there is no reference to Dunn in Zululand :

* records, and it may be assumed that he was living happily E

in the Eehowe district hunting and fishing. It was during :

this happy period that he was at Richardis Bay after hippo.E

He was standing with his legs apart across a hippo track E ,

leading fromathe leke through reeds in at least four feet ;

of water. while waiting for the hippo he noticed a slight £

movement under him, and looking down he see a crocodile 1

with huge jaws wide open within a foot of his body. He 1

fired three shots into his throat killing it on the soot. *

_ This crocodile was twentyutwo feet in length, the longest -

he had ever shot3. . ‘ ‘ _

In 1894 Sir Marshall Clarke, who had succeeded Sir

Melmoth Osborn, K.C.M.G. as the Resident Commissioner of ’ ,

.r-'u1u1and'sub.w.-1t.ted a list of thirty-two chiefs who under a ‘

new proposal were to have extended jurisdiction in Native 7

civil cases; Dunn, once‘more, tried to get a higher social‘ k

status than that accorded to some of the chiefs, but his x'V

request was turned down.u Afi

- /0n..... 5:!

1.o,:a,::.o. Osborn to Hevelock V2.5/1o/es. R.C.Z. Havelock K
to Osborn 2/ll/38. F

2.D.n.:.c. Osborn to Hevelock 27/l/8@:R.C.E. Havelock to ‘ t

osborn :31/1/so. . _ _ _ ' W f
3. Colonel Sparks. “Natal hercury” 28/ll/1934. ,

» 4. v.3.m.c. Clarke to Hely—Eutchescn 16/2/94:l7fl4/94: I

19/6/94. f

_ r
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On the 5th August,l895, Chief John Dunn died at

Mangete on his farm Emoyeni having lived over 42 years in

‘ Zululand; he was about 61 years of age. He was buried at

I Emoyeni; five miles from the village of Gingindhlovu,where

a tombstone to his memory has been erected % His death

bereft his followers of a leader. His following comprised '

_ a number of Zulu tribes or fragments of tribes who occupy ”

their old kraal sites: hunters and others who were personall

attached to the Chief; many immigrants from Natal and else- .

A where: 70 children 2and a few Europeans connected by '

narriage with the chief who had granted them permission to g

; squat in his ward. There was no Eululchief strong enough *

to take his place; notions of his half caste sons would

command the respect of either the Zulus or of the Goyernment

I As Dunn had selected his own indunas, it was decided for i

, the time being that the four chief ones should carry on _ E

' reporting direct to the Resident magistrate of hshowe,but :5

' it was realised that this practice could not endure owing 3

to the jealousies which'were certain to arise now that they ?

were deprived of "the strong hand“ which kept them in their !

places. sir Marshall Clarke then suggested, and it was, ‘

approved, that an Assistant Magistrate should be appointed, §

‘ ' stationed at a central position in John Dunn's ward 3, to “E

retain the services of the four indunas, and safeguard the 1

interest of the 70 orphans left by Dunn, who in spite of

what everyone thought, only left cattle. Mr. W.W.Barker

was appointed to look after the ward which henceforth was ‘

known as the Umlalazi District 4. Mr. Barker proved unsuit-

able, the Resident Commissioner finding him in a stupid. 4 '

condition and his books unsatisfectorily kept. He was ‘‘i

suspended and allowed to resign 5. ' C ‘j;_
E./Then..... _

l.F.Dunn. '.
2.The number had been variously stated as 93 and 131. ;
3.For definitions of the boundaries of the ward see §£§¥:' ‘L

4.D.B.P.'3.0. Clarke to Hely-Iiutchdnsnn 13/9/95:13/1o/95:’ f
F.Dunn writing in "Natal Mercury" 24/11/34. t

5.D.E.M.O. Clarke to He1y~Hutchinson 25/l/96:4/2/95:R.C.Z. L t
Helyaflutchinson to Clarke 8/4/9b;l8/4/96:24/4/96. ,
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Then Mr. Wheelwright ,son of the first Resident of. Q

‘ - Zululand, was temporarily placed in charge of affairs, but }

as he was needed at Eshowe, Subalnspector Higneth was

appointed to the position l.He was succeeded by various

other Assistantamegistrates. >

The same year that Dunn died witnessed the setting up

of the first Roman Catholic Mission In Zululand. The I

Station was established at Emoyeni, the late chief's 1

residencegand is there to this day, although Dunn's original t

homestead was burnt down on the 2nd March,l928. 3 I ' "

with the demise of its chief, Dunn's tribe began to J;

‘ disintegrate and when Zululand became a province of Natal 1.

in l897, portion of the tribe had considerably scattered, V

‘ with the result that in 19oo the Governnentl of Ithelcolony -

« of fiatal.decided to set apart land for the occupation of g ‘

‘ John Dunn's descendants, and instructed the Zululand'Lands E

, helimitation Commission then sitting to inquire, into and i V‘

to make a recommendation as to what land shonld be set E

.apart for the said purpose. The Comnission'recommended i

10,000 acres; to he hnown as Dunn's Reserve, also referred ! d

to as Reserve 7a; but that Natives then residing on that fl

land shou1d'not be removed. This Reserve was gratted to: : ‘

the Zululand Native Trust by deed of grant issued by the : 3

Governor of Natal, dated 6th April, 9909. There were‘ , i

_ honever a number of descendants still occupying land at ,

or\near=Enoyeni, known as Reserve 9. Disputes then arose _ ;

between Dunn's descendants and others living in the said

v reserves concerning their respective rights of occupation. 3 ‘

Hence,in 1935, a lee was enacted by the Union Government ’ I

that each child of the late John Dunn should have a plot 3

not exceeding 100 acres in extent, and situate in Reserve E

7a, provided that if any child is dead at the commencement fl '

of the Act, his descendants who are alive, shall, {

l.Ibid. /per stirpes.... ' §
2.D.B.M.§§. Clarke to Hely Hutchinson 28/l/96. *
3.F.Dunn.Gingindhlovu. g

{. id
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per stirpes, be entitled jointly to such award. A f

meeting of descendants was called by the Native I

' Commissioner of the District of Mtunzini to carry out the V

terms of this act which is known as The John Dunn Act, .

‘ ‘1935. 1Thus thirty years after Dunn's death the UN'0P4.

V‘ Government gave to his descendants a large tract of coun-

try over which he had once ruled with despotic power. .

It was recognition and compensation at last. . 3 ‘- ‘
, I

. 4 ' . /Em/oI........ '

. r_ ’ 1 . _ I ,

' 1

. _ ! .

1. Statutes of Union of South Africa. Act 15 of § -
1935 assented to 6th Anril 1935 and signed by

~ the Governor General in Afrikaans. . -

. . , : 3
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' . we have reviewed in haste a man's life. It is i

impossible that in so-short a space we have done him

justice. All that we can hope for is an outline rather

- than the vivid flashes that so far have stood for John Dunn. (

we have tried not to gloss over his defects, great as the ~

temptation to white wash him has been, and we feel that i

- weighed in the balance he has not been found wanting. Hie

youth lacked something that we give to our boyhood to-day.

This resulted in a curious deliberatelyfspoken man, who I .

‘ acquired many of the characteristics of the Natives among

whom he lived; yet he was no Zulu and the euphemistic V

”AngloeZulu" does not imply what we infer from “Angloa ;

Indian". To the end he was a European ‘able to take his

place in an officers’ messf. .'All those who knew him ‘ V

personally testify that he was quiet, retiring and hospitablg

‘ a gentleman of pleasant epoearance land manners, of good I 1

. family, straight in business dealings and much esteemed by i

- ~ all who had the privilege of his acquaintance._ He cannot, E

therefore, be confused with a degenerate adventurer like I

-"Coenraad Buijs who had fled from the Cape Colony to Kaifiro

' land in the early days of the nineteenthcentury, and ‘ _'~

gathered around him a gang of cut~throat sconndrels of y K

diverse races and colour, which wandered about the interior; , 1

profiting by its unsettled state,'end a*terror to tribe§";2 "

’ although he did have this in common with Buijs-both men 2;

established a Native harem ~ but-there the comparison ended. "

We have tried to show that he was a"renegade" like E

John Churchill, Duke of Marlborough and the parallel seems ~ 5

to hold good.i goth placed ideals before men even if those . ‘

men were their Masters and Benefactors. Confucius said, t

five centuries before Christ; 1 ‘ I.
' . 1 fl”when......

l.Vide Godee-Melsbergen & Visscher"South African History ‘E

told in P1ctures".p.7O.also photograph of Dunn ,01d Durbax ‘

Eoom,City Hal1,Durbon. Vide also p.3 "Picture Post 8/7/39. {

E01, Vol 4 for a full length portrait of Dunn- '

2. Agarafiemilton op cit pp 66~67. £3
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"when the command is wrong a son should resist his é

. father” and a minister his August Master ". Both Dunn }

I . and Churchill resisted their Masters for the good of ‘

their countries. And today we honour them for the stand

they took. %

Nor was Dunn a gunurunner. ' All the evidence we have 5

goes to prove that he bought guns in an open market, and I

had the Governor's permission to sell them to the Natives. 5

This is not an illegal introduction of guns into a g g

. dependent country. i ' j

Dunn was a romantic figure after the type of Rajah ~

Brooke of Sarawak. He, too, became a white chief of a .

Native race. Dunn'sfirst appearance on horseback struck 3 ’

’ terror into the Natives and his wizardry with a gun _

. caused Cetywayo to embrace him. Sequence of events has ;A

gone to show that he ruled his territory with firmness as i L

we might expect of a despotic ruler, but he also ruled ' y

with kindness; which explains the Zulu's loyalty towards .

his in spite of the fact that his subjects were 'more ;

amen and more divided in their affections to him than '

in any other of the twelve locations.’ The Imperial '

Government acknowledged the fact that there was law and: . I

order in his ward when everywhere else in Zululand there

was a state of disorder, and the Union Government .

recognised the fine things he did, by making provision ‘\

for his descendants. L

He was more sinned against than sinning. He was ever 1

‘loyal to the Government that did not always keep its

promises. He gave that Government both good and loyal . ’ fl

advice, which, to the detriment of Zululand, it had neithe: ’

-p the inclination, nor apparently the money to put into M;

practicea His influence on South African history has I

._~. been small but.good; he tried, in vain, to influence Q

/Cetywayo. . . . . . '

w  :
. r
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Cetywayo agamt tb_row:Lr,g his ‘country into war: he

helped to subdue the enemy in the Zulu war: he assisted

the llmperiel Government by assuming a chieftainship Y

and maintaining order. as in the Sitimela affair, to the

' ‘ possible prejudice of his good name. When later deposed

and unrecompensed he loyally continued to assist that ~ \

Government to subdue its enemies; again he was ever ready

with his good counsel; and the Government knew that they I

' could look to him to take the lead in any of their M i

, ventures; F he was the first chief to pay the Hut Tax to S

the Government; he guided the chiefs at meetings; was .

over ready with his full quota of Native troops provided I

they were backed up by European ‘troops; and he was

' instrumental in the: Lebombo district being added to M

Zululand. « :

There is much illofounded rumour about Dunn but y ‘i -

all the official correspondence of Zululand we have noted L

but one instance where Dunn was under a cloud, and even I.

‘this . passed away. I 3'

A" reporter from the "Cape Argus“, whose duty it K’

was toyinterview all sorts of men and women, had two -

lengthy conversations with Dunn and tellsus that "he was‘

~ about as ageeable a man as one could meet within a. i ,

day's march ",1 . - ' to >1

1. Digest p.631 containing Dunn's interview with the

Cape Argus representative. ' ' ‘ f

a ‘ : 1

' E
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